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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due

and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no

assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever

arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,

and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

A

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech
Company Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”), I am pleased to present the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2020 of the Group.

The outbreak of novel coronavirus pneumonia (“COVID-197)
epidemic (the “Epidemic”) started in early 2020, which
impacted China and the global macro-economy. In light of the
Epidemic, the Group resumed operations in phrases and the
local governments implemented epidemic-related administrative
measures, which had temporary unfavorable impact on the
Group’s business. In response, the Group actively adopted various
precautionary measures, in order to lessen the negative impact of

the Epidemic on the Group’s business.

In 2021, the prospect of the economy and operating environment
of China is expected to be more challenging. The Group will
continue to closely monitor market conditions and evaluate the
impact of the Epidemic on the Group’s operating and financial
performance, and closely monitor the risks and uncertainties
posed by the Epidemic. Meanwhile, the Group will, by keeping a
prudent attitude, continue to seek investment opportunities with
value, in order to pursue stable development and create fruitful

returns for shareholders of the Company.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, customers and suppliers again for
their valuable support for the Group’s business development over
the years. I would also like to express my gratitude to all Directors,
senior management and employees for their excellent services and

contributions.

Ni Jinlei
Chairman and Executive Director

Beijing, the PRC
26 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in tourism development
business, investment holding of diversified portfolios and other
businesses including sales of metallic products and wine and

related products.

Tourism development

The Company, through its subsidiaries and associates, is engaged
in provision of environmental shuttle bus service and property
management services, and operation of tourist service center
and tourist souvenir shops in Hengshan Mountain scenic area,
the PRC; and also participated in several tourism development
projects in Hunan Province, including the development of tourist

sight project located at Tianzi Mountain.

Hengshan Mountain scenic area was temporarily closed from
25 January 2020 to 26 February 2020 due to the policies and
measures implemented by the government of the PRC to deter the
spread of the Epidemic in the PRC, which led to an overall annual
decrease in the number of tourists and pilgrims visiting Hengshan
Mountain scenic area by about 30%. The service utilisation rate
of the Group’s environmental bus service remained stable at 92%
(2019: 91%).

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 May 2020, 26 June 2020 and 3 September 2020 and the
circular of the Company dated 30 June 2020. On 15 May 2020, the
Company entered into the sale and purchase agreement (the “SP
Agreement”) with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”)
and Chuanqi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd (“Chuanqi Tourism”),
a then non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, for the
disposal of the 60% equity interest in Chuanqi Tourism held
by the Company at the consideration of RMB172,028,880 (the
“Disposal”); and the guarantee fee arrangement in relation to the
release of the guarantee agreement (the “Guarantee Agreement”)
executed by the Company and the banks dated 31 January
2013 which secured the obligations of Changsha Songya Lake
Construction Investment Co., Ltd. (“Songya Lake Construction”),
under a facility agreement. The release of the Guarantee
Agreement shall be arranged within 12 months from the equity

transfer date through negotiation with the banks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Tourism development (Continued)

The principal asset of Chuanqi Tourism is the investment in
46.6% equity interest in Songya Lake Construction, and Songya
Lake Construction is principally engaged in the construction
and development of landscape architectures and primary land
development of land around the Sonya Lake Region at Changsha
County. Having considered the operating environment and the
prevailing market condition in the PRC, in particular, there
being uncertainty in the domestic real estate market as a result
of the global economic slowdown, including China, in recent
years, and the projects carried out by Sonya Lake Construction
being undertaken in slow progress because of the softening of
the domestic demand, and the increase in difficulty in obtaining
funding for the projects as well as the outbreak of COVID-19, the
Company was of the view that the Disposal could allow the Group
to realize its investment in Sonya Lake Construction and could
enable the Group to improve its liquidity and free up capital for
its operations and any potential new investment opportunities
that can potentially give a better return so as to enhance the
shareholder value.

The approvals of the shareholders of the Company in respect
of the SP Agreement and the transactions contemplated; and
the continuing provision of the guarantee by the Company in
accordance with the Guarantee Agreement after the completion
of the Disposal (the “Completion”), have been obtained at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 21 July 2020.
The Completion took place on 3 September 2020 and the Group
recorded a gain on disposal of approximately RMB92.5 million
for year ended 31 December 2020. As at the date of this annual
report, the remaining balance of the consideration of the Disposal
of approximately RMB142.0 million, which should have been
due since 1 December 2020, i.e. 90 days from the Completion,
remained outstanding, while the Purchaser promised to settle all
the remaining balance of the consideration on or before 30 June
2021. Taking into account of the negotiations with the Purchaser,
the Board was of the view that the remaining balance of the
consideration will be fully settled by the Purchaser on or before 30
June 2021.

During the year under review, Chuanqi Tourism Investment
(Hunan) Co., Ltd. (“Chuanqi Tourism (Hunan)”), a direct
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the sale and purchase agreement with Chuanqi (Hunan)
Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. (“Chuanqi Enterprise”) (which
subsequently changed its name to Chuanqi (Hunan) Culture
Tourism Co., Ltd in January 2021), an associate of the Group and
a connected person of the Company, to acquire a building situated
at No.5b Guangji Road, Nanyue District, Hengyang, Hunan, the
PRC (the “Property”) at the consideration of RMB45,370,000.
The Property would be used for administrative and office use of
Chuangqi Tourism (Hunan) to cope with the business development
and expansion of the tourism businesses of the Group.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investment holding

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s investment holding business
mainly included investments in a subsidiary, the associates
and joint ventures which are private equity funds with equity
investments in private enterprises and property projects in the
PRC, the investment in Jade Bird Fire Co., Ltd. (“Jade Bird Fire”),
a A share listed company in the PRC, and the investments in
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
including listed companies in Hong Kong and private companies
in the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year, the Group did not

effect any material additional new investments.

Trading of metallic products

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group commenced
sales and purchases of metallic products in the PRC in order to

further expand the Group’s source of income.

Other businesses

The Group operated a winery, namely The Winery at la Grange,
at the State of Virginia, the United States, which owned about 5.6
acres of vineyards and is principally engaged in the production

and sales of wine and related products.

Outlook

Looking ahead, although the total number of visitors and the
performance of the tourism development business of the Group
will still be affected in light of the evolving situation regarding the
Epidemic, it is expected the business and financial performance
of the Group will not be materially affected in view of the
stabilization of the Epidemic in the PRC. The Group will keep
continuous attention on the development and situation of the
COVID-19 and react actively to its impact on the financial position

and operating results of the Group.

The Group would closely monitor the performance of the existing
investment portfolio held by the Group and would only explore
investment projects with promising development potential in a
prudent manner and carefully assess investment opportunities in

the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Tourism development

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s tourism
development business recorded revenue of approximately
RMB97.3 million (2019: RMB138.2 million), representing a
decrease by 29.6% when compared with the corresponding year
of 2019. At the beginning of the outbreak of the Epidemic, in
particular as a result of the temporary closure of Hengshan
Mountain scenic during first quarter of 2020, the business and
financial performance of the tourism development business was
adversely affected, and the revenue from the tourism development
business was dropped by 62.9% during the first half of 2020, as
compared to the corresponding period in 2019. As the Epidemic
stabilized in the PRC, the decrease in the revenue was narrowed to
4.1% during the second half of 2020.

Investment holding

The segment total assets of investment holding business slightly
decreased by 0.9% to approximately RMB2,745.3 million as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB2,769.8 million). For the year ended
31 December 2020, revenue from the investment holding business,
which represented management fee income from the private
equity funds managed by the Group, amounted to approximately
RMB6.8 million (2019: RMB5.8 million).

Trading of metallic products

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue generated from
the Group’s trading of metallic products business amounted to

approximately RMB353.0 million.

Overall performance

During the year, the outbreak of COVID-19 had impact on
the business environment in the PRC, and the operating
results of the Group were affected. The Group recorded total
revenue of approximately RMB468.4 million (2019: RMB155.2
million), representing an increase of 201.8% compared with the
corresponding year of 2019. Such increase was mainly attributable
to the commencement of metallic products business during
the year and the Group recorded sales of metallic products of
approximately RMB353.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The gross profit was decreased by 27.7% to approximately
RMB71.1 million (2019: RMB98.4 million), as the gross profit
generated. from the Group’s tourism development business was
affected by outbreak of COVID-19, in particular, temporary
closure of Hengshan Mountain scenic area during first quarter
in 2020 which led to further decrease in fare revenue of the

environmental shuttle bus service.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Overall performance (Continued)

In September 2020, the disposal of 60% equity interest in Chuanqi
Tourism, a then subsidiary of the Company was completed and
the Group recorded a gain on disposal of approximately RMB92.5

million.

Jade Bird Fire, a then subsidiary of the Company, became an
associate of the Group with effect from the completion of the
listing of the shares of Jade Bird Fire on The Small and Medium
Enterprises Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (the “A
Share Listing”) in August 2019 and has since been accounted
for using the equity method of accounting as the continuing
operations of the Group, while the results of Jade Bird Fire before
the completion of the spin-off of Jade Bird Fire was presented
as discontinued operations in 2019. During the year ended 31
December 2020, as a result of the issue of restricted shares by
Jade Bird Fire to its employees, the equity interest in Jade Bird
Fire held by the Company was diluted from approximately 38.3%
to approximately 37.3% and the Company recorded a loss on
deemed partial disposal of an associate of approximately RMB26.8

million for the year.

During the reporting year, the Group recorded a decrease in
profit attributable to the owners of the Company by 95.4%
to approximately RMB64.2 million, as compared to a profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
RMB1,402.4 million for the corresponding period in 2019. Such
decrease was mainly attributable to the absence of recognition
of a gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2020, as compared to the recognition of a gain on
deemed disposal of subsidiaries of approximately RMB1,348.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 upon the
completion of the A Share Listing of Jade Bird Fire in August
2019.

Financial position

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s financial position remained
solid and the Group’s current ratio (being ratio of current assets
and current liabilities) and the gearing ratio (being measured by
total loans and lease liabilities to total equity), which are the key
position and financial leverage, were 2.89 (2019: 2.20) and 15.4%
(2019: 9.8%) respectively. Increase in the gearing ratio was mainly
due to the raise of additional bank and other loans for business

operations during the year.

o BEL ) B g

S 5 el e (76)
%18 4 B (40

MG R (RAREFZIEAR) 2
60% M RE C i — & AR L H SR A%
] Sk 15 I 2 Wi A9 N IR HE9,250 85 o

HISHB (AAREREZHEAR) AS R
TH B Oy =& — UVE N A FE Y52 5
FE N ZE AR B (T AR BTl ) 58 1% B A
LN /NI A =R AYE R A R (B
BB AR ET IR > M F R TH B
AT S TH B 2 37 78 BUAT Y S A =2 — L
EREY O EIEREETY - B2 T T
A= IRAERE > BN E ST R
BT Z BRI 0y - AN R FA 0 H 5 H B
JBEHE B £938.3 % W1 2 £987.3% > 1 AR /A Rk
A TR B AR AR A T8 40 1 B — T W 4 2 R 09 s 1R
# N R 2,680 8 G ©

AR > AR B R AR AN WA ARG
T A8 0 95.4% 2 4 N R ¥56,420 8 0 > 1
Fr— JUAF [R) 1 B0 Sk A5 A 2 ) A A A s )
£ N R #14.02408 00 » %84 T F R B R
F R CFEFL A=+ B ILEEE
TERBAAE B Mg A R ks > mkE =%
—NWETZA=Z T —HILFEEAEE BB W
AR BT R — U\ SRR 0 TERR A
A H 5 B 2 W (A Wi 2 A N I W 13,4844 0T ©

o 5 2R
RoEBE+—H =t — H - AR
FRALETSAR L - S A ) H % (HD 9% Y
S U0 4 L ) A B (B
L 2 1 A A A 3 A B AN 252,80
(ZF—JUE  2.20) K15.4% (Z=F — JUAF -
0.8%) T A7 B <5k Sl 7 03 5 K
RS I 09 9 SR« R R %
S 0 7 g A P 7 S T 2 S A A1
ST A B 2K o

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR




Management Discussion and Analysis
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s main core businesses are subject to the several key
risks and uncertainties including, and among others, operating

risks and financial risks.

Operational risks

The Group faces several potential operational risks including
relaxation of the local authority’s policy to other service providers
to operate the shuttle bus service, the industrial policy risks and
the implementation of administrative measures by government
in relation to the Epidemic. If there is unfavorable adjustment
of the local authority’s policy, the industrial policies and the
administrative measures in relation to the tourism industry in
the PRC, there may have an adverse effect on the Group’s net
profit. The Board always monitors market situation in order to
react promptly over any potential risks. The Board meets and
discusses with directors of subsidiaries frequently to keep track of
their situations so that it can adjust segmental strategies timely.
The Group has already set out strategies including quality control
enhancement, stringent cost control and business diversification

to deal with different kinds of operational risks.

Financial risks

The Group also exposes to a variety of financial risks including
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

interest rate risk.

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), US dollars (“USD”),
Canadian dollars (“CAD”), Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
The Group does not formulate a foreign currency hedging policy
at present as turnover, most of the costs and operating expenses
are denominated in RMB and they are automatically hedged,
leaving limited currency risk. The Group closely monitors its
exposure and will take measures to lower foreign currency risk

when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

Financial risks (Continued)

The Group exposes to equity security price risk as listed equity
securities included in its financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. The
change in fair value of the listed securities will lead to the
fluctuation of fair value changes of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income included in the Group’s
total comprehensive income. The Group has not mitigated its

price risk arising from the listed equity securities.

The Group exposes to certain credit risk coming from certain
financial assets held by the Group, which include cash and cash
equivalents, and receivables. The Group’s tourism development
segment mainly generated fare revenue from environmental
shuttle bus service and the credit risk was low. During the
year under review, the Group commenced sales and purchases
of metallic products and recorded trade receivables as at 31
December 2020. An increase in trade receivables will result in a
decrease in the Group’s operating cash flow and an increase in
the Group’s operating risk. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding trade receivables and monitors credit
terms of the customers. Senior management of each subsidiary
reviews overdue balances regularly. The Group maintains good
cooperation with the customers and customer credit is in good
condition. The Group does not develop particular policy to tackle
credit risks from cash and cash equivalents at present as the
major counterparties are either well-established or having high

credit-rating.

The Group’s measure over liquidity is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash reserves to meet its liquidity requirements in short

and long term.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank and other loans. The risk varies with the

prevailing market condition but is limited.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest
environmental standards and strictly follows the applicable
environmental requirements imposed by the PRC government in
its operation. For the year under review, the Group complied with
influential laws relevant to waste gas or greenhouse gas emissions,
water or land discharging, hazardous or non-hazardous wastes,
and use of resources. The Group strives to reduce destruction
to the environment by saving energy and encouraging recycle of
office supplies. Besides, the environmental buses operated by the
Group are equipped with anti-smoking devices and do not use

heavy-duty diesel to reduce pollution.

The Group’s main core businesses are carried out by principal
subsidiaries in the PRC and the United States of America and the
Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in 2000. The Group
strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations to ensure

sustainable development of its businesses.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group’s customers mainly comprised of tourists and pilgrims
and trading partners from business of sales and purchases
of metallic products. The Group is committed to provide
good-quality environmental shuttle bus services to the customers.
The Group has a business team to execute sales contracts with
the trading partners and maintains good relationship with the
trading partners. The business team is mainly responsible for the
evaluation of qualification of trading partners and coordinating
the relationship between trading partners, while the Group’s
finance department is mainly responsible for assessing credit limit

and control.

The Group has a close and good relationship with key suppliers
in relation to the operation of the environmental shuttle bus
services and business of sales and purchases of metallic products.
The Group strictly regulated procurement procedures in relation
to supplier evaluation and selection, and acceptance of purchased
products. In addition, there are a relatively a number of suppliers
in the market and relatively stable purchase prices could be

maintained.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 15 May 2020, the Company entered into the SP Agreement
with an independent third party and Chuanqi Tourism, a
then subsidiary of the Company, for the disposal of the 60%
equity interest in Chuanqi Tourism held by the Company at
the consideration of RMB172,028,880; and for the guarantee
fee arrangement in relation to the release of the Guarantee
Agreement. Chuanqi Tourism, through Songya Lake Construction,
is principally engaged in participation in tourism development
projects and its principal asset is the investment in Songya Lake
Construction. Details were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 15 May 2020 and 26 June 2020 and the
circular of the Company dated 30 June 2020. The approvals of the
shareholders of the Company in respect of the SP Agreement and
the transactions contemplated; and the continuing provision of
the guarantee in accordance with the Guarantee Agreement after
the Completion have been obtained at the special general meeting
of the Company on 21 July 2020. The Completion took place on 3
September 2020. Upon Completion, Chuanqi Tourism and Songya
Lake Construction ceased to be a subsidiary and an associate of

the Company respectively.

Saved as disclosed herein this section, during the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group did not effect any material acquisitions
and disposals which would be required to be disclosed under the
GEM Listing Rules.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s major
operations were financed mainly by the internal financial
resources and by corporate borrowings. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB118.0 million, which were denominated mainly in RMB, HK$
and USD.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB3,104.8 million (2019: RMB3,075.4 million).
The Group had total outstanding borrowings of approximately
RMB413.8 million (2019: RMB231.7 million) which consisted of
secured bank and other loans of approximately RMB355.7 million
(2019: RMB186.9 million) and unsecured other loans of RMB58.1
million (2019: RMB44.8 million). The bank and other loans were
denominated in RMB and USD and bore interest rates ranging
from nil to 6.9% per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s outstanding number
of issued non-listed shares and H shares of RMB0.10 each were
700,000,000 shares and 678,720,000 shares respectively.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2020, which
is measured by total loans and lease liabilities to total equity, was
15.4% (2019: 9.8%).

The Board announces that on 20 January 2021, it has resolved
to approve the proposed issue of not more than 400,000,000
new H shares pursuant to a specific mandate to be sought at a
special general meeting and the class meetings of the Company.
The purpose of the proposed new H shares issue is mainly to
provide funding to a subsidiary of the Company for undertaking
the business in import and export of integrated circuit related
products and introduction of related technology. The Board
considered that the new H shares issue is highly beneficial to the
Company by enlarging the shareholder and capital bases of the
Company and providing capital for the Group’s development.
Moreover, equity financing does not incur any interest expense
on the part of the Company and could restrain the build-up of
the debtratio, which will improve the financing structure of the
Company. The approval of the shareholders of the Company in
respect of the grant of the specific mandate to issue the new H
shares was obtained at the special general meeting and the class
meetings of the Company on 2 March 2021.

On 17 March 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a third party placing agent pursuant to which the
placing agent, as the agent of the Company, agreed to place on
a best effort basis a maximum of 135,744,000 new H Shares (the
“Placing Shares”) at the placing price of HK$0.50 (equivalent
to approximately RMB0.42) per placing H Share. The Placing
Shares will be allotted and issued pursuant to the general mandate
granted to the Board to not less than six but not exceeding ten
placees. The placing is yet completed at the date of this annual
report. Details were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 17 March 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income of approximately
RMB172.8 million, representing 4.7% of the total assets of the
Group.

Saved as disclosed herein this section, for the year ended 31

December 2020, the Group had no significant investment held.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Saved as disclosed herein this section, the Group did not have any

significant investment plans as at 31 December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in the sum of approximately
RMB490.0 million in respect of guarantee for banking facilities

granted to associates and a former associate of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other

significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to certain foreign currency risk as most
of its business activities, assets and liabilities are denominated in
USD, CAD, RMB, EUR and HK$. The Group has not formulated
a foreign currency hedging policy as turnover and most of the
production costs and operating expenses are denominated in
RMB and they are automatically matched, leaving limited currency
risk. The Group continues to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and will take measures to lower the foreign currency risk

when necessary.
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s certain fixed assets with
carrying amount of approximately RMB162.4 million (2019:
RMB10.4 million) and bank deposit of approximately RMB12.2
million (2019: RMB1.2 million) were pledged as securities for the

Group’s bank loans.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group considers people as the valuable assets. The Directors
are of the view that the Group maintains good working relations
with its employees. The Group had workforce of 473 people
situated mainly in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States
at the end of reporting year, up 5.8% since the end of 2019.
The Group strictly complied with applicable labour law and
regulations. Competitive remuneration package with medical and
travel insurance are offered to the staff. Adequate retirement
funds and provident funds are contributed on a timely basis. The
Group emphasizes on working safety and sets out proper safety
guidelines and provides adequate training to workers. Staffs are
free to set up trade union according to applicable laws while
the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory

Committee”) had representative from the workforce.

Director’s emoluments consist of fees, salaries and allowances, and
discretionary bonus determined according to the performance of

individual Director.

The Group’s staff costs, including directors’ emoluments,
employees’ salaries and retirement benefits scheme contribution
amounted to approximately RMB57.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: RMB217.4 million). Decrease was
mainly attributable to absence of staff costs of Jade Bird Fire
incurred by the Group since the completion of the spin-off of Jade
Bird Fire in August 2019.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

HE - BREARREEZ BN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ni Jinlei, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive Director
and the chairman of the Company on 30 June 2015 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 31 May 2018. Mr. Ni was
graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s degree
in computer software in 1987. Mr. Ni was the computer software
engineer of Shenzhen Taiji Software Engineering Company,
manager of computer department of the securities exchange
center in Hainan, general manager of Guangzhou Nanfang Jade
Bird Information System Co., Ltd., senior manager of Integrated
Software and Device Corporation (USA), software architect of
ABB Energy Information System (USA), chief executive officer of
Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., China regional director
(Young Learners’ English) of Global English Corporation,
founder and chief executive officer of Beijing Jinwenlang
Information Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ni is currently a director of
Chuangqi Tourism (Hunan), Beida Jade Bird Universal Investments
(HK) Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech (Cayman)
Development Company Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal
(Cayman) Investment Company Limited and Beida Jade Bird
Universal Investment (BVI) Limited which are the subsidiaries
of the Company, and the chairman of Beijing Xizhi Education
Technology Co., Ltd..

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong, aged 59, is an executive Director and the
president of the Company. Mr. Zhang is primarily responsible
for overall development strategies and the fund and investment
management business of the Group. He was graduated from
Peking University with a Master’s degree in science. He worked in
several administrative departments of Peking University including
the vice president of the Remote Sensing and Geographic
Information System Department of Peking University which was
responsible for the State’s focal science and technological project.
Mr. Zhang is a director of Beida Jade Bird Universal Investments
(USA) Limited and Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech (Cayman)
Development Company Limited which are subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Zhang is also a director of Jade Bird Fire (an A
share listed company in the PRC).
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. Zheng Zhong, aged 45, is an executive Director and the
compliance officer of the Company. Ms. Zheng was graduated
from the Molecular Biology Department of the School of Life
Sciences at Peking University in July 1997 and subsequently
obtained an MBA degree from the China Centre for Economic
Research at Peking University in July 2007. Ms. Zheng worked
for the Biological Engineering Centre under the Institute of
Chemical Metallurgy (now Institute of Process Engineering) at
Chinese Academy of Sciences, Department of Biology at Shenzhen
University and Shenzhen Kexing Bioproducts Co., Ltd.. She was
also an assistant to the president of SINOGEN (China) Investment
Company, assistant to the head of Genetics Research Institute
of the School of Life Sciences at Tsinghua University, president
of Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., vice president of
Beida Culture Group, and assistant to president of Beijing Beida
Jade Bird Limited (“Beida Jade Bird”) and the general manager
overseeing major projects. She is currently an executive director
and general manager of Beijing Jade Bird Yuda Information
Technology Co., Ltd. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. She is also a director and deputy general manager of
SBI-BDJB Investment Consultant Ltd..

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Xue Li, aged 62, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 30 June 2015. Ms. Xue attended post-graduation level and is a
certified public accountant and a certified auditor in the PRC. Ms.
Xue is a member of the Chinese Communist Party. She was the
finance manager of finance department of Lenovo Group Limited,
the deputy general manager (finance) of Digital China (China)
Limited, the chief accountant and deputy general manager of
Xinda Real Estate Co., Ltd. (an A share listed company in the
PRC), and the supervisor of Xishui Strong Year Co., Ltd., Inner
Mongolia (an A share listed company in the PRC). She was the
executive Director during the period from 20 May 2009 to 21 June
2012. Ms. Xue is currently the acting chief executive officer, the
executive vice president and the financial controller of Beijing
Aptech Beida Jade Bird Information Technology Co., Ltd., and the
chairman and general manager of Beida Jade Bird Culture and

Education Investment Group Co., Ltd..
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Xiang Lei, aged 69, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 31 July 2017. Mr. Xiang was graduated from the Stony Brook
College of the State University of New York with a Master’s degree
in systems management. Mr. Xiang is a council member of the
China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation and a council member
of the Gonghe Foundation. Mr. Xiang was the manager of China
National Machinery Import and Export Corporation, senior
manager of East West Bank, chief representative of Giti Group’s
Beijing representative office, investment consultant of Donaldson,
Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation, vice president of Beida
Jade Bird Group, director of Beijing Beihu Golf Club, and director
of Giti Group. Mr. Xiang is currently the director of Jiuzhou Yahua
Cultural Agency Company Limited, the supervisor of Tianjin
Zhinan Business Consulting Co., Ltd. and the president of Beida
Jade Bird Group.

Mr. Ip Wing Wai, aged 42 was appointed as an executive Director
on 30 June 2015 and re-designated as a non-executive Director
on 31 May 2018. Mr. Ip holds a Bachelor degree in Business
Administration in Accounting from the The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. He is a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2004. Mr.
Ip possesses more than 19 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and corporate field and worked in an international
accounting firm for auditing. Mr. Ip is currently the vice president
of King Stone Energy Group Limited (a listed company in
Hong Kong) mainly responsible for merger and acquisition, the
independent non-executive director of AID Life Science Holdings
Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong) and the chief financial
officer of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (a listed company
in Hong Kong).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Xuan, aged 48, was appointed as an non-executive
Director on 15 May 2020. Mr. Tang was graduated from
Chongqing University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering,
and is a certified accountant in the PRC and a member of Institute
of Public Accountants in Australia. He worked in Zhongxin
Coopers Certified Public Accountants in the PRC and is currently
an audit partner of ShineWing Certified Public Accountants
in the PRC, and has 24 years of professional experience in
investment, finance and auditing. He has been responsible for the
audit assurance, special services, corporate asset reorganization,
restructuring and listing of some large enterprise groups. He
was an external independent director of Zhongji Investment
Co., Ltd. and an external expert committee member of loan
review department of China Development Bank. He is currently
an external independent director of Shouyi Medical Health
Investment Management Co., Ltd. and an independent director of
Hebei Sitong New Metal Co., Ltd. (an A share listed company in
the PRC).

Mr. Li Juncai, aged 59, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Li was graduated from the Geology Department of
Peking University in July 1983. Mr. Li is a member of the China
Democratic League. He is a senior engineer of geological and
mineral resources, certified appraiser of mining concession and
certified valuer of real estate. He was an assistant to the head of
the Fourth Geological Survey Department under the Jilin Bureau
of Geology, deputy general manager of Tonghua Dongbao Import
& Export Co., Ltd., general manager of Tonghua Asia Shopping
Centre under the Fourth Geological Survey Department under
the Jilin Bureau of Geology, manager of the mining concession
appraisal division of Jilin Dadi CPA Co., Ltd., the deputy general
manager and principal mining concession appraiser of Wuhan
Tiandiyuan Consultant and Appraisal Ltd., and the executive
director of Heilongjiang Province Huan Cheng Mineral Resources
Appraisal and Consultant Ltd. He is currently the supervisor of
Heilongjiang Province Huan Cheng Mineral Resources Appraisal
and Consultant Ltd..

Mr. Li Chonghua, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2015. Mr. Li is a member of
the Chinese Communist Party. He is a post-graduate, qualified
as economist, and holds a practicing certificate of securities
practitioner. He was the deputy chief economist, the director
of the integrated plan unit and the director of reformation of
Beijing Chemical Second Plant. He was the board secretary and
the director of securities department of Beijing Chemical Second
Plant Co., Ltd.. He was seconded to listed company regulatory

department of China Securities Regulatory Commission.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Shen Wei, aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 31 May 2018, Mr. Shen was graduated
from the department of precision instruments of the Tsinghua
University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1985. Mr.
Shen co-founded “CIWEEK” and served as the first chief editor
in 1998, who has made contribution to the enlightenment
and development of internet in the PRC. He then co-founded
the website, namely “eNet” and Yinhe Liandong Information
Technology Company, and has extensive experience in internet
strategy, products and operations. Mr. Shen has dozens of
patented inventions in the field of two-dimensional code
technology. In 2015, Mr. Shen established Beijing Dama
Technology Co., Ltd. to focus on the application of innovative QR
code technology, especially the basic technology and application
in the field of secure QR code and multi-screen interaction.
Mr. Shen has worked for Beijing Institute of Optoelectronics
Technology, Beijing office of East Asiatic Company, Beijing
Changwei Technology Development Co., Ltd., CIWEEKLY, Yinhe
Liandong Information Technology Company, Beijing Huayu
Xinma Technology Co., Ltd., etc.. He is currently the founder and
chief executive officer of Beijing Dama Technology Co., Ltd..

CHIEF SCIENTIST

Professor Wang Yangyuan, aged 87, was appointed as the
Chief Scientist of the Company in May 2000. Professor Wang is
responsible for overall technological research and development
and monitoring the investment in Semiconductor Manufacturing

International Corporation.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Fan Yimin, aged 63, is the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee. Mr. Fan was graduated from Zhejiang University with
a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language in 1981. Mr. Fan worked
in the liaison office of the people’s government of Zhejiang
Province, Zhejiang Foreign Trade Company and Zhejiang Qujiang
Industrial Company. He is currently a member of the management
committee of Lingyin Temple in Hangzhou, president of
Hangzhou Branch of the School of Chinese Culture and an
executive president of Beida Jade Bird, the chairman and general
manager of Beijing Beida Educational Investment Co., Ltd., the
director of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd.,
and the chairman and general manager of Beijing Beida Online
Network Co., Ltd..
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SUPERVISORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ouyang Zishi, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
Supervisor on 30 June 2015. Mr. Ouyang worked for Beijing
Pastry Factory, the Association of Culture and Arts in Beijing, the
Audiovisual Press of the Bureau of Culture in Beijing and the
Beijing Television. Mr. Ouyang was the director and producer of
“KI&HE”, a TV series, and the column director and producer
of “HIAE K", a TV program. Mr. Ouyang is currently the
executive director and the legal representative of Beijing Evercare

Shichiku Medical Beauty Clinic Company Limited.

Mr. Pan Yudong, aged 51, was appointed as a Supervisor on 31
May 2018, Mr. Pan is a senior engineer (professor level), and was
graduated from department of computer science and technology
of Tsinghua University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in
July 1990. He has worked for Taiji Computer Company, Shenzhen
Taiji Software Company, Taiji-DEC Software Center, Beijing
Tiankeyi Technology Co., Ltd., Taiji United Laboratories of
Ministry of Information Industry, Beijing Hengdefang Company,
Anshi Internet Security (China) Co., Ltd., Beijing Qiming
Xingchen Information Security Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing
Yongxin Zhicheng Technology Co., Ltd., Harbin Antiy Technology
Group Co., Ltd., etc.. Mr. Pan is currently the chief strategy officer
of 360 Government & Enterprise Security Group and the executive

Director of China Computer Federation.

Ms. Dong Xiaoqing, aged 51, was appointed as a Supervisor on
31 May 2018, Ms. Dong is a senior human resource professional
and joined Beida Jade Bird in March 1999 who was responsible
for human resources management. Ms. Dong was transferred to
the Company as the head of human resources in June 2000. She
has 19 years of experience in human resources management for
information technology companies, and is familiar with national
labor laws and regulations and human resource management

theory with practical experience.

Ms. Zhou Min, aged 45, is a Supervisor. Ms. Zhou was graduated
from the Department of Administration Management of Renmin
University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. She
obtained a Master’s degree in economics from the University
of International Business and Economics in 2005. Ms. Zhou
joined Beida Jade Bird in July 1999 and subsequently joined
the Company in March 2000. She is primarily responsible for
administration and human resources of the Company. She is the

employee representative of the Supervisory Committee.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chi Hung, aged 45, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration in Accounting from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chan has over 22
years of experience in finance, accounting, company secretarial
and compliance areas and worked for international accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants. Mr. Chan joined the Group in September 2012.

Mr. Wang Xingye, aged 44, attended master post-graduation level.
Mr. Wang has worked in Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited. He is
currently a director of Chuangi Tourism Investment (Hunan) Co.,
Ltd., Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment Management Co.,
Ltd., Ningbo Jade Bird Zhengyuan Equity Investment Management
Co., Ltd., Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd.,
Ningbo Jade Bird Liyuantai Venture Capital Management Co.,
Ltd., Beida Jade Bird Universal Investments (HK) Limited, Beida
Jade Bird Universal (Cayman) Development Company Limited,
Beida Jade Bird Universal (Cayman) Investment Company Limited
and Beida Jade Bird Universal Investment (BVI) Limited, which
are subsidiaries of the Company. He is also currently an executive
director and the general manager of Beijing Jade Bird Dingsheng
Investment Management Co., Ltd., the chairman of the supervisory
committee of Shengyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited
(a listed company in Hong Kong) and a director of Jade Bird Fire
Co., Ltd. (a A share listed company in the PRC). Mr. Wang joined
the Company in March 2000 and is the secretary to the Board, the
director of Human Resources of the Company and the chairman of

the labor union of the Company.

Mr. Hu Lushan, aged 54, attended post-graduation level. Mr.
Hu is a senior accountant, and holds the certificate of senior
accountant, the certificate of senior tax agent and the certificate
of Certified Management Accountant (CMA). He has worked in
Beijing Building Materials Millstone Factory of Beijing Building
Materials Group as the accountant, the chief accountant and
the finance director; Beijing Yiheng Decoration Design Co., Ltd.
as the finance manager; and Beijing Northern Electric Power
Engineering Co., Ltd of the China Electricity Council as the
finance manager. Mr. Hu joined the Company in June 2001 and is

the person in charge of finance department of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
Ef Ak

The Directors hereby present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is engaged in the marketing and sale of embedded
system products and related products during the year. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and analysis
of business review of these activities, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 5 to 16 of this annual report. Such discussion forms part

of this report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set

out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 61.
The state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 62
to 63 and note 37(a) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2019: Nil) for the year.

No interim dividend was declared in 2020 (2019: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 204. This summary does not form part of

the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set

out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of the bank and other loans of the Group are set out in

note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the Company
Law of the PRC which oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, an amount of approximately RMB562.5
million (2019: RMB562.5 million) standing to the credit of
the Company’s capital reserve account and an amount of
approximately RMB86.7 million (2019: RMB76.8 million)
standing to the credit of the Company’s statutory reserve funds, as
determined under the PRC accounting standards and regulations,
were available for distribution by way of future capitalisation
issue in accordance with the PRC Company Law. The Company
had, as described in note 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, retained profits of approximately RMB140.7 million
(2019: RMB22.0 million) as at 31 December 2020. Details of the
distributable reserves are set out in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 34.2% of the Group’s total revenue and the
revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers

accounted for approximately 76.8% of the total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the costs incurred
in respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 75.7% of the Group’s total cost of sales and services
and the costs incurred in respect of the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 86.6% of the Group’s total

cost of sales and services.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and costs
incurred in respect of the Group’s five largest suppliers were less
than 30% of the total revenue and total cost of sales and services

from continuing operations respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and

suppliers.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

FEE P R

BE X -THF+ A =+—HIEFE > &
ELE NS R NS N R N
34.9% > 1 A 55 [ H K & 7 AL Il Al A 2
[ 48U A £976.8% ©

BEZ-ZF+HA=1T—HIEFE 3
7% £E (8] g K AL T T E A ) LA A A 4R 19 Y S
I IR T 48 B AS #975.7% > T 9 AR 48 1B R At
JRE P A ) A A A B T B A B IR S A AR
#186.6% °

WE-F-NET+ A=+ —HILFEE > A
A B K AN A WA A 4 R AR
B R 2 A B SIS 20 A 4 A A SE S AR
DL Be 85 B B IR 5 M RA I 30 % LT -

B A AT T 8RN A T JBOR (PR
Prgg R A AN A B AT %L 1)
Sl 48 8 A7 A S T K 5 % AR R 7 2 i

i ©



DONATIONS

The Group had made donations of RMB150,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB120,000).

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors during the year and at the year end

are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ni Jinlei
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong
Ms. Zheng Zhong

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Xue Li
Mr. Xiang Lei
Mr. Ip Wing Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tang Xuan (appointed on 15 May 2020)
Mr. Li Juncai

Mr. Li Chonghua

Mr. Shen Wei

Mr. Shao Jiulin (resigned on 6 April 2020)

Supervisors

Mr. Fan Yimin

Mr. Ouyang Zishi
Mr. Pan Yudong
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing
Ms. Zhou Min

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Directors and

Supervisors are eligible for re-election.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profile of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 17 to 23.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Mr. Tang Xuan was appointed for a term commencing from 15
May 2020 until the conclusion date of the annual general meeting
to the held by the Company in 2021. Each of the other Directors
and Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the

Company for a term of three years commencing on 31 May 2018.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
any existing or proposed service contracts with the Company as at
31 December 2020, excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors the written annual confirmation of its
independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmation, considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or Supervisor of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Saved as disclosed under the section “Connected transactions”
below, there is no material contract between the Group and the

controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF wHE - EREEERITEANBR B &
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT HH PR By 2 BE 45 R IR A
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests (including interests in ATERTRESL A —H W R

shares and short positions) of Directors, Supervisors, and chief B AN ) B AT BN B A AR 4 ) sl AR g i
executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares B (G 26 5 A8 75 B B ) (138 25 I 30 6tk
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the B 1) EEXVER) 2 BBy S AR B B AR - A AR
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the RS M B0 9 26 35 oM T Bk A AR N T B RD
“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company it SEARRGEM b i BRI 25 5. 466 28 75 17 5 &
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to AR A B A BT 2 RE g (L. % HE 25 MR
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule 5.46 of the B/

GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the NSRS L
Company

Approximate

percentage of

total number ~ Approximate  Approximate
ofissued  percentage of  percentage of

non-listed total number total number

Interest in Shares of issued of issued
non-listed Interest in o H Shares Shares
Shares H Shares F LAl B C#fr
Name Capacity T RHKZ L HIR A% T by
4 L Wit < i He&i BEAE A I BAEA R BEAEA
Director
#H
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong Beneficial owner and 205,414,000 - 29.34% - 14.90%
k&L beneficiary of trust
Eafn \RfErEZEA
Supervisor
EH
Ms. Zhou Min Beneficiary of trust 205,414,000 - 29.34% - 14.90%
Jifg ERE N
;5

CE R AT AR AR A R
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)

Note:

The above Director and Supervisor are taken to be interested in the
issued share capital of the Company through their respective interests
as beneficiaries, among other beneficiaries, of Heng Huat trust (“Heng
Huat Trust”). By a declaration of Heng Huat Trust made as a deed on
19 July 2000, Mr. Zhang Wanzhong, the Director, Mr. Xu Zhendong
and Mr. Xu Zhixiang declared that they held the shares of Heng Huat
Investments Limited (“Heng Huat”) as trustees for the benefits of over 300
employees of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd. (“Jade Bird
Software”), Beida Jade Bird and Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics
System Engineering Co., Ltd. and their respective subsidiaries and
associated companies and the Company. Heng Huat is beneficially
interested in the entire issued share capital of Dynamic Win Assets Limited
(“Dynamic Win”), and is taken to be interested in 205,414,000 shares of
the Company which Dynamic Win is interested. Mr. Zhang Wanzhong is
one of the trustees holding 20 shares out of 100 shares in the issued capital

of Heng Huat.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules as at 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to
any Director and Supervisor or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors and Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER T TP T B oAt N 0 0y B HH R

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS tr Z HE & B e R

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2020, the following interests and short positions B ECIEET A= —H o REEER K
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the B AR 5F 33615 B AE AR 2 W] JE A7 B 2 M 4 B
register of interests required to be maintained by the Company T > R ER T AN A A R OO AT AR 2 R A
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: LR

A 2 ) 3 T B R BR B 2 4

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Development Co., Ltd.
TR B R R A

2N

&

Company
Approximate
percentage  Approximate Approximate
of total  percentage  percentage
number of total of total
of issued number number
Interest in non-listed of issued of issued
nonlisted  Interest in Shares H Shares Shares
Shares  H Shares C¥ i Lili gt C#fr
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity I L RHKRZ Tt 2% HIR A T b %
Bt/ 4 Wik gt e 2 B 4 E&  BATAR  BARAR  BATRAR
Peking University (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 14.50%
YN Seia L 5
Beida Asset Management Co., Ltd. (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 98.57% - 14.50%
IXREEREHRAR pEidl o
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 14.50%
System Co., Ltd. AR
JERIRE RH M RRARA A
Beida Microelectronics Investment (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 98.57% - 14.50%
Limited ZE ks
IXMETREARAT
Gifted Pillar Limited (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 14.50%
gty g
Rainbow Mountain Holdings Limited (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 14.50%
FAEERA R gyl A
Beijing Rainbow Mountain Sci-Tech (a)  Beneficial owner 200,000,000 = 28:51% - - 14.50%

SRR SRR SRR AR A A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)

2 S B B HE A N 7 ey B R B M
Ty Z HE # B R A (4)

A% 2 i) 5 T B AH B B 2 B A (4D

Approximate
percentage  Approximate Approximate
of total  percentage  percentage
number of total of total
of issued number number
Interest in non-listed of issued of issued
non-listed Interest in Shares H Shares Shares
Shares H Shares C# 173 Ll o C#f
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity Ll rHk2Z Tty A8 HR A e by 2 %
Bkt /B M Sk it 2 i s WMAEAL MAEAK  HOEAK
Grand East (H.K.) Limited Beneficial owner 110,000,000 - 15.71% - 7.98%
fRE (B ARAHE 5L ZiDN
Heng Huat Investments Limited (b)  Interest of controlled corporation 205,414,000 - 29.34% - 14.90%
Tk M
Dynamic Win Assets Limited (b)  Beneficial owner 205,414,000 - 929.34% - 14.90%
YBEEHRAA HREAA
Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited (c)  Interest of controlled corporation 84,586,000 - 12.08% - 6.13%
FHRBERAA Tk M
New View Venture Limited (c)  Beneficial owner 84,586,000 - 12.08% - 6.13%
0k Z:ON
Asian Technology Investment Beneficial owner 50,000,000 - 7.14% - 3.63%
Company Limited JE:E 2N
S B A TR A
Sun Hung Kai Structured Finance (d)  Person having a security interest in shares - 38,117,000 = 5.61% 9.76%
Limited WARBEAERZ AL
MEELHRAEARAR
Shipshape Investments Limited (d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 38117000 - 5.61% 2.76%
THERER
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 38,117,000 = 5.61% 2.76%

HEEAR AR

TS
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2 S B B HE A N 7 ey B R B M
Ty Z HE # B R A (4)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

A% 2 W) ¥ 5 B B b B B By 2 4 AT (4D
Company (Continued)

Approximate

percentage  Approximate Approximate

of total  percentage  percentage

number of total of total

of issued number number

Interest in non-isted of issued of issued

non-listed Interest in Shares H Shares Shares

Shares H Shares #1713 Ll ¥t ¥t

Name of shareholder Note  Capacity Ll [§: (/%4 Tty A8 HR A e b 24 %1

Bkt /% W Sk it 2 i s WMAEAL MAEAK  HOEAK

Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 38,117,000 - 5.61% 9.76%
B (F) ARA T

Allied Group Limited (d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 38,117,000 - 5.61% 2.76%
BafBERAR Tk EES

Lee Seng Hui (d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 38,117,000 - 5.61% 9.76%
Edin T

Lee Su Hwei (d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 38,117,000 - 5.61% 2.76%
ZHE Tk EES

Lee Seng Huang (d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 38,117,000 - 5.61% 9.76%
BRI T

Notes: B 51
(a) Peking University is taken to be interested in 14.50% of the total (a) R KBS BRI R IER L ERE

issued share capital of the Company through 200 million non-listed
Shares (representing approximately 14.50% of the Company’s total
issued share capital) in which Beijing Rainbow Mountain Sci-Tech
Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Rainbow Mountain”) is interested.
Peking University owns 100% equity interest in Beida Asset
Management Co., Ltd. which in turn owns 48% equity interest in
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd. which in turn
owns 100% equity interest in Beida Microelectronics Investment
Limited which in turn owns 46% equity interest in Gifted Pillar
Limited which in turn owns 100% equity interest in Rainbow
Mountain Holdings Limited which in turn owns 100% equity
interest in Beijing Rainbow Mountain.

RS A) (TG R R 1) i 8 b 3 A RE £ 19 2fR
JEIE LT B0y (R A28 7] B 38 47 M AR 48 e 4
14.50%) ¥EA A8 7 B 8 AT AR 488514.50%
MERE o db ot RE A LK & 48 A IR F
100% B HE » b K G ERE TR A S
At K& Bk R SA R A F148% B HE »
ALK 7 S R %A PR 2 Al A Lk
ME T IE A PR A FIL00% B HE > 1 -k K
T F % % /A B M Gifted Pillar Limited
46% i > [ Gifted Pillar Limited #E A % 14
e AT R 2> 7] 10096 e - 1 72 0 75 I A bR
N A b 5 % 100 % HEHE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The non-listed Shares are held by Dynamic Win, which is
beneficially wholly-owned by Heng Huat. Please refer to the note to
the section “Directors, Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests
and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above for
further details of Heng Huat.

(c) The non-listed Shares are held by New View Venture Limited,
which is wholly-owned by Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited.

(d) Sun Hung Kai Structured Finance Limited was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shipshape Investments Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited, which in turn was a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited.
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Allied Group Limited in which Lee Seng Hui, Lee Su Hwei
and Lee Seng Huang were the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust,
being a discretionary trust. The Lee and Lee Trust controlled
approximately 74.96% of the total number of issued shares of
Allied Group Limited (inclusive of Lee Seng Hui’s personal
interests) as at 31 December 2020. Accordingly, all these parties
were deemed to have the same long position as Sun Hung Kai
Structured Finance Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors and
Supervisors, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’,
Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered interests or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2020.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 28 September 2020, Chuanqi Tourism (Hunan), a direct
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the sale and purchase agreement with Chuanqi Enterprise, an
associate of the Group and a connected person of the Company, to
acquire a building situated at No.5 Guangji Road, Nanyue District,
Hengyang, Hunan, the PRC (the “Property”) at the consideration
of RMB45,370,000. The Property would be used for administrative
and office use of Chuanqi Tourism (Hunan) to cope with the
business development and expansion of the tourism businesses
of the Group. Details were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 28 September 2020 and 6 October 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, save as disclosed above,
the related party transactions as disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, which are required to
comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and Supervisors
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had interests in a business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group, or may have any conflicts of
interest with the Group pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group strictly complies with applicable labour law and
regulations both in the PRC and Hong Kong. Competitive
remuneration package with medical and travel insurance offered
to the staff. Adequate retirement fund and provident fund are
contributed timely.

The emolument policy of the Directors is structured by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to their functions and
contributions to the Group.

Details of retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the GEM Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
Ef Ak

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after reporting period of the Group

are set out in note 44 the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY
Under the policy on payment of dividends adopted by the

Company, the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth. The payment of any dividend shall be determined
or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its absolute
discretion after taking into account the Group’s financial results,
prospects, the level of the debts and equity ratio, liquidity and
capital requirement and other factors that the Board considers
relevant, and subject to the Articles, the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules and all relevant applicable laws, rules and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on pages

40 to 53 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

A separate environmental, social and governance report of the
Company will be available at the website of the Company under
“Announcement” section and the website of the Stock Exchange

on or around mid-April 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors or an associate company. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’, Supervisors’ and
senior management’s liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors, Supervisors and senior management arising out of

corporate activities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

On 22 November 2019, RSM Hong Kong (“RSM”) had resigned
as the auditor of the Company, as the Company and RSM have
not been able to reach an agreement in relation to the auditor’s
remuneration for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.
BDO Limited (“BDO”) was appointed as the auditor of the
Company on 22 November 2019 to fill the casual vacancy

following the resignation of RSM.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by BDO
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment

at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ni Jinlei

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
26 March 2021
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

R R

To the Shareholders: AN H

SERZFEFTZA ST HIRRE S A
Group as well as the act of the Directors and senior management EHGUAEFAAEE L BELEM D
faithfully throughout the year ended 31 December 2020. We have Fo # 55 B g A PG 2 R B o A B g ik
discharged our supervisory duties under the general principle 5 I REAT B T M A sr [P B W
of honesty and integrity and have strictly complied with the %) GEM BT BRI K AR A0 A 2 B o A
requirements of the “Company Law of the PRC”, the GEM Listing ERegmRRATE WO RERE - AEH
Rules and the Articles. We are accountable to the Shareholders Folg B 2 W4 o
and have safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders, the Group

We have monitored the operation and management of the BE

and its staff.

The Supervisors during the year and up to the date of this report FERNRBEARE H W2 EREMT

are as follows:

Mr. Fan Yimin U REE
Mr. Ouyang Zishi B Fs 1 1 5B
Mr. Pan Yudong TR
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing HIBEE L+
Ms. Zhou Min L) S un

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Supervisors RIE R A TR B G EiE &
are eligible for re-election. AT -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, we have held and four WE-F FFEF+_HA=Z+—HILFE - F
meetings of the seventh session. The following table set out the L B AT T IR gk o TR &L

attendance of each member in these meetings: B R g R
Attendance
Name 24 Seventh Session
BLE
Mr. Fan Yimin w—REE Y&
Mr. Ouyang Zishi Bk 5 1 A 5B R 4/4
Mr. Pan Yudong i TR A Ayl
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing T dy4
Ms. Zhou Min JA At 4/4
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

B e md

We convened the four meetings to review the consolidated A B S B VU UCEr ek > D il B A 4R
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December WE-F-NET+ A=+ —HIEFE &
2019, the three months ended 31 March 2020, the six months ﬁgigii H=t—HIiE=MA - é&@
ended 30 June 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September CERCEENAZTHIEAMEA R#E
2020, respectively. “ERENA=ZTHIEIVEA 255G Zfﬁiﬁ?‘:{

Subsequent to the year end, we convened the twelveth meeting of RERE B LEEETAMS T RE
the seventh session to review the annual results of the Group for ik FHAEREE _F _FFE T A

the year ended 31 December 2020. =t HIEFEEZFEELS -

As a result of the work done above, we are in a position to express TR ETARR » AR aH T RIEE S

our independent opinion in respect of the following matters: WAL R

1.  The first, second and third quarterly results and annual 1. AREER-EFEEREY - REFE
results of the Group for 2020 have reflected the financial ZEBRFEER  AEA AR T
and operating positions of the Group on a true and fair A 5 T (14 B 5 T AR IR L
basis.

2. The senior management of the Group has not abused their 2. AR R ARE LG A AT O A

authority to prejudice the interests of the Shareholders, the U e S ) T AR A A0 JBE R ~ AN 4 18] K iR B
Group and its staff, nor contravened the laws and regulations ZHESE > INVIRE SO R R A
and the Articles in discharging its duties. H

3. The Group was not threatened with any major litigation 3. AR REEAAT AT E KA AR E K B
nor was there any matter that we had intervened with or BT 0] 8 S A0 B A AR AR
threatened against the Board. MEH -

4.  The connected transactions of the Group were fair and 4. AEEZBEAZ S WE AT R
reasonable. No act prejudicing the interests of the Group has BUA R FE AL M A 1 91T 5 o

been identified.

We would like to express our appreciation for the strenuous RGN TARTEAEEGR 7&K - #
supports given by the Shareholders, the Directors and all staff to H e B TR S - I BOA R O

our work during the year. if o
BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE R B e
Fan Yimin R
Chairman E
Beijing, the PRC > JEE -
s — g —
26 March 2021 —F_—H=H " tg

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR



Corporate Governance Report
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FRAMEWORK

The Company developed a set of documents with reference to
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules to govern its corporate
practice.

The documents are as follows:

1. Code on the Corporate Governance;

2. Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors of

the Company (the “Securities Code”);
3. Duties of the Board of Directors;

4.  Segregation of Duties between the Chairman and the

President;
5. Board Diversity Policy;

6.  Disciplinary Rules of the Company;

7. Term of Reference on the Audit Committee;
8. Term of Reference on the Remuneration Committee;
9. Term of Reference on the Nomination Committee; and

10.  Written Guidelines for Relevant Employees in respect of

their Dealings in the Securities of the Company.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Securities Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. All Directors as well as
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
are governed by the Securities Code. Having made specific
enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Securities Code all over the year ended 31 December 2020.
The Company is not aware of any employee who does not comply

with the Securities Code.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities
The Board is accountable to the Shareholders. Detail

responsibilities of the Board are laid down on the Articles. Major

duties include:

1.  convening Shareholders’ meeting and reporting work of the
Board to Shareholders;

2. execution of resolution passed in Shareholders’ meeting;
3. deciding business plan and investment proposal;
4. formulation plans for change in registered capital and

issuance of bond;

5. formulation of major merger and acquisition plan and

disposal plan;

6.  formulation of job segregation and dissolution plan for the

Company if necessary;

7.  employment and dismissal of general manager; and

8. formulation proposal for amendment to the Articles.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements; etc.

All Directors are free to access to corporate information for the
purpose of discharging their duties and responsibilities. They
may seek independent professional advice if necessary at the
Company’s cost. All Directors have unrestricted access to the

company secretary and senior management of the Company.

The Board delegated the management team with the
responsibilities for the day-to-day management, administration

and operation of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Composition

As at 31 December 2020, the composition of the seventh session of

the Board is as follows:

EHG (H)

BB A

St Y ER

GZREHAAGWT

Date of first

o oL

Date of latest

Name Position Gender Age  appointment re-election
R 23 i

i B R FE BREHY HEHMY

Ni Jinlei Executive Director, Chairman M5 53 30/6/2015 31/5/2018

i &% HESE - EW

Zhang Wanzhong Executive Director, President M% 59 16/3/2000 31/5/2018

o o WrESE - BHR

Zheng Zhong Executive Director Fi 45 21/6/2012 31/5/2018

W HiTESE

Xue Li Non-executive Director F& 62 20/5/2009 31/5/2018

i3 FufrES

Xiang Lei Non-executive Director M# 69 31/7/2017 31/5/2018

HEH FUTESR

Ip Wing Wai Non-executive Director M5 42 30/6/2015 31/5/2018

LN FonES

Tang Xuan Independent non-executive Director M# 48 15/5/2020 N/ANH

¥ BYFHTES

Li Juncai Independent non-executive Director M# 59 21/6/2012 31/5/2018

A WAL AT E S

Li Chonghua Independent non-executive Director M 65 30/6/2015 31/5/2018

FRE WAL AT ES

Shen Wei Independent non-executive Director M# 58 31/5/2018 N/ANH

A BYFHTES

RGN A DA AR T BB - S
LB s A T K R R AR <

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.
Profiles of the Directors are detailed on pages 17 to 21 of this R RN A EREITHES21H -

annual report.

BlREEBEEZFENE T _FHEAA
THHEBME  HEAQFAMKR T = —F5
TR IR AF R RS R B - il oAb =
FZEMH/E T - NFLA =+ —H#
FE=4F - 2MERN S EREREL -

Mr. Tang Xuan was appointed for a term commencing from 15
May 2020 until the conclusion date of the annual general meeting
to be held by the Company in 2021. All other Directors were
appointed for a term of three years starting from 31 May 2018. All

Directors are eligible for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Composition (Continued)

In compliance with rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed four independent
non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
expertise. Each independent non-executive Director has
confirmed to the Company in respect of his independence
pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules by way of an
annual confirmation for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
Company continues to consider all independent non-executive

Directors to be independent.

Segregation of duties between the Chairman and the President

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a
balance of power and authority, the roles of the chairman and the
president of the Company are segregated and performed by Mr.
Ni Jinlei and Mr. Zhang Wanzhong respectively.

Board meetings

The Board convened 5 meetings during the year. Apart from
approval of 2020 quarterly and 2019 annual results, the Company
convened meetings and passed resolutions mainly to consider
and approve the ordinary businesses and transactions of the
Company. The Company notifies the Directors with sufficient time
in advance and provides them with detailed agenda and sufficient
information before each Board meeting and sub-committee
meeting. The Company gives at least 15 days advance notice
before each regular Board meeting. Individual attendance records
of each Director at the respective Board and sub-committee

meetings are set out in the table on page 47 of this annual report.

Directors’ and senior officers’ liability insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for all
Directors, Supervisors and certain management. No claims were
raised during the year against potential legal action arising from

their jobs.

i S g

EHE (H)
B LA ()

£y SFGEM E B AIEE5.05 (1) ~ (2) K&5.05A
> RAFRBERTUAB T IEHITHESE > H
Ho > — Z 0 G852 G g5tk
AHEA BA G BL2E TN - 2 R _FFE+ A
St HIEE B ERTEFSADH
FEGEM L 55 5.0006 » DA 4FE TR 7
A OS FTERR AR 2 85 By o AN F) A A
W B T IERITERRB AL -

E WS -E A RN

M AR VA F RSB A2 1 <P R 3 > T
LATH R 2 T & > HORHE e —
NHEAE o T BLAT O 2 ] 1o B 7120 e 76
it WA W B Sl DA S TR B A o R AR T
T BRERR > A0 m) E N LA A BT R
gy o o3 Bl R AR < A e A R R e A

ER AF

EHERE N B o BRI %
TAEFE o T — JUR AR SR HUL > AT
H BH B ol S P e R R R R A
RAIZHWREBRZS - RBTKERETE
kT B e AR A HELMEA R A
B TE R ] 2 o I 4R R A R
FERERE o AL FAE 28 R B D fy
GEMGHENTILH - A ERREHEF LS
A2 B (R At R O Bk 9 SRR A 4 R B 47
FLRY ] R A o

O N B H AT R B
AAFERESR S BE LA TEHMARR
SEAE T B BEAT R B o R R Sl 5 S T R T
REZE A R ATEME I R R -

b
N

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR




Corporate Governance Report
e SR e

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ training

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by attending training courses on the topic related to role
of independent non-executive directors in connected transactions,

and environmental, social and governance reporting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established 3 committees to carry out certain duties.
They are the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the

Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include monitoring
the financial reporting system and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, reviewing financial information,
and advising the Board on engagement and independence of

independent auditors.

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang Xuan, Mr. Li Juncai, Mr. Li
Chonghua and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Tang Xuan is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee had convened 5 meetings
to review the three 2020 quarterly results and 2019 annual results
of the Group and issues in respect of annual audits for 2020,
and the change of auditor and the connected transactions of the

Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
is accountable to the Board. It is mainly responsible for advising
the Board on remuneration policy of the Board itself and senior
management, advising the Board on remuneration of non-
executive Directors, structuring the remuneration package of
all executive Directors and senior management, and review and

approval of performance bonus.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Juncai and
Mr. Shen Wei and one executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang
Wanzhong. Mr. Li Juncai is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. A meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held
during the year to review the remuneration package of the Board,

the Supervisors and the senior management of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) and making recommendations to the Board after
such review; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors and succession planning for the

Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Board has adopted a policy concerning the diversification of
members of the Board. In setting the composition of the Board,
the Company will consider the diversification of members of the
Board from various aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments to the Board
will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The selection of candidates for the Board
will be based on a range of diversified categories, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
race, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board in
various aspects including professional competence, knowledge
and experience. The Nomination Committee considered the
current structure, size and composition of the Board could meet

the business development needs of the Group.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy
which sets out the selection criteria and nomination procedures
of a Director. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications, professional
competence, knowledge, experience, independence, other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the business
development needs of the Group, and the elements of the policy
concerning the diversification of member of the Board. The
nomination procedures of a Director include nomination of
suitable candidates by any member of the Nomination Committee
or the Board; evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on
all selection criteria as set out in the nomination policy; assessing
the candidate’s independence under the GEM Listing Rules in
case of nomination of an independent non-executive Director;
making recommendation for the Board’s consideration and
approval; and convening a general meeting by the Board to obtain

approval from the Shareholders.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two executive
Director, namely Mr. Ni Jinlei and Mr. Zhang Wanzhong and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Juncai, Mr.
Li Chonghua and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Ni Jinlei is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. One meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held during the year to review the proposed
appointment of Mr. Tang Xuan as an independent non-executive

Director.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

EFLZEG (H)
%% H G ()

HEEGORMBENREFTGREZ Tl 2
oo MBOL TR G 2B A R AL EE
AR A B i 2 oo b R B
LG A BRI PR - 4F 8 UL R B HH
SR HEKEE R AN HEE
AR IR AMEA Z IR AT P A R > 1%
N 238 Ry S R T 2 L HE B > I 0 R I R
B2 b Pr i 2 AR 4t o T IR R
15— R Z e e % > ELAR (EOR BRI
Al A UL R BE B R RE - HEK
B~ B0 S A o o AR E AR R 08R E pa
NZARE R Iy S G ok 2 R AR - 42
7B GO RS A B 2 SR
BB R AL B SE A~ A S A B
RAZEFCHEEF T HA RN - B
B AR AT 75 G AL 2 R RT -

RAZEFCRMEXBOR > JIEH
EREE AR TR Y o B S E E A
B > fR 4T BE B R R AR AR K
AT~ B~ BERE ) - Rk B B
Vi~ R A e T S R R Ja 0 ) FLAtR A
R LARESTREZTBERNEER -
EFERNRABFOGFHREAZEOREFE
T B2 AR EH RN
TSR P o P A LS AR M R A AN S R
B IEATE S ARIRGEM L 117 KR A A
BN B ALNE 5 R Rt R B R
Lo e 5 2 ph 2 S A B R R i 15 B R
HEHE o

RAZEGHAMMMAATESR (MEeFH
et Rk Erh e ) R =AML F AT E S
(BpZEfR A de ke ~ R34 RUAEEE) 4
Moo i@t RRATETNER - 4
ZHERFRNARN T —KEek > DEHEER
ZALE RS B AT E S -



Corporate Governance Report
e S iR e

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT 3 Rk A o
MEETINGS
Details of attendance of the Directors at the Board and sub- W E _FZ_FZF+_H=+—HILFEE
committee meetings, as well as general meetings during the year HRENFEREG N ZE UK
ended 31 December 2020 are as follows: 2N AR
Attendance
Audit Remuneration = Nomination General
Name ¥ Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
#HE HHZHEG HMERE RLEZHE B K &
Seventh Seventh Sixth Third
Session Session Session Session
HtE %t CYA T =
Executive Directors Hir#EH
Mr. Ni Jinlei il & & ek 5/5  N/ANEN N/AREA 1/1 2/3
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong RETEE 4/4  N/ANEH 1/1 1/1 2/3
Ms. Zheng Zhong W A 4/4  N/ANET N/AREN N/ARET 2/3
Non-executive Directors HHITEF
Ms. Xue Li MEEL L 5/5  N/ANER N/ARER  N/AREH 2/3
Mr. Xiang Lei JH A 5/5  N/ANEA  N/ARER  N/AREH 0/3
Mr. Ip Wing Wai KB E 5/5  N/AAEM N/AREM N/ARER 0/3
Independent B FHITEF
non-execulive Directors
M. Li Juncai e VW 5/5 5/5 1/1 1/1 0/3
Mr. Li Chonghua A e 5/5 5/5 N/AARE N/AR 2/3
Mr. Shen Wei VA 5/5 5/5  N/AREH 1/1 2/3
Mr. Shao Jiulin BE LAk B4 1/1 1/1 1/1  N/ARHE 0/2
Mr. Tang Xuan FE g e A 3/3 3/3 N/AARE N/AAR 0/1
There were 2 special general meetings held during the year ended BWE - FAE+ T H =+ — B IR
31 December 2020. PN SN
\g
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE Eda

The Supervisory Committee was set up according to the Articles W B R AR AN B B Sr o ZH ) ROR B B o
and is accountable to the Shareholders. It is mainly responsible EROITEARERAR A EEERT
for monitoring the operation and management of the Company as TEUA R #E S R BN B 2 AT B - DAB Ik
well as the act of Directors and senior management to prevent any HERE R AR AL R ~ A A B fR H 4

abuse of power and infringement of interests on Shareholders, the

Company and employees.

The Supervisory Committee currently comprises five members. ERgHMH L AREAN > EFAT R
The chairman is Mr. Fan Yimin. The other four members are Mr. etk > HERIU A B By R T A A - T
Ouyang Zishi, Mr. Pan Yudong, Ms. Dong Xiaoqing and Ms. Zhou WSEAE ~ R b R R o R L
Min. Ms. Dong Xiaoqing and Ms. Zhou Min are the employee T R AL R Bk -

representative.

All Supervisors were appointed for a term of three years starting A BEREZ Bl % — NERH
from 31 May 2018. All Supervisors are eligible for re-election. =t —HMBFAM=F TARRESAE
6 I 3R AT o

Profiles of the Supervisors are detailed on pages 21 to 22 of this R 1 O AR IR 21 H B 22K o

annual report.

Attendance of meetings i ok

The Supervisory Committee convened 4 meetings during the year. S B A A TR B O

The following table sets out the attendance of each members in TRESE WA B ZE TR

these meetings:

Attendance

Name A R
Seventh Session

%L e

Mr. Fan Yimin uw— Rk 4/4
Mr. Ouyang Zishi W15 1 1 SR 4/4
Mr. Pan Yudong T RSEE 4/4
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing HEBE X+ 1/4
Ms. Zhou Min Ja L+ 4/4

The meetings were convened to review the financial statements of BB e B 5 AR RS R -
the Group.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2020, the Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties or events which may
have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to operate as a

going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are

set out in the independent auditor’s report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, senior management of
the Company comprises 3 individuals. The senior management’s
remuneration payment of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2020 falls within the following bands:

i S g

HIERER

EHMREFHATRRARAMRE - R
FoREFTAZF—H EFTA M
AT o] FE KA B B D R s AT R AR

R A8 a2 B4 U R B -

AN ) A S A ST AL 15 26 3 AR 4R T B S R
Fiv B4 SAT ) A I SO 8 S A B A

T B 5 PR i

RSB BEF A S AR
AT BT RS AL o IMRE
SRS A E b RS AL
S 2 3 A I

Number of

Individuals

ANE

Below RMB500,000 Liv AR 500,000 1
RMB500,000 to RMB1,000,000 AN E#500,0007C 2 A K H1,000,0007C 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The remuneration paid/payable to BDO, the Company’s

independent auditor, and its member firm in respect of annual
audit services and non-audit services in relation to other
reporting services amounted to approximately RMB1,600,000 and
RMB45,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The remuneration paid/payable to member firm of RSM, the
Company’s then independent auditor in respect of tax consultancy
service amounted to approximately RMB36,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020.

¥ 3 4% B Rl

BE_Z-EZF+A=1T—HIEFEE - 8
B BOIR 5 R B L fth FFE % AR S A BR A JF
% R s B A I A A 2 ) A ST A% SR S
{5tz R H B BT 2 & 0 0l & B N R
1,600,0007C K& A & #545,00000 » & —F —
FHET A =T HIEFE > SBLE #ER
WO AT BEAT AR AN 7 E R 2 M8 7 4% B 28
2B T 2 4 4 B N R HE86,0007T ©
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS e S HE A

The Articles lay down the rights of the Shareholders. They B A0 ) 5 B R 2 HEA L A

include:

o right to entitle dividend or other forms of profit distribution; o B0y IR B S B A TE R 2 T R 40 TR 22 HE
A s

o right to attend shareholders’ meeting by person or by proxy; . BB B YR AR T I Ak 2 HEA

. right to supervise and manage the business activities of the . W A B ) SEH IO A LA o R
Company and to put forward proposals and raise inquiries; e 2 HEA

. right to transfer shareholding in the Company; ° A ) IRORE 2 HER

o upon payment of a reasonable cost, right to inspect and o AT AEHE A% AR REE T3

copy: P2 HEA

- register of shareholders; - il A

- certain personal information of Directors, Supervisors, - HEH B AKEK A
general manager and/or deputy general managers and KM R EMEANRZET
senior management members; fifl NE R S

- certain information on repurchase of Shares; and — IR R TER S K

- minutes of shareholders’ meeting - BORES g RL

Apart from the above, the Shareholders are also entitled to the Bk b SCHT ot Ah > R IR S DL T SR
following special rights:

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and e SR AT B IR 1) S 4 A R B O
concerns to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place A DL Ty B R B AN AR E R
of business in Hong Kong at 17th Floor, V Heun Building, 138 SEHLES o Hhk S AU B R ORE 138 9E
Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. EREL1THE -

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Right to convene meeting

The Shareholders are given rights to convene special general
meeting or class meeting other than the Directors. According to
the Articles, any two or more Shareholders having voting rights of
10% or more in the general meeting to be proposed can give the
Board written requests for convening a special general meeting or
class meeting. The requests should state clearly the resolution(s)
to be considered. If the Board does not convene the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of such requests, those Shareholders
who give the requests are entitled to convene the proposed
general meeting themselves 4 months after the Board received

their requests at the Company’s expense.

Right to sue

According to the Articles, the Shareholders are entitled rights
to take legal action against the Company, the Directors, the
Supervisors, general manager, deputy general managers and
senior management members. A Shareholder can also take legal
action against another Shareholder. Action can be conducted

through court or arbitration authority.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an effective
risk management and internal control system for the Group,
which covers four main areas namely financial management,
operation, compliance and reporting, and risk management. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Financial management

The Board manages the Group capital on the basis of net debt-to-
equity ratio in order to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximize shareholders’ return. Each subsidiary
is responsible for overseeing its own daily net cash position while
the Board monitors the Company’s own. Should there be a capital
need, each subsidiary is responsible for its own arrangement

subject to the supervision of the Board.

i S g
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Operation

Each subsidiary has set up its own control procedures to monitor
its operation including but not limited to working safety, product
quality, asset safeguard, cost management and environmental
protection. Finance department of the Company sets out general
guidelines on fund control for all subsidiaries to follow. There
were no material accidents, quality defects nor environmental

destruction incidents occurred during the year.

Compliance and reporting

The Board assigns the compliance officer of the Company to
monitor the overall compliance and reporting issue of the
Group. With the assistance of company secretary and financial
controller of the Company, listing supervision division and finance
departments, the compliance officer of the Company carries out
its duty to ensure that the Group complies with applicable laws,

rules and regulations as well as reports correctly and timely.

Finance department of each subsidiary maintains proper
accounting records and prepares subsidiary-level financial
statements in accordance with suitable accounting standards. The
financial controller of the Company reviews the correctness and

reasonableness of the financial statements periodically.

During the year, the Company published announcements and
notices within the time frame allowed in the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board also sets out guidelines on dissemination of inside
information to ensure timely disclosure. Each material transaction
especially connected transaction proposed by either the subsidiary
or the Company itself must first be assessed by the compliance
officer of the Company to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and GEM Listing Rules before further action. The Company
seeks advice from lawyers, financial advisors as well as the Stock
Exchange if necessary. The Board also sets out code of conduct to

govern securities dealings by Directors and relevant employees.

The Directors often update themselves about changes in
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The company secretary of
the Company also update any such change to the Board and the

listing supervision division of the Company.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Risk management

The risk management function focuses on market unpredictability
and aims at minimising potential adverse effect.

The Company does not have an internal audit department and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided that
the Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external risk management and internal
control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the annual
review of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Such review is conducted
annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope
of review was previously determined and approved by the Board.
The Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement
to the Audit Committee and management. The Board is of the
view that there are no material internal control defeats noted.
All recommendations from the Adviser are properly followed
up by the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time. The Board therefore considered that
the risk management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings
and other general meetings.

The Board proposed to amend the Articles in order to reflect
the change in shareholding structure of the Company resulting
from the changes in shareholding of the Company. The proposed
amendments to the Articles become effective upon filing with the
relevant commerce departments and industrial and commercial
registration departments in the PRC on 18 May 2020. Details were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 6 April
2020 and the circular of the Company dated 9 April 2020.

Saved as disclosed above there was no other changes in the
Company’s constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

BEIJING BEIDA JADE BIRD UNIVERSAL SCI-TECH COMPANY
LIMITED

(AERAL R RBP4 A BR 2 WD)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
60 to 203, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

Fair value measurement on investment in unlisted equity securities

Refer to notes 23, 24 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements and accounting policies as set out in notes 4(c), 4(d)

and 4(n) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has investments in associates, joint ventures
and certain unlisted equity securities of RMB2,619,248,000,
RMB14,436,000 and RMB130,794,000 respectively, as at 31
December 2020.

Certain of the associates, joint ventures and unlisted equity
securities held by the Group are engaged in the investments of
unlisted equity securities in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The determination of the fair values of the unlisted equity
securities requires significant management judgement in selecting
appropriate multiples from market comparables and in respect of

unobservable inputs such as discount for lack of marketability.

The Group appointed independent professional valuers to assist
in assessing the fair values of those unlisted equity securities

investments.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS(CONTINUED)

Our responses

Our procedures included:

- Evaluating the competence, independence and integrity of

the external valuers;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology

used by the external valuers;

- Considering the appropriateness of the multiples selected
from the market comparables and the discount for lack of
marketability with the assistance of our internal valuation

specialists;

- Checking the accuracy and the relevant of the input data

used; and

- Assessing the adequacy of the fair value disclosures in

relation to the unlisted equity securities.

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS(CONTINUED)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the

directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 37 A Bl e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE 12 SR R B A A B B R AR
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL T (#)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise TERPEF B EFTEABEITEFRE S » &
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism S T RE B o R TR R -
throughout the audit. We also: BEIR

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the . ik F) 0 Al bl R B R T A B

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Au Yiu Kwan

Practising Certificate Number P05018

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o o R B B L il 2 v A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ - H =+ —H L4

2020 2019
g 202 R
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wt &E AR¥ T ANRHET T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS R B SR
Revenue KA 8 468,414 155,232
Cost of sales and services B4 T MR AR (397,275) (56,821)
Gross profit B 71,139 98,411
Other gains and income Hobfs 55 R A 9 15,897 1,377
Reversal of impairment loss/ B 5 B A R R 2 B e
(Impairment loss) on trade and B| (HERER)
other receivables, net 663 (6,651)
Distribution costs o 8 LA (1,125) (1,048)
Administrative expenses TR (50,796) (52,478)
Other expenses Fofth B X2 (5,507) (2,146)
Loss on deemed partial disposal of an associate — HAE &7 i —[H]
W 5 TN s 18 (26,815) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary B — 0 Y 2 W A o i 39 92,487 -
Profit from operations Fet iyl 95,943 37,465
Finance costs g A 11 (18,184) (8,962)
Share of profit/ (losses) of associates JE A B A Al D (s 4R 3,643 (15,118)
Share of losses of joint ventures MG ¥k R (1,158) (895)
Profit before income tax K Fir 5 ¢ i ¥z A1 80,244 12,490
Income tax expense Jir 7588 B 2 12 (10,351) (37,666)
Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing AR H R BB RBEN
operations wA (k5 48) 13 69,893 (25,176)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION O A% Ik 252 32
Profit for the year from discontinued operation 43 H B4 L R HEH W
i 18 - 1,527,349
Profit for the year A 4 JE i A 69,893 1,502,173
Other comprehensive income after tax: At B BE % 2 T W 4
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: PEeENAHERGZHA -
Fair value changes of financial assets DL S8 5 A HCA 22 18 W £
at fair value through other (TELA R A H AR 2 T
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) Wt |) 2 W8 B 2 P E
BT 53,302 (14,837)
Share of other comprehensive income A B 2 ) HC At 2 A W
of associates 19,412 (16,308)
Share of other comprehensive income FEAG G 8 4 3 Ho At 2 T o 5
of joint ventures (55,151) (182,067)
17,563 (213,212)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AR E ik LA
Exchange differences on translating WA ET L R
foreign ‘operations (4,963) 10,580
Reclassification of foreign currency TABLAE th 5 I 2 7] 42 4%
translation reserve to profit or loss W 56, fokt 1 20 0 L R 4R A
upon deemed disposal of subsidiaries - (755)
(4,963) 9,825
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

f oy TR AR B LAt 4 1 L 6

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

2020 2019
e
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wt &k ARWET 78 N & T
Other comprehensive income for the year, A% A JE A 4 T WK 4
net of tax ChrB 12,600 (203,387)
Total comprehensive income for the year A A JE 4 T WK i 4 82,493 1,298,786
Profit for the year attributable to: YA A 47 i A1
Owners of the Company K/NE DN
Profit/(Loss) for the year from IR AR s
continuing operations EBMGEA (BH) 64,165 (39,849)
Profit for the year from discontinued operation A4 3 [ CL 4 1-
BB S A i A - 1,442,238
Profit for the year attributable to owners RN TR N 2
of the Company A JE i 64,165 1,402,389
Non-controlling interests IR 22 JCRE i
Profit for the year from AR B i
continuing operations S 1Y i 5,728 14,673
Profit for the year from RAEEAR G & &S
discontinued operation SEHHA 1 A - 85,111
Profit for the year attributable to R PEBCHE 4 ME AL 2
non-controlling interests YNGR 5,728 99,784
Total comprehensive income for the year B A 7 4 € 2 T W 5 A
attributable to:
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE 2 DN 77,473 1,197,255
Non-controlling interests I 2 JCRE i 5,020 101,531
82,493 1,298,786
RMB RMB
AR N
Earnings/(Loss) per share from A AR R
continuing operations FREMN OEH)
Basic and diluted (cents per share) FEAR R () 17 4.7 (2.9)
Earnings per share from discontinued operation  H C4% k58 % B i R 2
Basic and diluted (cents per share) SR R (B 17 - 104.6
‘.\‘3‘
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A MR %R

At 31 December 2020 A ~ & “Z4E+"H=+—H

2020 2019
R OERE —EF U
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i ANR¥ T AR T
Non-current assets I B &
Property, plant and equipment W~ R SR 19 235,136 154,453
Goodwill i 20 204 204
Other intangible assets HoAth 41 T 21 408 244
Biological assets W B E 22 2,462 726
Investments in associates S AT ZRE 23 2,619,248 2,731,853
Investments in joint ventures WESNEZRE 24 14,436 72,273
Investments in film productions REHLREZRE 25 3,500 8,594
Financial assets at FVTOCI DA P A At 2 T
Wt 2 W 26 172,839 108,943
Deposit for purchase of property, plant  ff 5 3 ~ Fi5 K a0
and equipment 4 52,343 -
Deferred tax assets I GE B TH & 35 6,334 7,211
3,106,910 3,084,501
Current assets i B A
Inventories ety 27 5,817 6,845
Trade and other receivables B 5 T HoAth W 2 0E 28 419,565 221,445
Pledged bank deposits T AL SR AT A7 3K 30 12,200 1,200
Cash and cash equivalents e RREEEY 30 118,020 156,511
555,602 386,001
Total assets MK E 3,662,512 3,470,502
Current liabilities R =R
Trade and other payables B 5y Ko HoAh E A i TE 31 57,141 59,402
Bank and other loans SRAT B HoAth B 3K 33 122,867 80,708
Lease liabilities GERES=E 34 2,769 3,165
Current tax liabilities it ) Bl I A 1 9,674 32,191
192,451 175,466
Net current assets it B B 363,151 210,535
Total assets less current liabilities A8 B I B £ 3,470,061 3,295,036
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

3 BB IR DL

At 31 December 2020 A =& “F4E+ - H=+—H

2020 2019
CERORE LA
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iR A R¥TF o0 AR T
Non-current liabilities JEW B £
Bank and other loans SRAT T HAth B R 33 290,870 151,050
Lease liabilities GERES=E 34 62,185 64,954
Deferred tax liabilities 0 AT ol JE A 35 12,170 3,661
365,225 219,665
NET ASSETS & A 3,104,836 3,075,371
Equity 45
Share capital Ji& A 36 137,872 187,872
Reserves B4 38 2,817,822 2,740,349
Equity attributable to owners of AN FHEA NS RE 25
the Company 2,955,694 2,878,221
Non-controlling interests IE e I WE 4 149,142 197,150
TOTAL EQUITY HERE 7 3,104,836 3,075,371

N R

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and are A E T —AE= ] N HEESESHOUE X

signed on its behalf by: MU ALREESE
NI JINLEI ZHANG WANZHONG
1l 4 7% iR E
Director Director
FH #HH
‘.\‘3‘
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
fo 17 B 2 5 ) 3%
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2“4+ "=+ —H L4

Attributable to owners of the Company

K aHA NEL
Foreign ~ Financial
currency asset at Non-
Share Capital ~ Reserve  translation ~ FVTOCI Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds Teserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
WAFHE
ALt
Rl
Al
Bk BARE  REEE  BERRE O HERE  KORE  ERER ait FEREE 4R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
MRBFE AREFE ARMEL ARMTFT AREFr ARWTr ARMFx AREFr ARWTX ARWFRL
At1 January 2019 BEE=5- 1R 197872 562519 152,577 (44,00 (45827) 16384 970800 170,285 900,180  2,630415
Total comprehensive income 45 & Fill i 4
for the year - - - 5860 (210,994) - 1402389 1,197,255 101,531 1,298,786
Acquisition of subsidiaries YA A
(note 39(a)) (H7E39(a)) - - - - - - - - 23880 23,880
Capital contribution from i it
non-controlling interests - - - - - - 751 71 846 1,597
Discontinued operations & 4B
(note 39(b)) (K3E39(b)) - - (39051) - - (10969) - (T0020)  (829.287) (899,807
Transfer B - - 2,604 - - - (2,604) - - -
Share of transfer of losson ¥t 648 4 E MLk D]
disposal of financial assets AL A S B4 HCE
at EVTOCLin investments 2 I & 2 R
in joint ventures - - - - 87,320 - (87,320) - - -
Transfer of gain on AT
disposal of financial assets ~ JEM 2T 2
atFVT0CI hEEL
e - - - - (1464 - 7464 - - -
Appropriation of safety FREEESHET
production fund - - - - - 182 (182) - - -
Changes in equity for KERERZH
the year - - (36,47) 5860 (131,138)  (10,787) 1,320,498 1127986  (703,050) 424,96
At31 December 2019 oy 3
+_A=1-H 197872 562519 96,130 (38,230)  (176,965) 5h97 2201298 2878201 197150 3,075,371
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At 1 January 2020

REZZRE-A-H

Total comprehensive income REFRHIGAS

for the year
Disposal of a subsidiary
(note 39(c))
Appropriation of safety
production fund

Transfer

Changes in equity

for the year

At 31 December 2020

b E— g A
(H3E30(c))
FREEEERR

BR

KEREREY

HoBoEE
(SRS

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AT HERR A2 B K

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8% — & R4+ =+ —H IL4EKE




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GaBleRa®k

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

2020 2019
e
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt iE N & ANRHET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BEGRH IR R
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax from continuing operations e R A SE
BBl i A 80,244 12,490
Profit before tax from discontinued operation & H £ # [l & & E K1)
bR B i i A - 1,563,465
Adjustments for: P
(Reversal of impairment loss) /Impairment G5 R Ho AR e IR 2
loss on trade and other receivables, net (R E BRI HiE
i 15 3 4 (663) 37,655
Depreciation and amortisation P18 K 4 B 11,563 27,515
Loss on disposal and written off of property, 8 R - R K
plant and equipment A e 15 - 274
Write off of film production T8 7 R AR 4,669 -
Gain on lease termination LS I Uk £ (9) -
Gain from changes in fair value less FE W) AT (S ol
cost to sell of biological assets A 2 Wi i (2,160) (4)
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries LA 5 I 2 W) Wi = (1,348,433)
Loss on deemed partial disposal of MU 7 B — [ e 8 )
an associate ) s 15 26,815 -
Financial guarantee income WS 3 R A (3,145) -
Penalty income Bk ON (603) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary A — ] A R A ) A WA 39(c) (92,487) -
Interest expense B B 17,927 13,218
Interest income B (639) (2,263)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) Ah pﬁ?l@ﬁﬁl@ﬂﬁ/
(W4 ) 1545 11 257 (23)
Loss arising from a step acquisition of 73 2 W Y S A ) A 2
a subsidiary i 18 - 5,594
Gain on bargain purchase ok 1 L 2 W i - (352)
Share of (profit) /losses of associates JEAG B N 7 G F)
JiE5 48 (3,643) 17,133
Share of losses of joint ventures JRE 1 7 7 b S R 4 1,158 895
Operating profit before working RElEEELED)
capital changes i) 468 25 i ) 39,284 327,159
Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories BB (38 1,373 (74,139)
Increase in trade receivables JRE s B 5 B ER (126,913) (360,298)
Decrease/ (Increase) in prepayments, deposits — TE AT ZXIH ~ 4 4 J H A FE i
and other receivables HIEW D () 18,351 (57,667)
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other & 5y K Ho A e A 2R RS A
payables () 1,876 (38,927)
Decrease in contract liabilities R AR D (5) (68,332)
Cash generated used in operations EAH /AR EE
Bl (66,034) (272,204)
Income taxes paid BT IS8 (29,276) (61,171)
Net cash used in operating activities AR5 B B B a3 (95,310) (333,375)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBleRak

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

2020 2019
e Jme 202 —F-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt iE N & ANRHET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES # % iff 8 < 31 & i &
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wi B J 2 39(a) — (327)
Deposits for purchase of property, plant WEE W~ B B
and equipment i (52,343) (6,375)
(Increase) /Decrease in pledged bank deposits T K 4R 17777 (#44m)
Wb (11,000) 3,800
Decrease in time deposits with original maturity /52|30 H##E =M A 2
of more than three months when acquired & WA A - 1,221
Decrease/ (Increase) in amounts due AT B R 2 WY
with associates (18 9m) 3,610 (15,266)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment S B3~ R IR AR (92,600) (54,236)
Purchases of other intangible assets Sl A AR (302) (656)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant 3 - RS Bk 2 B
and equipment 53K 7 -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary B — ] B 2 ®) 2 BT 1 K
Ui 39(c) 30,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets A DAY S fE T ACH At 4 i
at FVTOCI Wi i 2 BB E O RO - 19,272
Dividend received from an associate B — M B8 A AR 9 i B 23 26,856 -
Net cash outflows from deemed disposal BUME & W 2 7 2 Bl
of subsidiaries H 39(b) = (438,034)
Increase in investment in associates S - /NP g bl (6,010) -
Interest received TR B 639 2,263
Net cash used in investing activities & I By P R B4 (101,143) (488,338)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING R B 2 B
ACTIVITIES
Bank and other loans raised T AR AT K HAth £k 212,578 516,758
Repayments of bank loans B MAT K (30,942) (210,588)
Repayments from shareholders B AR R R 2 421
(Decrease) /Increase in amounts due to JREAH B N+ TE ()
related parties K (1,448) 1,687
Interest paid B AT S (13,865) (8,986)
Repayments of lease liabilities BRI E A E (6,970) (7,227)
Capital contribution from non-controlling IR I £ 0
interests - 846
Net cash generated from financing activities A HRE B 2 Bl EE 159,355 292,861
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND Bl B B4 % W WD
CASH EQUIVALENTS (37,098) (528,852)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes G T 2 5 )y 2 (1,393) 915
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EMzBERBEEHY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 156,511 684,448
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END ERZBERBEEMHY
OF YEAR 30 118,020 156,511
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) as a sino-foreign joint stock limited
liability company. The Company’s H shares are listed on
the GEM (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its
registered office is 3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building,
Yanyuan District Area 3, No. 5 Haidian Road, Haidian
District, Beijing 100080, the PRC. The addresses of its
principal place of business in the PRC and Hong Kong are
3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building, No. 207 Chengfu Road,
Haidian District, Beijing 100871, the PRC and 17th Floor, V
Heun Building, 138 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong

Kong, respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’ subsidiaries are set
out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred as the

“Group”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — first effective on
1 January 2020

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new/revised HKFRSs and
amendments issued by HKICPA which is relevant to
and effective for the Group’s financial statements for

annual period beginning on 1 January 2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 16  COVID-19-Related Rent

Concessions

The adoption of the above new or amended HKFRSs or
amendments did not have any significant impact on the

Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

3

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ¥
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) %
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not (b)

yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current*
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of

Fulfilling a Contract?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2!

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3 References to Conceptual

Framework?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 2018-2020*

HK Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand

Clause*
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. PRANF B I ([
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B e e A D) (4)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not (b) 488 A5 4fii 4 w9 R A Rk =2 Wi AP
yet effective (Continued) 16 5T 7 s B o e ) ()
Notes: B 5 -

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after ! HoE T - HE
1 January 2021. B iy 2 4 B 00 IR AR 3 o
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 e S S Rl SR 3
1 January 2022. B iy -2 4 B 00 IR AR 3 o
3 Effective for business combinations for which the date 3 AR R R
of acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first — H — H 8 AR B AR 19 5 —
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. AF I B IR 2 H a2 R
B -
+ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 4 AECZFE - - HE &
1 January 2023. B iy -2 4 B 00 IR AR 3 o
° The amendments shall be applied prospectively to ° W% AR A A H O R R AE
the sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual 8 S EE H O Bl 1% B 4R 1) 4R
periods beginning on or after or date to be permitted. WA B B R -
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as &l e T ER E 1N 15 5T AR A
Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020), 1577 1% 0 B 5 I D B ) R A i A
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the FEESHE (K ZF4F) [ FF R %
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on 1922 5 — (& 3N #6117 20K
Demand Clause KRN I B9 5357
The amendments clarify that the classification of ER TN LR SR
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights it B = U By T A R R A B R A
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period, TERIRER] > ST > PR AH
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations B A AT R A
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer 0 A% R R ) T 5 > I R R A
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in TE i 309 R B~y Bk > HRE A RD
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of WAETE c ZFE BT AT G A 4
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce IR ESE - DIWIHERS SR 46 B
a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that & RHE TR~ FCAth B B B
settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of HET BT -

cash, equity instruments, other assets or services.

CE R AT AR AR A R
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clause (Continued)

HK Interpretation 5 (2020) was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued
in August 2020. The revision to HK Interpretation
5 (2020) updates the wordings in the interpretation
to align with the Amendments to HKAS 1 with no
change in conclusion and do not change the existing

requirements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and ils Associate

or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there
is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
with an associate or joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, any gains or losses resulting
from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business are recognised in the profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains
or losses resulting from the remeasurement of retained
interest in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture) to fair value are recognised
in the profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint

venture.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. PRANT VB U 2 o YR B (T 7 v S
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B v e A0 1) (#0)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not (b) 488 A5 4fii 4 w9 R A Rk =2 Wi AP
yet effective (Continued) 16 5T 7 s B o e ) ()
Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended Use & A E R 16950916 7T A [ F

HERE 48 FiT 79 P 78 K26 )
The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost ERICHIESHE IR E/E By =
of an item of property, plant and equipment any L M TE H A A BR AT AT
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing i1 A ) A PG 6 A 1 T
that asset to the location and condition necessary for 375 04 b B R R L IR 7 AR A TH
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended SRR CE SN D
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling TEH B BT A5 3ROE R A % S TH H
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is B R AS UL 8 4 o R o

recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of B ik g E L B3 THENI IS FT A [
Fulfilling a Contract JAVEG 7 — A A

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a ZEBRT AT [BEITE A/
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the BAS | 645 B 5 &) B A B A
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can A o B H B B A AT LA
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract JEJBAT R K 3 B RS (A
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of B LRME SRIBIT A HEE
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts B B LAt B AS 1 23 S (AR JBAT & 4
(e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an Jor {09 W 3~ MBS MR TE H
item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling T8 B R L) o

the contract).

CE R AT AR AR A R
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform
(the “Reform”). The amendments complement those
issued in November 2019 and relate to (a) changes
to contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark
rate; (b) hedge accounting in which an entity will
not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely
because it makes changes required by the Reform,
if the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria;
and (c) disclosures in which an entity will be required
to disclose information about new risks arising from
the Reform and how it manages the transition to

alternative benchmark rates.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020:

The annual improvements amend a number of

Standards, including:

HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which permit a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts
reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the
fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph
B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise
a financial liability, explaining that only fees paid or
received between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender

on other’s behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend Illustrative Example
13 to remove the illustration of reimbursement
of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order
to resolve any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives that might arise because

of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the requirement
to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the
fair value of a biological asset using a present value

technique.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment on the above new standards, amendments
and interpretations and have concluded on a
preliminary basis that these new standards and
amendments would not have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in

subsequent years.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed

in note 4.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and biological assets, which are measured
at fair values as explained in the accounting policies set

out in note 4.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgements or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements

are disclosed in note 5.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEREFBOR
The significant accounting policies applied in the A B ER S MBS R R E ) 2 R
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are FEECRESIT -

set out below.

(a) Consolidation (a) #HAKH
The consolidated financial statements include R BB R LA AR W) R HL Y
the financial statements of the Company and its Bra@mE T+ H=1T—HIEx
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are VU 55 3 o WA 4 W] A AR T
entities over which the Group has control. The Group HEEAG TN - AL
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to (R 7 2 B o B B T R 35 T 5 [
variable returns from its involvement with the entity Z B B A AT A ] e 2 HEF
and has the ability to affect those returns through its S RE A H B R )
power over the entity. The Group has power over an S AE ] g d o R A AR 4
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it HEM HALEEAS THA
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. [IEAIEE T PN 2 5§ JCE
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns. HH BE T B 2 BUAT RER I - BDA 4R

WA AT OENE S -

When assessing control, the Group considers its TE WAl 752 ) BE IR > AS 4R 1 & 2%
potential voting rights as well as potential voting FLCVEEAE 3R D HE LA B FE A N L BT
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is HZTETERRAE - VEAE R AR
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to T FE AN BE L MR AT i 52 M A 7
exercise that right. THIE -

L3

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are

de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of
the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests (“NCIs”) represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. NCIs are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity. NClIs are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling shareholders and

owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to non-controlling shareholders even

if this results in the NCIs having a deficit balance.

4.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and NCIs are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the NCIs are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at

their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase which is attributed to the Group.

4. EREFBOR (4)
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(b)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the

consideration transferred to calculate the goodwill.

The NClIs in the subsidiary are initially measured at the
non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets

and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FEFFIBOR ()
(CONTINUED)
(c) Associates (c) WaEaA

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policies of
an entity but is not control or joint control over those
policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In accessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or

convert that right is not considered.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the associates in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investments over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associates’ identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss,
and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investments.
When the Group’s share of losses in associates equals
or exceeds its interest in the associates, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates. If the associate subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals the

share of losses not recognised.
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Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(©)

Associates (Continued)

Gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that associate
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to consolidated profit
or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
it that gain or loss would be reclassified to consolidated
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the
arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group
considers its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a
joint venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group has
assessed the type of each of its joint arrangements and

determined them to all be joint ventures.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the joint ventures in acquisitions are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the joint ventures’
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of
the investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FEFFIBOR ()
(CONTINUED)
(d) Joint arrangements (Continued) d) HFBEZHE

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

The Group’s share of the joint ventures’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s
share of losses in the joint ventures equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures. If the
joint ventures subsequently report profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not

recognised.

Gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture
that results in a loss of joint control represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that joint venture
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, the Group continues to apply the equity

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEFFBOR ()
(CONTINUED)
(e) Foreign currency translation (e) HHEHE
Functional and presentation currency T GE & 2 9 B
Items included in the financial statements of each A A ] 4B 2 B R

of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency,
and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (RMB’000) except when otherwise
indicated.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this

translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair

values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FEFFIBOR ()
(CONTINUED)
(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (e) HPEEI (H)

(1i1) Translation on consolidation (iii) #5 & iR H I e &

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation

currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that
form part of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit

or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate.
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Property, plant and equipment, including buildings
and leasehold land (classified as finance leases),
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which

they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their estimated residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful

lives are as follows:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land 40 to 70 years
Buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years

Leasehold improvements,
furniture and office equipment 2 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FEFFIBOR ()
(CONTINUED)
(f) Property, plant and equipment (F) W -~ W Kk
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(g)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The estimated residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are

available for use.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases
for which at the commencement date have a lease term
less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEREEBOR (8

(CONTINUED)

(g) Leasing (Continued) (g) HE (&)
Right-of-use assets 1 HE 5
This is recognised at cost and comprises: (i) the H ¥ AR MR AT - (HE IR
amount of the initial measurement of the lease FHEMEE AN SR LT A
liabilities (see below for the accounting policy to A RARN G FHECR) 5 (i) R
account for lease liabilities); (ii) any lease payments BH & H A B 2 m A R A AT AT A B
made at or before the commencement date, less any ASF R L AT I A AT A L
lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs (i) AL FE 2B AT o] B IR B K
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to A B (iv) R FE AR $8 R e R
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing A B E A8 B 43 i % B B A
the underlying asset to the condition required by the B IRE OIS AR A R LA - R
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are IF 5% 5 WA Y B AR T B E A
incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures I BR Ab o 7 45 18 3R 1 A A Xt
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under BENHEEE - WS ARA
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use A B 1 e LA AT AT 2R R AT B
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation AT o] 980 (L Ml 4 G P RE O
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any 7 9 AR B B A A o] 2T R B AR
remeasurement of lease liabilities. o
The Group also has leased a number of properties AEHPERBHEHAHES
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it SEW 3 o i A G B AT ) B I
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of SEF A BT T A R
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which FLAS 0 B8 L BRI B E o R
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset FHL 5 1h o JHL T ) 36 A A Y 1 )
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements W T AR B IR o i HE
are carried at depreciated cost. Rights-of-use assets are JEE % L A VB O 7 LAl T A
depreciated on a straightline basis over the shorter of AR BRI (DL 2 R ) I 3
its estimated useful life and the lease term. -
Lease liabilities HE Al
The lease liabilities is recognised at the present value B & 00 R R AR & B 46 H
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date ST 2 B A O B ERR o FH
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments B A KPR A B R S B0 A S A B
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the (fiff 5% A1) %8 0] 988 5 it o) o i 5% A
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that R L ) 2 > AL F R A
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the A5 T ) 38 B £ R 2 o

Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g)

Leasing (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the

lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.

The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FEFFIBOR (M)
(CONTINUED)
(h) Intangible assets other than goodwill (h) BB B & E

Intangible assets which represent transport operation
license, rights and patents, copyrights, computer
softwares, customer list and investments in film
productions are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives.

Biological assets

The Group is involved in the agricultural activities of
the transformation of biological assets (vines) into
agricultural produce (grapes). The biological assets
are measured at fair value less costs to sell at initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period.
The fair value of biological assets is determined based
on the present value of expected net cash flows from
the biological assets with reference to their growing
conditions. Gain or loss on initial recognition and
from subsequent changes in fair value less costs to sell
is included in profit or loss for the period in which it

arises.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at its
fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest. The
fair value of agricultural produce is determined based
on market prices in the local area. Gain on initial
recognition at fair value less costs to sell is included in

profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

The fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest
of the agricultural produce becomes its cost for
the measurement of inventories. Such inventories
are subsequently stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

T T 41 A0 9 7 i AR R
FHE Bz BRI - RRHE - RE B R
G- IREA Y G NC 3 (P
B R A AT B R A S 2 el
s 1R 5 M - % dhi A B0 1R e R 2
$HE 51 )5 DAL 8005 1 A Rt T (8 4
W

W R

ALY LR EE A
) R (R 2 RESETRE) -
T H) A ke R BRF B R A5 S H > R
W) & RE o OV (8 AR R
B YR E 2 A EIEAR AR
Yy & A 2 TN B e U T R B (E
T E P2 AR - Wi
il W8 K 9 48 45 ) A e B % IR 1
(L U8 5 A 5 ) o R 2 AR
By s 18 FLEE AR 2 I T A R 4R A
e R

JR2FE il 0 AP 45 O S (B ORI 2
B AR T o R S 2 AT
R NI S /A R =R R
RS A0 A e R R A T AR 2
Wi i )% 7 AR ST RE IR 2R A

Hifr EEHR S - AP R E
il WSO IR 2 8 B AR 7 1A 2 K
AAE o A B A7 B BEAR & A (5 52
A E WA 2 BARE A
M o WA ER TR (E /% IR W SE B R A
w2 A R B A B 6 T R 2 Al R
A o

=20

AL JORIERTE BRSO A PR A R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@

(k)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when

incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FEFFIBOR (M)
(CONTINUED)
(1) Contract assets and contract liabilities ) HFREEEGHAMR

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 4(x) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become

unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a

net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest

accrued under the effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FHEEGFIBOR ()

(CONTINUED)

(m) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

(m) i TR 2 i & &%k a2

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVIPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the financial assets.

Equaity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or

FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as interest.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(0)

(p)

(q)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using effective

interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash

and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and

equity instruments are set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

(i)

(1)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as
a financial liability at the time the guarantee is
issued. The liability is initially measured at fair

value and subsequently at the higher of:

- the amount determined in accordance with
the ECL model under HKFRS 9; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised in accordance with the

principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined based on the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument
and the payments that would be required without
the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations. Where guarantees in relation to loans
or other payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of

the investment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

(r)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
(i22) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(iv) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.

Revenues from manufacture and sale of a range of
embedded system products and related products
is recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customers, the customers have full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been delivered to the specific

location.

Revenue from the sale of metallic products, wine and
related products is recognised when the Group sells the

products to the customer.
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B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from management service income is
recognised when the services are rendered to the

customer.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is

required before the payment is due.

Revenue from the travel and leisure service is
recognised when the services are rendered to the

customer.

Income from investments in film productions is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement to such
payments has been established, subject to the terms of

the relevant agreements.

The Group has determined that for contracts with
customers under construction contracts, there may be
one or more than one performance obligation, which
include the provision of service and the construction of
infrastructure. For the provision of service, the Group
has determined that the customers simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits of the Group’s
performance and thus the Group concludes that
the service should be recognised overtime. For the
performance obligation related to the construction
contract, the Group determines that the customers
controls all the work in progress as the infrastructure
is being constructed, in the course of the construction,
the work in progress is being enhanced during the
terms of the contracts. Therefore, revenue from
these contracts are recognised over time. Uninvoiced

amounts are presented as contract assets.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment are established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the

Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves

the payment of termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FEFFIBOR ()
(CONTINUED)
(t) Borrowing costs (t) fEERA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is
the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying

asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be

received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of

the asset to be recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FEFFIBOR ()
(CONTINUED)
(v) Taxation (Continued) (v) Bi¥E (#)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating-unit
(“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value

less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(W)

(x)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/

CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse

the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the

respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value

of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group’s core

operations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)

or internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial

instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other

financial instruments of the same debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

4.

B G BOR ()

(x)

Y 5 A B A0 R A ()

17 B i K W 457 ()

HEW = > sFAhE Sk B 8K
i 8 LA A R 75 KW 6 m B 8 %
TIER

— M T RN () Bk
RGN SR EIPN
&1k

= EEE T B R R A S
RGN EREA

- TIRE B A EAT AR
B BAE B RE KR T W Y 3
B~ AR5 EAS IR DL BLA
B )

— B AKEE R E B
W EAL

- — s N H Al TR A
%%ﬂl&ak%iﬁﬁu s )

—  EH AN - AR
TR B s U OROR
FlsEd) > BEUEH ANJBEATE
W5 T AT 1 58 7 i AR -

i b 70 P Al A6 SR A A 4R
1? %%ﬁ’aﬁr}d_ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁsoﬁ fh
A B B B 5 LB B R R
VISR B K MRS 0 - R IEA LA
o B A B 9 A R B AT Tk
[B] 5] ] iy



4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to

have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;

and

(iii) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to

fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is
not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due

amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by

the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a

more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty; or

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event; or
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEREEBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
(x) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets (x) MEE R &G HE ERAE ()
(Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued) FEAE (7 B0 (E 19 BT I B (A
- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for — R BT Oy S IR A B
economic or contractual reasons relating to the RSP B S A R > BT
counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted MEXTCMHTFIRTE
to the counterparty a concession(s) that the TS 25 T 0 R R 5 Bk

lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty — BT T RERR A O AT HoA
will enter bankruptcy or other financial W E A

reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that — R E RIS BT R
financial asset because of financial difficulties. A6 T7% IR 4 T K o

Write-off policy 5 L

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is WA ERBUR 5 BN A R
information indicating that the debtor is in severe B IR K R AR AT k[
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of T BLAE A o B AN A
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed WO HEABERTR . AEEE
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy 5 B B o AR R A AR
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be Wi ] 2 3l 2 i i A R R (0
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s ) o5 A W] BB AT B2 B
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice 515 B B AR o AT Ao i | 2R 4R
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised fit I ERD. o

in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant

forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected ECL as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at

the original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the

debtor or any other party.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBOR (4)
(CONTINUED)
(x) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets (x) MEE R &G HE ERAE ()
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines
at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for

which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is

remote.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(z)

Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s

family is related to the Group if that person:

(1)

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel

of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the

Group or an entity related to the Group;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEREGBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
(z) Related parties (Continued) (z) BTy (4)
(b) (Continued) (b) (3
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vi) FZEBLBZE ()FH
by a person identified in (a); A Pl N 42 ) A ] 42
il 5
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) 2B (a) () FH BT sk Al A 1L
influence over the entity or is a member of HEZEMAE YR
key management personnel of the entity (or B Es & ACT &
of a parent of the entity); or ZBEAT) EEERA
BZHA ;5
(viii) the entity of any member of a group of (viii) A 4 B AR 4 | 2 B
which it is a part, provides key management AR AR
personnel services to the Group or to the B 2 B e e AR
Group’s parent, B Z AL B A
Close members of the family of a person are those — AN LB N L
family members who may be expected to influence, or HHOETE AR T RE Y
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the B NLHZEZHNLRBL
entity and include: M A - WL -
(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic (1) #EaNE2Z A A ek R
partner; JE AR
(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (i) 4 N 22 e e E JE AR
partner; and 2T K&
(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse (iil) %% ANLHZS AN LR
or domestic partner. Al fE AR 2 Z N o
L
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(CONTINUED)

(aa) Segment reporting

B G BOR ()

(aa) 2 EBRE

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial statements reported to the executive
directors, who are the chief operating decision makers
of the Group, for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and for

their review of the performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results are the same as those used in
its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except
that interest income, finance costs and unallocated
corporate expenses which are not directly attributable
of any operating segment, are not included in arriving

at the operating result of the reporting segment.

Segment assets include all non-current assets and
current assets but unallocated corporate assets
including property, plant and equipment, cash and
bank balance held by headquarter which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any

operating segment are not allocated to a segment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FEFFIBOR ()
(CONTINUED)

(ab) Discontinued operation

(ab) DR ILBEER

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a

view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if early. It also occurs when

the operations is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss comprehensive

income, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued

operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)

constituting the discontinued operation.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes

to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving

estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a) Joint control assessment

The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint
arrangements. The directors have determined that
the Group has joint control over the arrangements
as under the contractual agreements, it appears that
unanimous consent is required from all parties to the

agreements for all relevant activities.

(b)  Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(x), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and

supportable forward looking information.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
estimated residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned.

The carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB235,136,000 (2019: RMB154,453,000).

(b)  Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, income tax
expense of RMBI10,351,000 (2019: RMB73,782,000)
was charged to profit or loss based on the estimated

assessable profit.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(¢)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS
9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by
a number of factors, changes in which can result in

different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes
quantitative and qualitative information and also,

forward-looking analysis.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of financial assets measured at amortised cost is
RMB523,626,000 (2019: RMB325,201,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed. In
2020, no allowance for slow-moving inventories was

recognised to profit or loss (2019: Nil).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. ORI B R 3 Z A EH (8

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) A 5 A W 2 32 AR IR ()

(e)  Fair values of financial assets at FVOCI (e) LDIZNF 18 7 A HAth 2 i e Z B

&

The Group appointed independent professional A 5 1 7 AT ) ST B34 A Rl ET
valuers to assess the fair values of certain financial il 257 T DA PR 5 A At 24 T i
assets at FVTOCIL. In determining the fair values, the fi 2 B B 2 AT o R E
valuers have utilised methods of valuations which INFAERE - Ay (8B C 8 32 9 4
involve certain estimates. The directors have exercised TAGFEZ AN % - O A B
their judgements and are satisfied that the methods 2 A B - MG A (R TR R
of valuations are reflective of the current market HIi o
conditions.
The carrying amount of the financial assets at FVOCI R EFECZEEL A=+ —H
as at 31 December 2020 was RMB172,839,000 (2019: A R RN R T ¢
RMB108,943,000). BB EEZREME M AR

172,839,0007C ( ~&F—JLF : AR
#108,943,0007C) °

(f)  Valuation of biological assets 0 EYEEZGE

The Group’s biological assets are valued at fair value A AR T A ) A T (B R
less costs to sell. In determining the fair value less costs JRAAGE - EEAYEEZ A
to sell of the biological assets, the directors and the (B V3L 8 B A I - W R R
management has applied the income approach which T 2 2 JH Rk KA R
requires a number of key assumptions and estimates B AT - 5% 55 B B A T
to be made such as discount rate, harvest profile, costs AL FE A W 6 R G BR E  AL
incurred, cultivation area, and expected yield of the G BT AR A~ B IR K T
biological assets. Any change in the estimates may BOR o 5% 5 Ak 0 AT o B B W]
affect the fair value of biological assets significantly. AE 3 A W A A P (B R R
The directors and the vineyard expert have exercised B o T A A B B R AT A
their judgement and are satisfied that the valuation is S5 22 P BN AR A A (BT B
reflective of their fair value. F{H -

The carrying amount of biological assets as at RN oEFE LA =+—H>
31 December 2020 was RMB2,462,000 (2019: R R EZMREE M AR
RMB726,000). 2,462,0007C (—F—JU4E : AR¥

726,00076) °
Y
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), United States dollars (“USD”), RMB,
Canadian dollars (“CAD”) and Euro (“EUR”). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

At 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened 4% (2019: 4%) against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been RMB22,000 (2019:
RMB442,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain/loss on cash and cash

equivalents denominated in HK$.

(b) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity securities.
Management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. B IE B A PR (4)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Price risk (Continued) (b) A& B (4)

Sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2019: 10%) higher/

lower:

o Other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2020 would increase/decrease by
RMB4,205,000 (2019: RMB2,359,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTOCI.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high creditrating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the

Group considers to have low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group
as set out in note 40, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the

reporting period is disclosed in note 40.
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6.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(©)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 3-6 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the

Group’s different customer bases.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. ) b A P (4)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) f&EmbE (4)
Trade receivables (Continued) JEYG B 5 R 31 (#)
The following table provided information about the R HE AL R R
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade W & 5 iR R TE I AR B S 4 TR
receivables as at reporting date: Z (A5 50 R
Gross
/R R 220 Expected carrying Loss
As at 31 December 2020 +=ZH=+—H loss rate amount allowance
HMEEE IR TH] A8 A s 18 4 1
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARW T

Current (not past due) B4 (R adu i) 0% 126,913 =
Over 3 years past due s U] B o — A 100% 15,814 15,814
142,727 15,814

Gross
i E— AR Expected carrying Loss
As at 31 December 2019 +=-H=+—H loss rate amount allowance
T W s 48 R i T A L=t
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTT  ARWTT

Over 3 years past due i 1A e A = A 100% 33,442 33,442
Expected loss rates were based on actual loss TEHA M 18R T AR A 2 O
experience over the past few years. These rates were M A B w3 o A LR EAE
adjusted to reflect differences between economic AR > DA S B T SO i B2 0 [
conditions during the period over which the historic B 2L IR DL B R AR PR 22 B
data has been collected, current conditions and the DA R A A (8] 3 i K JE T 1 41 3
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected H KRR LAY B 1% o

lives of the receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. ISR B PR (4)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) f&EmbE (&)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement for allowance for doubtful debts of trade

receivables is follows:

TN T 5 B # (48

B W52 5% B 3 2 R B SR 2
W

2020 2019

SRR —E U

HK$°000 HK$’000

T 0 Tt

At 1 January w—H—H 33,442 111,394
Impairment losses recognised A A B fifE R 22 U (B e 4R

for the year = 31,836

Amount written off during the year AN FE RS > 4 5 (17,628) -

Disposal of a subsidiary H B — ] B e 2 T — (109,788)

15,814 33,442

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
include other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. In respect of pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, since
there is no significant increase in credit risk, any loss
allowance recognised during the year is therefore
limited to 12-months ECLs. The directors consider the
probability of default is low on these balances since
the counterparties are financial institutions with high

credit rating or with good reputation.

In respect of other receivables of RMB142,029,000
(2019: Nil) representing a cash consideration for
disposal of a subsidiary, the balance is measured under
a 12-months ELCs assessment of which a loss allowance
of RMB2,138,000 (2019: Nil) is recognised as at 31
December 2020.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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EAEEY) > h O E B R B I R B
F B R TR AR 4 BE A R
V14 A 40T s 18 8% 44 BRI 12418 A 7L
FEER - EFRLH > ZFEHHB
FO7 By B A 5 B AT AR B R
U 1 B AR A o

BOE M ME d ok HOAN RO
142,029,0007C ( — % — JU4E : %)
(45 s B — ] Bt JB8 2> A 1 31 4 AR
) M5 > &R 121 H 7
FEEEEMAF R HhOn =
T FAES T H =+ — HER
M A\ R ¥52,188,00000 (=%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

In addition,
RMB31,297,000 (2019: RMB27,065,000) which had

been defaulted for years, hence these financial

in respect of other receivables of

assets are credit impaired of which loss allowance of
RMB31,297,000 (2019: RMB27,065,000) was made as of
31 December 2020.

Other than the receivables balances as mentioned, the
remaining balances of other receivables are considered
to have low credit risk as the counterparties have a low
risk of default and does not have any past due amounts.
Impairment on these balances has been measured at an
amount equal to 12-months ECLs and loss allowance of
RMBI1,115,000 (2019: RMB8,856,000) was made as of
31 December 2020.

6. S )E ke A B (A)

(©)

fes B8 JR B (%)
H A 1% 4 55 5 AR 7 8 2 BT R
(#5)
I AN > Rl R TE N ]
$1,297,0007C (—E—JLF : AR
#527,065,00070) (H £ E A £ F)
m’&#ﬁwﬁﬁlﬂaﬁé
FEWME HhOh T FF
T A=+ HAER RS A
R #31,297,0000C (& — LA ¢
A R 27,065,00000) °

W T 4L 1 R WA R T & B A1 o LAt
JRE SR TEL Y B8 T A5 B a8 4 B
fHEEE FE BT ZELD
JEL B AR > EL S e AT 0] 3 3 B o
B AR R R 2 BE 2R A R 121R
HEWE S8 2 &8s 2 &b
CECERFEFTH=+—H O
fE H s B4 i N R %91,115,00000
ZF—JUF 0 AR 8,856,000
Jo) o

Movement for allowance for doubtful debts of other H Al R o TR MR B A 2 S )
receivables is follows: e
2020 2019
s e 322 —E LR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#E TH#ETT
At 1 January K—H—H 35,921 31,830
Impairment losses recognised AF TR B R 1) Y (E e 48
for the year 2,138 5,819
Reversal of impairment loss A 7R Uk {1 s 18 438 [l
during the year (2,801) -
Amount written off O s~ (708) -
Disposal of a subsidiary L B — H] B ) 2 ) = (1,728)
34,550 35,921
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. B IE B A PR (4)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) ¥ Bh B & L BE

A4 B 2 B TG R ) B R
T 2 W) & BT OR o MR AL
R B il A DA AR G

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

FRAEAS 4R 8 JE fir 2 I s LA 40
ok BLBE 4 Ui R A9 2] o B

The maturity analysis based on the contractual

undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative

financial liabilities is as follows: o
On demand Between Between
or within 1 and 2and More than Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
HRER K
—ERERE  EWE  WELE  ERLE it I T £
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AER¥T ARETT AR¥TT AR®TT AR¥ETT AR®T
At 31 December 2020 REZRZRESFZA
=+—H
Trade and other payables % 5 J Hofth 1 506 57,109 - - - 57,109 57,109
Bank and other loans (note) 817 J HAl 20 (Fff 3E 145,143 220,806 17,199 109,588 492,736 413,737
Lease liabilities MEAMH 6,667 5,691 16,566 77,635 106,557 64,954
Financial guarantee S 5 4 1k 490,000 - - - 490,000 =
At 31 December 2019 13 Sy g
=f—H
Trade and other payables 5 50 B EC A T A+ 20E 59,365 - - - 59,365 59,365
Bank and other loans (note) %17 & HL Al 2K (FF5E) 96,570 200,883 - - 997453 931,758
Lease liabilities HEARK 7,227 6,667 16,571 83,319 113,784 68,119
Financial guarantee PR 490,000 - - - 490,000 -
Note: Bk

i bl B B 43 AT A A R
A5 $RAT B FA B A T B SR B
— AR R B o R R TR R
T fUE+ A=+ 0 WA
T At B BRI oA B B A < AR 43 Bl 2
AR H5,297,00000 K A [ 5,876,000
JG o KETE A AR M BA IR DL > EE
TR By SRAT B H At < il A B I R K ] g
AT {65 JEL 7 7 R B IR K o

Bank and other loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank and
other loans amounted to RMB5,297,000 and RMB5,876,000
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks and other financial institution will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. o Be A B (ff)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) WEE & B ()
Note: (Continued) st © (48)
The directors believe that such bank and other loans will be 5 AT B SR AT S At B O AR
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates B i ok BT TR A S 2 K H R
set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate JiE g A G ABRR K RS BE U
principal and interest cash outflows are as below: T
Total
Repayable Between 1 Between 2 Undiscounted
within 1 year and 2 years and 5 years cash flow
RWEHEZ
—AEN R —EW4E WELAE Bl AH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETE  AR¥TE  AR¥TLT ARWTE

2020 RO 446 5,334 = 5,780
2019 —EF A 477 477 5,703 6,657
(e) Interest rate risk (e) I B
The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from A 55 1 i AR 52 22 R R JE B U A SR
its bank deposits and bank and other loans. These TTAF 3 S8R AT e HoAth B 3K - 35 4
deposits and borrowings bear interest at variable rates A7 2K TG LR T8 R B AT
varied with the then prevailing market condition. M 72 ) 7 By B 51 o
At 31 December 2020, if interest rates at that date WoE EEFH=1+—H>
had been 10 basis points lower/higher with all other fig w5 H 2 FZE N % L FH10MH 3
variables held constant, consolidated profit after BT BT A HC A TR R A AN A - R
tax for the year would have been RMB55,000 (2019: ERZEEGBRBERAEE D
RMBI1,000) lower/higher, arising mainly as a result of #om A R #¥55,0000C (—F—JL
lower/higher interest income from bank deposits. o NRH1,00000) > EEH R
TR AR 2 R B AW 36 e
H oo
‘.\‘3‘
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. SV L B AR PR (A)
(CONTINUED)
(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December ) HTZH=Z=T—HWE&mLTRE
bl
2020 2019
SR OERE —EF A
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN ANRBETIT

Financial assets: & R
Financial assets measured P B BUAS B 2
at amortised cost S5 523,626 395,201
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI:  PAZ T-{H FH A HoAth 42 T i £5
Equity instruments 2B EE  RATH 172,839 108,943
Financial liabilities: B A
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DA & AS 7 (6 2 W %5 B R 535,800 359,242
(g) Fair values (g) 2 °FME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets T % B IR L 3R I i 22 A B
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated PR R IS i R T (A B
statement of financial position approximate their HABR A P (AR A -

respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. APEHR
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an VAR T35 2 8RR R B g T 2
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction A 32 Ty v AR T T SO R
between market participants at the measurement date. The B SN ZAE A% o DUF A PE B AR
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair BASE TR AR > R AT EEMY
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs 7 = AR SF SE SN PERHE

to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 5 — JE i A h Z'K%@ﬂﬁQ?f%H
markets for identical assets or liabilities W15 th A [ 2
A R 2

that the Group can access at the

WA CRAETHEE) o

measurement date.

FEEAMYE : H - EATEEZR

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included LA B
within level 1 that are observable for %\E%Eﬁf’ﬁ'ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
the asset or liability, either directly or NS DN
indirectly. o

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or BEEEARYE 0 B A Mk
liability B2 A -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and A B2 1 2 B T R S A EUE O

transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the BRI H o e SR A0 R R

event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. ZMEERZ H P —EER
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B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AFEEE (8)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at (@ RTZH=Z=1T—HBAPFHEHRZ
31 December: W gz
Fair value measurement using: Total
RR TR ik L At
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
Bk F—H BJE B=E —F_%F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWFE  AREFT  ARWTE ARKTI

At 31 December 2020 RZFZFRESZA=ZF—H

Recurring fair value B A PR
measurements:
Financial assets W E
Financial assets at FVTOCI LA F(EFFA HAt 2
(note 26) Wi 2 S (HFRE26)
- Listed equity securities - FHiRAE 42,045 = = 42,045
- Unlisted equity securities - I b IR R 5 - - 130,794 130,794
42,045 - 130,794 172,839
Biological assets W E
Vines (note 22) HAH (P E22) - = 2,462 2,462
Total At 42,045 - 133,256 175,301
Fair value measurement using: Total
NVEFRRAZ B Fib
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
30 F—H FH H= “E-UE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N B NG S NI S N S
At 31 December 2019 NoE-NETF-A=+—H
Recurring fair value RN PG
measurements:
Financial assets W
Financial assets at FVTOCI DL FEGHA HAL 2 16
(note 26) Wi 2 B (FfF3E26)
- Listed equity securities - F A S 23,592 - - 23,592
- Unlisted equity securities - JF Tl A i % - - 85,351 85,351
23,592 - 85,351 108,943
Biological assets W E
Vines (note 22) HIE B (M E22) = £ 9 ‘-l 726 726
Total FoHD 23,592 - 186,077 109,669
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AFEEE (8)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b) MBE=JEiEATPFHEGRZEE
on level 3: B -
Financial assets
at FVTOCI
unlisted equity Biological
Description securities assets 2020 Total
VAo A EE A
HAl 2 5
2 W e “ERORE
Rk bl B AR 27 W At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NG S AR T 7T NS
(note 26) (note 22)
(Hf E26) (Hf 5E22)
At 1 January 2020 REZZFE-H—H 85,351 726 86,077
Total gains or losses recognised T F R 2 0 g 5
in profit or loss ® R A NEE® = 2,160 2,160
In other comprehensive income TR H Al 2 Tk 45 45,443 - 45,443
Decrease due to harvest Wi BT D = (271) (271)
Exchange differences e 51, 2 % - (153) (153)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-FEFZA=+—H 130,794 2,462 133,256
® Include gains or losses for assets ) i 5 W K F5 45 2
held at end of reporting period s 7 i B E = 2,160 2,160

Financial assets

at FVTOCI
unlisted equity Biological
Description securities assets 2019 Total
LA PR A
HoAth 2 i A
B “E-E
ik EilkES 14 e @3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRWET 7T AR¥TF T NS
(note 26) (note 22)
(It &E26) (B k22)
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NE-H—H 110,603 1,058 111,661
Total gains or losses recognised TR B FE 7 2 M 45 B
in profit or loss ARG - 4 4
In other comprehensive income A 2 T £ (25,252) - (25,252)
Decrease due to harvest e R i s - (353) (353)
Exchange differences HE 52 7% 3 = 17 17
At 31 December 2019 REZ2—NEST=A=Z+—H 85,351 726 86,077
® Include gains or losses for assets ) @ J§ i i 5 B A £ 2
held at end of reporting period B 2 s Bk 18 = 4 4
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B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based

on level 3: (Continued)

The total gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income are presented in other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
are presented in other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements at 31 December 2020:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the financial
controller and the Board of Directors at least once a

year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent

experience to perform the valuations.

7. APAEEHE (8)

(b)

()

BB S = i A P AR Z B E
HE (4

i At 2 TR A i PR e R 2 R i B

s TR AR B R A S A &
THT WA 4 T 2 A A T 4 T 2

51 o

A T8 5 T RR 2 Ul 25 Bk 18 AR A R
A5 A TR R M H A A T i 25 K 2
Fy HoAth B 57 o

ALEEMPKR _F_FHE T A
=+ —HIrRAMERF &L P
B wH 8 R B 2 A6 48 5 ¥ K A
bR > 8 -

A 4R T 2 o s A BT B R A
WOEATHE 2 AP HAFE > G
BN EEE o MR E
Het i% 55 8 P (E AR 1) 9 2 B
o BB AR B B R g i D g AR
B AR T A5 R AT — IR ET

AR = AR R o A%
2 TR R AT S A
T 200 H0 48 B 1) A0 V0 A B B AT
fili {H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AFEEE (8)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c) AEER-Z_F+H=1—
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value H BT % A% 02 B B 2 A 5 &
measurements at 31 December 2020: (Continued) B 3R 2 A A6 5 8 Bl A B 2

Wewg : (H)
Level 3 fair value measurements Fair value
BT R AV L
Effect on fair
value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of
Description technique Inputs Range inputs 2020 2019
1 A\ o
i i 85 % T 50\ B 4R il AHEZEE —R-%E _“F-NF

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARHTTE | ARWT T

Biological assets Discounted Risk-adjusted 9% (2019: 10%) Decrease 2,462 726
cash flows discount rate
EYEE R Ja R B "o
Growth rate 2% (2019: 3%) Increase
T i
Gross margin 48% (2019: 44%) Increase
e o
Private equity investment ~ Market comparable Discount for lack of 30%-40% Increase 130,794 85,351
classified at financial approach marketability (2019: 30%-40%)
assets as FVTOCI
R TER A i B G s
R < BH R [k
RFBALE
Financial multiples of 5.05-5.54 Increase
public companies (2019: 1.82-7.77)
RN R K
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B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

REVENUE 8. WA
Disaggregation of revenue W A B3 A
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by AR R B IR B 2 B E A
major products or service line for the year is as follows: A AW
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
TR BREH DA ILREER
2020 2019 2020 2019

“Eeeg xoF | SR ORE CF R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFG | ARWTC | ARMFG  ARMT

Revenue from contracts with v B s s e Y

customers within the scope WIBRHE N Z
of HKFRS 15 HPaHBA
Disaggregated by major e T B i BB AR
products or service lines #5>Z WI
— Sales and contract works of - HEmALRES
embedded system products T i S AR B E it B
and related products A TR = - - 1,111,446
- Rendering of travel and — SR AR A K A [l AR 5
leisure services 97,286 138,153 - -
— Sales of wine and related — B A K
products A BH 7E 11,357 11,318 - -
— Management fee income - EHAAEIA 6,772 5,761 = -
— Sales of metallic products - HESEEL 352,999 - - -
468,414 155,232 - 1,111,446
The Group derives all revenue from the transfer of goods IR A T IR 5 2 WSO T 3 28 g A B
and services at a point in time except for the revenue from I RERRAN > AL I A i A2 B
leisure services and management fee income which are — IR ] 0 AL B T R IR
recognised over the time.
L
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

9. OTHER GAINS AND INCOME 9. HAtuas KA
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
PR BB DA LR B B
2020 2019 2020 2019

— S _TNF SE_FF | _FTNF
RMB’000  RMB’000 = RMB’000  RMB’000
ARKTE AR®TT ARWTFE AR®TT

Bank interest income SRATFLE YA 639 338 = 1,925
Government grants (note) BN 4 B (K 35) 3,495 87 - 125
Share of income from 5346 TE 5 WAE BT 1S
film productions [N 27 114 = -
Refund of value-added tax 34 {E fii 3& 1] 5,794 349 - 5,832
Gain on bargain purchase e M I 2 Wt
(note 39(a) (ii)) (P 5E89 (a) (ii)) - 352 - -
Financial guarantee income  ###E £ I A 3,145 - - -
Gain on lease termination AR FE AR 9 - = -
Penalty income i FHA 603 - = -
Others HoAth 2,185 144 - 1,383
15,897 1,377 - 9,265
Note: Government grants in 2020 mainly represented the subsidy BFRE - R AR Y BN ARG TS b B
to the Group by the PRC government as to compensate the IR T AR 2 A Bl DA AE A 4R
loss suffered by the Group since the Hengshan Mountain A L R R T R F AR
scenic area was temporarily closed from 25 January 2020 to 26 AZtHHEHE-F-FEA R
February 2020 due to the policies and measures implemented HERFBAPA > DA & b B0 B £ B 52
by the government of the PRC to deter the spread of 201956 IR I BF 9 92 15 15 v [ &5 4 T B
COVID-19 epidemic in the PRC. AT 0 BUR B A7 T 52 52 ARG 48 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
strategic business units that are managed separately by the
chief operating decision-maker. Each strategic unit requires

different technology, development and marketing strategies.

During the year, the Group had four reportable segments,
which were managed separately based on their business

nature:

Tourism development - development of travel and leisure

business

Investment holding — holding of fund, debt and
equity investment, including
management fee income

Trading of metallic — sales and purchases of metallic

products products (New segment
in 2020)

All other segments — business activities and operating
segments not separately
reported, including production
and sales of wine and related

products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4(aa) to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not
include interest income, unallocated other gains and
income, finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses.
Segment assets do not include unallocated corporate assets.
Segment non- current assets do not include financial assets
at FVTOCI and deferred tax assets.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as
if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current

market prices.

10. 4H R R

7B AR o A R SR ST B Y
SRS SEB5 BV T TR R AL A o A S
SERS BT AR B - B KT 0K
W o

AR > AR AR B AT DY AR AT R 5 o S
R U S5 1Y SE 5 1R e S B

il 1 2 9% J& — 3R R ik A AR TR
K

BB — A e MHE AR
P& G EH
A

B A A *%Eﬁﬁﬁéﬁé
b (CF AR
%%%

P HAt o8 — SRS IR B R AE B
Vi8Sl I 48 57 ik
o AR A E &
5 48 0 e A
e 2 it

KAy T 2 B UK B A A R AR
Mﬁﬁ%%ﬁ«@%%m%~ﬁoﬁ
i v ) sl e 4B R A R FR A - R D
HoAh Y 2 Bl ~ Bl AR B A 43 B 4
EW L - A ER AR AEE
E o 43 IF I NS LA PE R
At 4 T A 2 B S R A S o T
B o

A B 1 R 4 I [ S S 8 R 6 4 1)
B =75 6 B SO > BMRBAT T AE -

=20
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about operating segment profit or loss:

10. 7+ ¥ & FH(4H)

R85 ox A R s R BB

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
) LT
AR EH BEEH
Manufacture
Trading and sale of
Tourism  Investment of metallic All other electronic fire
development holding product segments Total  equipment Total
AT |
j3iEdid REGR RESEES  RERMLAN Bt B b
RMB'000 RMB’OOO RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’OOO RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETE ARETL ARETE AREFL ARETE ARETR
2020 i o
Revenue from external customers R HAMEZF Z A 97,286 6,772 352,999 11,357 468,414 - 468,414
Segment profit/ (loss) AR/ (68 131,291 (12,501) (1,235) 1,708 119,263 - 119,263
Interest income fEHA 639 - 639
Finance costs EYES (18,184) - (18,184)
Unallocated corporate expenses RAREERT (21,474) - (21,474)
Profit before income tax WA Rl 80,244 - 80,244
Other segment information: P E R
Reversal of impairment loss on B Rl E
trade and other receivables, net WEERRER S 663 = = = 669 = 663
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 9,441 435 - 663 10,539 = 10,539
Share of (losses) /profit of associates [ &4 (B#8) /A (2,634) 6,277 - = 3,643 - 3,643
Share of losses of joint venures ~~ [Efi A ¢ EER = (1,158) = = (1,158) - (1,158)
2019 R0k
Revenue from external customers KA SREF ZIA 198,153 5,761 - 11,318 155,282 1,111,446 1,266,678
Segment profit/(loss) R/ (R 5,147 (18010) - (1,875) 89,264 917,355 236,509
Interest income FEIA 338 1,92 2,263
Finance costs BERA (8,962) (4,298) (13,190)
Gain on deemed disposal of B ERELAR 2l
subsidiaries - 1,348 433 1,348,433
Unallocated corporate expenses FRRLERT (18,150) - (18,150)
Proft before tax Pt 12400 1563465 1575955
Other segment information: LuAREs:
Impairment loss on trade and B A B B G B
other receivables, net 6,601 - - - 6,051 31,004 37,655
Depreciation and amortisation {7 RS 8,009 2,228 - 1,203 11,490 15,980 27470
Share of profit/ (losses) of associates EIEEEATRA/ (B8 3,087 (18,703) - - (15,118) (2,01) (17,133)
Share of losses of joint ventures Eli4 et ERR - (895) - - (895) = (895)
X Including the gain on disposal of a subsidiary of BLHE A5 — [H] B Ja8 2 A i 4 A B

RMB92,487,000 (note 39(c)).
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about operating segment assets:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 W 5 i R B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8% — & R4+ =+ —H IL4EKE

10. 43 #6 & FF(48)
KO 5y R 2 R

At 31 December 2020

Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets
Property, plant and equipment
(Cash and cash equivalents
Others

Total assets

Segment assets including:
Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures
Additions to non-current assets

At 31 December 2019

Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets
Property, plant and equipment
(Cash and cash equivalents
Others

Total assets

Segment assets including:
[nvestments in associates
Tnvestments in joint ventures
Additions to non-current assets

e e e S e

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BHL
BREREH BRXH
Manufacture
Trade of and sale of
Tourism ~ Investment metallic Al other electronic fire
development holding products segments Total  equipment Total
RERBE
REEER  REBR RRGEER HAKLNE &t RFHNRE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARMTR  ARETE  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  AR¥TR
REFZRETZAZA-H
KR
AELEEE
VER T
ReRAEHRN
fifb
B4k
AREERL:
REELAZRE
ReBLEIRE
FEFRBEE
REF-ETZAZF-H
HEE 474769 2,769,775 - 75,622 3,320,166 - 3,320,166
RLREE
VEN e 6280
RERREHRY 102946
Hib 41,110
150,836
BkE B0
RS f 5 2
REEAAZRE 184504 9547,950 - - o )L I Y IR ) 28
REBLELRE - 12978 - - ST .
- REFRBEE 69,144 & - 400 o @70
e i, e :
-‘ﬁ . - — - : <,
Y T i
CE L ORI R RAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. 7+ ¥ & FH (#1)

Geographical information: i [ & B} -
Revenue Non-current assets
WA Ik B A
2020 2019 2020 2019
SEORE CFNF SFFE TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR¥Tn AR¥TIE AR¥®TT
PRC except Hong Kong W OR G5 & i) 457,057 1,248,857 = 2,909,098 2,956,855
The United States FEH 11,357 16,282 18,639 11,492
Canada JIEDN = 1,539 = -
468,414 1,266,678 2,927,737 2,968,347

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based

on the locations of customers.

Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted

to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue is set out below:

SRR R o WA TSR BER S PN TE

H o

KAZKEREF ((EAELBKAT0%HK

PLE#) B A BB F

2020 2019
N L
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T8 ANR¥T 7T
Customer A* T A* 160,137 -
Customer B* % FEB* 117,184 -
Customer C* BFC* 75,678 -
352,999 -

* Revenue from three customers were all derived by the segment * RA=ZZEFHWAHE AR S EE

engaging in trading of metallic products.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

11. FINANCE COSTS 11, & A
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
PR BB DA LR B B
2020 2019 2020 2019

—F_FF T NF SE_FF | _FTNF
RMB’000  RMB’000 = RMB’000  RMB’000
ARKTE ARWTT ARWTFE AR®TT

Interest on bank and SRAT S HoAth B3R B
other loans 13,865 2,834 = 6,152
Interest on lease liabilities iENEg =R P B S 4,062 4,227 = -
Net foreign exchange 1 RE S 48
loss/ (gain) (W4t ) 1988 257 1,901 - (1,924)
18,184 8,962 - 4,228
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FrfaBip X
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
PR W DA LR E R
2020 2019 2020 2019
SRR E T UE SR SEE T UE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETE AR¥WTT ARWTIE ARWTT
Current tax R 4 3¢ 7
Provision for the year A A JEE 4 A
- Hong Kong (note (i)) - HW (FEEG)) 463 22,474 - -
- PRC - 500 11,436 - 44,700
Overprovision/ AR R R
(Underprovision) in (A L)
prior year
- PRC - 2 (51) = (3,689)
965 33,859 - 41,011
Deferred tax (note 35) AR JE B I ([ 5E35) 9,386 3,807 - (4,895)
10,351 37,666 - 36,116
e

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. Frf3Bipd 2 (4)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 since the Group

had no assessable profit for both years.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere has been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the country in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations, and practices in respect thereof.

Other subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are
generally subject to income tax on their taxable income at a
tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%).

Note i:

In 2011, a subsidiary of the Group received an assessment
demanding final tax for the year of assessment 2004/2005 from
the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”).. The amount of this
assessment was HK$47,852,000 (equivalent to RMB41,928,000) in
which HK$47,748,000 (equivalent to RMB41,837,000) relating to a
claim for gain on disposal of long term investment recognised in
2004. In 2013, the IRD issued a notice to the subsidiary informing
that the case has been forwarded to the Appeals Section of the IRD
for further processing. No provision was made as at 31 December
2018 as the directors opined that the subsidiary had strong grounds
and sufficient evidence to defend the capital nature of the gain.
Moreover, the IRD regarded the assessment as protective action and
allowed those part of tax relating to the contended capital gain to be
held over unconditionally pending the outcome of objection. The
directors opined that the action of the IRD was highly correlated
with timing factor because the year of assessment 2004,/2005 would
became statutorily time-barred by the end of March 2011. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, after several communications
with the IRD, the said claim for gain on disposal of long term
investment is ultimately determined as a trading profit. The amount
of assessment was finalised and amounted to HK$23,565,000
(equivalent to RMB22,474,000) and recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2019. The said amount was fully
settled during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

12. P53 B8 b 52 (#)

Continuing operations

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Discontinued operation

R B EH O IR
2020 2019 2020 2019
—F _FE “FNF SF_FE _FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®E TR ARW¥ Tt ARW TR ARW¥ T
Profit before income tax 5% o 15 A0 T Yas ) 80,244 12,490 = 1,563,465
Tax at domestic income tax i 1 1A BT A5 B 225 %
rate of 25% (2019: 25%) (ZF— U4 25%)
w2 BLA 20,061 3,123 -~ 390,866
Tax effect of share of results  JENG % A Al EE 2
of associates Tt 5 5 22t (911) 3,780 = 504
Tax effect of share of losses JEAL A A 2R 1R 2
of joint ventures Tl Hs 5 2 290 224 - -
Tax effect of income that is R IRERR B A 2 Bl
not taxable A (24,927) (174) = (837,763)
Tax effect of expenses that AN 0k 7 2 BB
are not deductible 5 5,698 1,765 = 3,005
Tax effect of utilisation of B P R A R e R B
tax losses not previously i 18 2 BT % %8
recognised = (26) — -
Tax effect of tax losses not R ER
recognised iRt 9,969 6,431 - 13,140
Tax effect on previously WMACHEREZ
disposed investments B 5 28 (M 3E (i)
(note (i)) - 22,474 = -
Overprovision/ i@fﬁ?@ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ@g%/
(Underprovision) in (A R2)
prior year 2 (51) = (3,689)
Effect of different tax rate of % HoAth =] 3l [W 5 &
subsidiaries operating in Z Wit )& 2w A [H]
other jurisdictions ViR 169 201 - 8
Tax effect of tax concession i JE il %0 2 Bl 75 52 2% - (81) - (25,237)
Super deduction of research  WF %% B 32 2 B EFnHL
and development costs = - = (4,718)
Income tax expense B 4585 B 3¢ 10,351 37,666 - 36,116

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13, A JE i Al
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/ ASEMAAE R FI TR, (GEA) BLF
(crediting) the following: HIH
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
BB REH A%k 488 R B
2020 2019 2020 2019

SEoeg CFouE | SFORE T oE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE ARMETT ARETE ARMETT

Amortisation of other HoAh 4T E R

intangible assets and BREREZRE

investments in film i

productions 556 2,406 = 1,337
Auditors’ remuneration % SCH 4 1,645 1,100 = -
Cost of inventories sold BB B A 377,351 34,403 - 649,977
Depreciation charge: s -
— Plant and equipment owned — VA Z W5 M ik i 6,148 4,652 = 14,643
— Right-of-use assets — i A 4,859 4,477 = -
Gain from changes in fair AW G A S E)

value less costs to sell of B 5 A 2 A

biological assets (2,160) (4) - -

Loss on disposal and written O R Y 2 -
off of property, plant and i b B A s 12

equipment - - - 274
Write off of film production (&4 % 5 # /F 4,669 - - -
Short-term leases charges MBS 1,534 1,199 = 6,978
Research and development WF 9% M B 8% 2

expenditure - - - 56,430

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation O B A B TRA RITELQ A
of approximately RMB33,440,000 (2019: RMB77,512,000) R #33,440,00000 (—F—JL4F + AR
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately 77,512,0007C) > 5% A AR bSO
above. Tl 45 % 2 B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 14. f@ B8 A B %
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
Fr BB DA LR B B
2020 2019 2020 2019

—F_FF T NF SE_FF | _FTNF
RMB’000  RMB’000 = RMB’000  RMB’000
ARKTE ARWTT ARWTFE AR®TT

Salaries, bonuses B4 ACAL SOEERG
and allowances 49,076 46,319 = 128,499
Retirement benefit IR ARAR RIS 8 AL 3K
scheme contributions 4,943 8,123 = 31,072
54,019 54,442 - 159,571
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the PEEZF _EF+H =T —HILE
year the ended 31 December 2020 included two director i AR SE [ 4 S AR N L EE T
(2019: one) whose emolument is reflected in the analysis WH(CE—JUE — %) > HM SN
presented above. The emoluments of the five highest paid R ESCRINZA3HT o T4 B e AR
individuals are set out below: NZMa&mT -
2020 2019
e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T o0 ANRHT 0
Basic salaries and allowances A A MR 4,322 3,849
Discretionary bonus M 1§ AL AL - 1,842
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & R 4& F 51 #| {1t 3k 178 349

4,500 6,040

& {, y

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(CONTINUED)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

14. 1@ B & A B 32 (%)

MeFEmT

Number of individuals

AN
2020 2019
CRORAE ZR—NAE
Less than HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to D iv1,000,0007 5T (FHE 7 A R
RMB890,000) (2019: RMB878,000) 890,0007C) (Z&F—JLE + AR
#%878,0007C) 4 _
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001# 7T 21,500,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB890,000 (R 7 N R H890,0007C £
to RMB1,336,000) (2019: AR #1,336,00070)
RMB878,000 to RMB1,317,000) (ZF—Ju + NR¥878,00000
£ N R#1,817,00070) 1 4

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,336,000

to RMB1,781,000) (2019: RMB1,317,000

to RMB1,757,000)

1,500,001 JC 22,000,000 JG
(FH & % N R %1,336,0007C &
AR %1,781,00000)

(=& —JUE « ARH1,317,0007C
& NR¥1,757,00000)
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 W 5 i R B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8% — & R4+ =+ —H IL4EKE

EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a)

The remuneration of every director and supervisor in
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of

the Company or its subsidiary undertaking is set out

below:
Salaries and
Fees allowances
e WEREMN
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wik ARHFE ARW TR
Name of directors EHA
M. Ni Jinlei fiemts
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong o AR IE
Ms. Zheng Zhong BELL
M. Xue Li HELL
Mr. Xiang Lei BEEE
Mr. Ip Wing Wai EkE
Mr. Shao Jiulin R UM A i
Mr. Li Juncai A RE
Mr. Li Chonghua FEERE
Mr. Shen Wei WAL
Mr. Tang Xuan Jiig ke ii
Name of supervisors 33
Mr. Fan Yimin fi—RIEE
Mr. Ouyang Zishi BB T A
Mr. Pan Yudong T RIEE
Ms. Dong Xiaoging HREELL
Ms. Zhou Min ALt

Total for 2020 e 2

15. EFLEHME

HHEERWE

HER N BRI ES R
A0 A SO JE 2 R 2

B

Retirement

Discretionary  benefit scheme
bonus  contributions
JBHH

ot AE AL i B %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHFE ARWFX

Total

aif
RMB000
INL ST




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 15. #HREEFHE (H)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EHEREREHRMES ()
Retirement

Salaries and  Discretionary ~ benefit scheme

Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
B
e HEREN M fEa Cig 13 At
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000

Pk AT AR¥TE  ARETE  AR%TT  ARWTX

Name of directors HEEA
M. Ni Jinlei Raftk 80 908 - - 988
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong RE L 278 579 - 46 903
Ms. Zheng Zhong W&t 220 440 - 127 787
Ms. Xue Li BELL 80 - - - 80
Mr. Xiang Lei HELE - - - - -
Mr. Ip Wing Wai oK d e 80 - - - 80
Mr. Shao Jiulin R SE i 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Juncai FRA KA 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Chonghua s 80 - - - 80
Mr. Shen Wei WHE A 80 - - 80
1,058 1,927 - 173 3,158

Name of supervisors o 313
Mr. Fan Yimin Rk 50 - - - 50
Mr. Ouyang Zishi B et 50 - - - 50
Mr. Pan Yudong R 50 - - - 50
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing G 50 - - - 50
Ms. Zhou Min J ik 50 - - - 50
950 - - - 950
Total for 2019 SENERG 1,308 1,927 = 173 3,408

Notes: (i)  Resigned on 6 April 2020 MEEE - () RFFAENMANHE
1T
(ii)  Appointed on 15 May 2020 (i) RZF_FFRHA+IHH
BRI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 15. EFLEFEMNS (H)

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into
between the Company and its executive directors,
the Company’s executive directors are entitled to an
aggregate amount of discretionary bonuses of not more
than 5% of the consolidated profit after tax but before

the provision of such bonuses.

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
supervisor waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EHERREHREMES (F)

WREA L A AT E R RIS 2
W5 & %1 > AN F AT H S A
PR A B BIA (ER R
AL 2 HiT) AR B M5 % 2 MG IEAL

WME_F FFER T JUEF
ToA=tT—H IR BE
= Bl B g i IR R S AT T
a3

BEFE FERF AR
S EN N S
S 4 ) £ 3 5 5 B 9 30 A
LR LTIV PE R E T
B 2 S R R B -

EHRRZY - RFEAGHZER
HE 2%

A A A A 5 A 4 T SE S RT S AT
AT 7 AR AR B4R 1A A AT B [ A7 A T
VAT S ol F NS
CRE EPN AN sk
W) WERZ )~ L REH -

AL JORIERTE BRSO A PR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

16.

17.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages
subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The Group’s PRC employees are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to
the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet

the required contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates other retirement benefits schemes
for all qualifying employees in elsewhere and required to
contribute certain percentage of the employee’s salaries

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share from
continuing operations and discontinued operation
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB64,165,000
(2019: a loss of RMB39,849,000) and Nil (2019: a profit
of RMB1,442,238,000) respectively and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,378,720,000 (2019:
1,378,720,000) in issue during the year. No adjustment has
been made to the basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts
presented for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
There were no potential ordinary shares outstanding during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, and hence the
diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per

share.

16.

17.

B A s S

A £ [ AR5 7 s o ) 1 R i R e 451
T A G S R B — JE R
ANFEAFTE (TR stH ) o AL
SR H R TIREH SR TEZ
5% wtHE - £ B Ly mam AR
1,500% 7T > 11 B A 4 [ A7 A 58 B 4wt
B2 AR B R — R B A -

RSB 2 B B Y2 B T BUR
AT 2 SR AR B Rl o A SR 2 [
RBREFIHANREERA TSR TE
2T LB B R ARAR A o b T B
IR B R E AR I T A BLA e R AR
18 B 2 B R4 R 2 BE o e b B R
FEEIT & - A G 2 BT A% 2 AU %t
# R PR g

AEB I f & TA G ERIESR -
07 HA AR AR A o Sl JH A AR
R TER R EATRE A HFENETH
I3 HAE ko

BRAERN(EE)

TR A R B A (R
BEFZ -FBHE T _H=Z+T—HIEF
B AR AR AL AR B RR A
i S AR RS- 7 AR € TN
BA UE1R) T35y BIAR B AR A =) B A
N A A AR 13 38 R R 664,165,000 70
(ZF—JUF « 58 A R %39,849,000
Je) KA (T — JUAE i M N R
1,442,238,00070) PA B 4F A B 54T 4
JBE Jon HE 735 #41,378,720,000 (— & — JL
1 1,878,720,000) M FT 5 o M 4
BEZFER-F—NF+ A
=t —HIEFEEZGRERAR (&
B)EL AR - AR E T _FF R
FT—NE+ZA=Z+—HILFE > %
AT AN TEAE AL o Wtk -
T Z R LA e B A B R AR ] o
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B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Reference was made to the announcement of the Company
dated 1 February 2013 and the circular of the Company
dated 27 February 2013 on the proposed spin-off of Jade
Bird Fire Co., Ltd. (“Jade Bird Fire”), a subsidiary of the
Group, and a separate listing of the manufacture and sale
of electronic fire equipment business owned and operated
by Jade Bird Fire on The Small and Medium Enterprises
Board (the “SME Board”) of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(the “Proposed A Share Listing”). On 19 July 2019, Jade
Bird Fire received a written approval issued by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission in respect of the initial
public offering of Jade Bird Fire (the “Approval”). Pursuant
to the Approval, Jade Bird Fire was approved to publicly
issue no more than 60 million new shares within 12 months
from the date of the Approval. On 8 August 2019, Jade Bird
Fire issued the Announcement on the Listing of the Shares
Offered under Initial Public Offering, pursuant to which,
60,000,000 shares at a price of RMB17.34. The shares of Jade
Bird Fire were listed on the SME Board of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange on 9 August 2019, with stock code 002960.
Details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 19 July 2019, 29 July 2019 and 8 August 2019.

Following the completion of the Proposed A Share Listing
on 9 August 2019, the equity interest of the Group in Jade
Bird Fire was diluted from 51.02% to 38.27%. Jade Bird Fire
ceased to be a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and the Group discontinued its business of manufacture
and sale of electronic fire equipment. Jade Bird Fire became
associate of the Group with effect from the same date and
has since been accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Accordingly, Jade Bird Fire was presented
as discontinued operations in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019. Financial information relating to the discontinued
operations for the period to the date of disposal was set out
below. The financial performance presented were for the

period from 1 January 2019 to 8 August 2019.

18.

AAMA -F—=F_"1—
z“%&$“7a%ﬁ F—ZAFE
A TLtHZER > NEGRERDTF
AR\ — B 2 /) 5 5 T B 0 A BR
NEV(TESHEBED XS S HEB A
B ) B o B B TR T B WA S
T GE N F5 58 5y B R AN ZE AR (T /D
A ZEA D) B r Bl (TR ERARE i D)
WE—FELA T > HRIHEPE
EhEEAFEEEAZEGRE R
Bi7 g Uk 2 B B g Y S T o ([ R
HAED) o ARIEZHAE > F 5 IH BN
FZACHE H R 1248 A R A BREEAT R Z R
60,000,000 % #7 % 173 o % —F — JLAFE N
HUNH > 5B CE RS BT
5 B AEE) > BRI > 60,000,000/

ROy 8478 B NR#17.3400 - H &
W E RN = F— JUFE AN JLH TR

I 5538 5y e e /N SR T > I
TR TH W BOSE2002960 -
FERE BN A AT HI A —F—LF L
A+iE > ZFZ—NFLA - TILA R
TEJUENANE Z A -

FHFRAR TR = —UVEEAH LA
TERAR » ARATFIAE R IEG D B
51.02%1 4 238.27% - & & H B AT
BN EME AR > AL
B & E H R I 8 TR T I B Rk 2
B o 5SS THPE E [ — H a5 A5 [
Z N F B M DUE fR g R IR SR o
H - FEHEHRALAAHE —F—
T H =+ HILEE 2 45 E B
KRBV HOEILREED - ARAEEW
B H W W2 DA 2 2 T
ERHEA T 3C o BT R M BRI A
F—NE—A—HEZF—JLENAN
HZ W -

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 18. DRIEREEH (M)

2020 2019
—ERRE —E—JUAE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & E ANR¥TE UNENY G
Revenue I %5 8 - 1,111,446
Cost of sales and services B B I IR AR = (656,458)
Gross profit EH] - 454,988
Other gains and income Hoh i 5 Bl A 9 - 9,265
Impairment loss on trade and &5 T HoAth B S 2R TEH 2
other receivables T 15 = (81,004)
Distribution costs V=D — (98,436)
Administrative expenses AT BB 32 = (50,469)
Other expenses HoAth B 52 - (63,069)
Finance costs T R AR 11 = (4,228)
Share of losses of associates Ak Wt 7 2 ) i 4R = (2,015)
Profit before tax % B HIT ¥ 1] = 215,032
Income tax expense FIr 5 B B ¢ 12 = (36,116)
Profit after tax from REHBKILEE LT
discontinued operation 1% B 1% Jts Al 13 - 178,916
Gain on deemed disposal BULAE 15 B i 2~ =l 2
of subsidiaries I 25 39(b) = 1,348,433
Profit from discontinued KECKIEREETZ
operation VXl = 1,527,349
Cash flows used in discontinued ARE &I EEEE e
operation i
Net cash used in operating FHA R85 B 2 B4 T
activities - (277,056)
Net cash used in investing FA A BB B 2 B4 iR
activities - (24,456)
Net cash generated from FEAE B RVETE B B R AR
financing activities = 99,979
Effect of foreign exchange A1 B HEE 4 g8 By - % %8¢
rate changes = 4,515
Net cash outflow I o A = (197,018)
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 W 5 i R B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8% — & R4+ =+ —H IL4EKE

19. Y% > Wm Mkt

Leasehold
improvements,
Machinery furniture
Freehold and  and office Motor ~ Construction  Right-of-use
land Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress assets Total
LU
KARHE kB ik
1 By RERRE  RARE RE ERLIE  fMERE fiit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETT  ARMTE  ARRTR ARETR  ARWTR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost Wk
At1 January 2019 e S i 17577 28818 67,312 67,954 74,609 3,448 8,652 545,370
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B Al
(note 39(a), (b)) (I3£39(2) ~ (b)) - - 309 5 - 52314 - 52,681
Discontinued operation DRI EEEH
(note 39(b)) (3E39(b)) (13,611) (229,017) (67,033) (63,575) (8,256) (731) (9,704) (39,947)
Additions e - 6,661 1819 7,663 13,445 2629 2,029 54,236
Transfers i - 5,008 8,252 (2,101) - (4,409) - -
Disposals and written off ity Jt A& - - (409) (1713) (4,060) - - (4,642)
Exchange differences Eizs 586 1,997 67 125 13 (40) - 2748
At31 December 2019and  REF—fLE
1 January 2020 TZAZT-0R
“EIEE--R
Additions e
Transfers i
Disposals and writien off & St
Exchange differences Eizi
At 31 December 2020 i 2
ISE

. - . -
:iii’fﬁ_ﬁ‘:ﬁ :Ib_ﬁk‘dk'ﬁw%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ PR
TR A

-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&30 A % R B BE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % % —Z4+ 4 =+ — H L4

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. P13 ~ WG Rt (4)
(CONTINUED)
Leasehold
improvements,

Machinery ~ furniture and

Freehold and office Motor ~ Construction  Right-of-use

land Buildings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress assets Total
fifihz

KARH EL )

1 B RBRRE  mAuE RE BRIR  fRMERE fit
RMBOOO  RMBON  RMBOM  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'0OD

AREFL  ARETT  ARWTE  ARRTR  ARETR  ARWTR  ARETX  ARETR

Accumulated depreciation ~ Z7HHi

A1 January 2019 REZ-NE-A-H - 3,430 29416 2117 63,945 - 1,802 159,710
Charged for the year ER - 6,086 4714 451 3,924 - 447 93,719
Transfer B - - 30 (35) 3 - - -
Discontinued operations £ L4 &%

(note 39(b)) (HFzE39(b) - (37,179) (29.454) (20,783) (4.269) - (736) (97,41)
Disposals and written off T g - - (384) (159) (3,825) - - (4,368)
Exchange differences EnEE - 152 119 4 7 - - 320

AcS1 December 2019and — RZF—ALE
1 January 2020 tZAZT-HE
“ECRE--R
Charged for the year ERLH
Disposals and written off & Rt
Exchange differences Eizs

Carrying amount L
At 31 December 2020 REFRE
F2RZt-H

q At 31 December 2019 REZ-AH




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. P13 ~ WG Rt (4)
(CONTINUED)
The analysis of the net carrying amount of right-of-use assets 2R I A U 0 BT )1 R O R
by class of underlying asset is as follows: R ET
Leasehold Lease
land contracts Total
ikl A% A5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TIH AR¥WTI ARWTT

As at 1 January 2019 A E-NE A —H 13,818 70,032 83,850
Discontinued operations B F AR T (8,948) - (8,948)

Additions NE 20,942 1,087 22,029
Depreciation charged IR AT 85 (250) (4,227) (4,477)

As at 31 December 2019 REF-LE+ZHA=1+—H

and 1 January 2020 I _R_EE—H—H 25,562 66,892 92,454
Depreciation charged R PR (609) (4,250) (4,859)
Disposals and written off H I il — (248) (248)

As at 31 December 2020 RE-FZRZESZA=+—H 24,953 62,394 87,347

2020 2019

SEoEE T

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x THETT

Interest on lease liabilities HEAEZME 4,062 4,227

Expense relating to short-term leases BAHEMEMHE Z B 1,534 8,177
Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis TH & B s AR RE - THE AW
of lease liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from B 7317 DA K i oK B i 2 AL B 7 AR A R
leases that are not yet commenced are set out in notes 34 AR B4 A Bl A B A B R34 6 (d) e

and 6(d) respectively.

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of property, Ro-F_FHEL A= —H W%
plant and equipment pledged as securities for the g Bs K it < MR TAI(E OB fE AR
Group’s bank loans amounted to RMB162,410,000 (2019: R AT BRIkl s AR sE A NE
RMB10,444,000) (note 33). 162,410,00078 (=% — JU4F + AR
10,444,00070) (HE33) o
e

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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20. GOODWILL 20. Wi
2020 2019
ot Jast 23 —E—JUAE
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN NRET T

Cost BAR

At 1 January w—HA—H 204 22,640

Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary WAz B — ] o A ) R E AR

(note 39(b)) (B 5E39(a)) - 11,495

Discontinued operations (note 39 (b)) O 4 1L 5848 2605 (K 5E39(b)) - (33,931)

At 31 December mt_HA=+—H 204 204

Accumulated impairment losses B A 1R

At 1 January mw—H—H - 2,793

Discontinued operations (note 39(b)) ELAC IR 58 25T ([ 5E39(b)) - (2,793)

At 31 December wt_H=+—H - -

Carrying amount I i

At 31 December wtr—H=+—H 204 204
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at T SETE A DR 15 1% S 2L WA IR 40 i 32
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from TEIIA % 365 5 OF v 8 i 1) B 4 7 AR B
that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill A7 o AR A AR BB R 2 7 040

had been allocated as follows:

2020 2019
=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTIE ANRMETIC

Multiple units without significant goodwill  ifi % T K i 2 2 2 { ¥ (i} 204 204

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
from value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are referred to past experience and current
market expectation and/or demand or based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area
in which the businesses of the CGUs operate whichever is
applicable. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based

on past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for

the next five (2019: five) years.

The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s operating segment of the production and
sales of wine and related business is 9.4% (2019: 9.7%).

20. & (4)

B 4 A B0 22 AT i [ AR AR R
EEF A TEREE - HHERAZ E"
B BT B A B B 5 R R WA 2 ]
BB S S o A S IR T T S B
b i 353 36 M e [ 0 S B 7 A BT
R AR 2 WA I BR B AT B A UG EE
MEELR o MR AR 2 25 1 K K R T
DUTE ] K o SR AR 8 1 < A B A6
RO B P TE I 2 P B R R Y R
RETE (BT EBEA) - HRETMNKE
SRR AR AP 08 1 2 B B i 35 9% o YL M0

P

TE °

S A R 0 R R AL 2 R AR LA (T
T—JUAF TR Sl ) B ETE 5T A
BB i T o

AT B A SR | 8 A 8 B A AT
Ko A B 28 2 K88 43 B T 4% 1 B B
Wi BRBLAT L 559.4% (& — JLAF ¢
9.7%) -

& {, y

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. Hith B & &

Transport Rights
operation and Computer ~ Customer
licence patents  Copyrights softwares list Total
R
HEME Lyl Wt SRS BRRAR At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE  ARETE ARETE ARETT AR¥TT  AR®TR
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 REF-NE—~A—H 30,000 80 3,208 5,046 7,550 45,884
Acquisition of a subsidiary i — RN AR

(notes 39(a)) (H5E39(a)) - 4,012 - 174 - 4,186
Additions e - - - 656 - 656
Disposal or written-off B A - (80) - - - (80)
Discontinued operation DRIEREER

(note 39(b)) (Hf3E39(b)) - (4,012) (8,208) (4, 791 - (12,011)
Exchange differences MR 129
At 31 December 2019 R

toA=t-H
Additions IR
Disposal or written-off o 4
Exchange differences e 5.7 2
At 31 December 2020 REBZRAE
+ZAZ+—H
Accumulated amortisation Rt
At 1 January 2019 RZZF-n4E—A—H 30,000 80 1,497 2,239 7,096 40,912
Amortisation charged KA EE

for the year - 587 187 815 456 2,045
Disposal or written off A - (80) - - - (80)
Discontinued operations gEIEEE %f%

(note 39(b)) (B 3E39(h) - (587) (1,684) (2, 210 - (4,481)
Exchange differences xR 124
At 31 December 2019 and RoZE- gL HE

1 January 2020 )l S < P
Amortisation charged RS

for the year
Disposal or written off B A
Exchange differences M5 %R
At 31 December 2020 R-Z"%

+=A E
Carrying amount i Eﬁ
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22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s transport operation license represents a public
transport monopoly operation in a designated national 5A
level tourist attraction in the PRC. This asset is used in the

Group’s Tourism development segment.

Customer list represents customer relationship acquired
through business combination. The remaining amortisation

period of the customer list is one year.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group is engaged in the production and sales of wine
and related products. At 31 December 2020, the Group owns
7 acres (2019: 7 acres) of vines. During the year, the Group
harvested approximately 16 tons (2019: 11 tons) of grapes,
which had a fair value less costs to sell of RMB271,000
(2019: RMB353,000) (determined at the time of harvest)
with reference to their market prices. The fair value of the
Group’s biological assets as at 31 December 2020 has been
determined based on income approach and taken into
account the adjustments to harvest profile, cost incurred,

cultivation area, and expected yield of the biological assets.

21. Hfth JE R R (%)
A% 85 T 2 S0 M RS % o
E B % 5 AR e B A 2 W
o RO Y R A A B 2 i 2
JE& 5335 o

o

%P A AR S S OF TR % E B
# o HFFZHE 2T MY A1

22. WK B

7 45 [ 406 S 20 A R E o 2 A R
LR - I R _FF T A=+ —
Ho> AEEBEAE7AE (TE—JUE 7
O3 VR R AR o AR A > A BE T A A RN
BA6M (—F—JUAF - 11Mf) - HAF
(B0 8 5 BLA 2 N R 271,00000 (%
—JLAE + AR 353,0007T) O i R [
MEE)  HhEHEENTE - ALE
EVEER _F_FFET_A=1T—H
2T ERBRAERE > WE A Y
AV EE A A T E R 2 AR
R A [ % T[] R 2 A o

Reconciliation of carrying amount of vines: i A5 18} M T AT 2 BHIE -
2020 2019
e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥F It ANBR¥ET T
At 1 January w—H—H 726 1,058
Gain from changes in fair value N V(8 5 B U B R AR
less costs to sell Z 3 2,160 4
Decrease due to harvest PR] AT S35 T ek 7 (271) (353)
Exchange differences [ifE b8, = A (153) 17
At 31 December wt+—_H=+—H 2,462 726

The Group is exposed to climate and other risks related to

its vines:

A A I T 36 54 M B 4 A o ) L A
e

b
N

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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22.

23.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Climate and other risks

The Group’s vines are exposed to the risk of damage from
climatic changes, diseases, fires and other natural forces.
The Group has extensive processes in place aimed at
monitoring and mitigating those risks, including regular
vines health inspections and industry pest and disease

surveys.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

22. WK B (#)
SR B 3L At Jl B
7 45 ] 2 7 A T DR SR AL R
i~ KA A SR ) R R 2 A
B o AEME R - B1EEER
B % S T B > B4 S U A T A A
et 17 L B 3 AT ] 8 ek D R
2 o

23. RBEAFAZELE

2020 2019
=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTIE ANRMT T

Unlisted investments: FELEWHHE
Share of net assets JE A I

Amounts due from/(to) associates are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 December

2020 are as follows:

2,619,248 2,731,853

FEL, (HEAS) B8 2 Wl SR TR S SR A
G S % e ] 5 R R o

E AL g S N E4
E2 T VSR

Place of Percentage of
Name incorporation Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
# 1 itk B 2 ik it ¢ A B A8 JBe A 5 720 b FEEH
Direct Indirect
H# Il %
Jade Bird Fire Hebei, the PRC RMB240,000,000 37.30% - Sales and contract works of
(2019: embedded system products
38.27%) and related products
CEiL B AR 240,000,000 A SR L b AR B
ZHERAR TR
Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Beijing, the PRC RMB1,000,000,000 40% 1%  Investment in unlisted PRC
Investment Fund (Limited enterprises or growing
Partnership) (“HS Fund”) entities
xRS S A AR #1,000,000,000 S e R
(HRE®) (MagEs ) Jt TEHELNE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. WRBEE 2wl 2 B & (8
(CONTINUED)
Place of Percentage of
Name incorporation Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
a Ak it 37 4 2 it it fie A WAl e A BE 5 i 2 b FEEH
Direct Indirect
HEE Il %

Changsha Songya Lake Changsha, the PRC RMB105,150,000 - 28%  Land development and urban
Construction Investment infrastructure project
Co., Ltd. (“Songya Lake development
Construction”)*

WM 2 B & R A E105,150,000 TR R R E AR
FIRA T (THAREM &) «

Chuangi (Hunan) Enterprise Hunan, the PRC RMB220,000,000 - 29%  Project development
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Chuanqi Enterprise”)

i (W) TR RARA A R A B #220,000,0007 HH#E
(=T

Beijing Xinzhongrui Venture Beijing, the PRC RMB250,000,000 - 25%  Investment in unlisted
Capital Co., Ltd. PRC enterprises or
(“Xinzhongrui VC”) growing entities

EEERHARREAHRAA  EIT A 250,000,000 R bR R
({5 3 A ) FEEZNE

Shanghai Shengjin Venture Shanghai, the PRC~ RMB200,000,000 25% 20%  Investment in unlisted
Capital Investment Co., Ltd. PRC enterprises or
(“Shanghai Shengjin VC”) growing entities

LA ARREARAR  RELE A 200,000,000 R bR R
([ i RE 4 Al ]) FEEZNE

‘Q:

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. NEHEAFNZHE (F)
(CONTINUED)

The following tables show information on the associates that N R T A A B T R W A
2 EORE o WL 4 E) AR A S
RLIMELR AR © B 251 B R

TAR BT 0 ) 2 T i A A Y T B

are material to the Group. These associates are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is

based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associates. B -
Name Jade Bird Fire
2 HEWHB
2020 2019
SRR ZE—ILE
% of ownership interests/voting rights AL 2 WA ERE AR
held by the Group WEREH I 37.30% 38.27%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T e NRHT ot
At 31 December wH+_H=+—H
Non-current assets JE Wi B & E 792,870 373,297
Current assets B & E 3,555,384 3,239,154
Non-current liabilities FE i B A AR (4,058) (3,036)
Current liabilities DN =R (1,238,235) (836,808)
Net assets attributable to owners B N JEAL G 3,105,961 2,772,607
Less: Share capital injected by Bl H A R R T A 2 A
other shareholders (908,660) (902,450)
Add: Dividend paid during the year s AR B S AT 2 B 72,000 -
Less: Other reserve W H Ak A 25,323 -
Less: Exchange reserve W c HE SO Gk e (4,206) (3,529)
Less: NCIs W I IRORE A (6,845) (10,613)
Net assets attributable to owners A NG G 2,283,573 1,856,015
Group’s share of net assets AL G T E E 851,777 710,210
Fair value uplift o F{H BT 1,447,568 1,485,024
Dividend received SRt (26,856) -
Other adjustments oAt 77 % 31,728 408
Group’s share of carrying amount 7 £E [ 43 A5 HE 4 MR T (L
of interests 2,304,217 2,195,642
Year ended 31 December: BET-H=1+—HILFX :
Revenue e A 2,445,600 1,115,314
Profit for the year A A B i A 427,558 176,482
Other comprehensive income H A 2 T A A = =
Total comprehensive income A T K i AR AR 427,558 176,482
Dividends received from associates B U A N T S 26,856 48

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

23. RBEAFRZZE ()

(CONTINUED)
Name HS Fund Songya Lake Construction*
4 i 5% AL 4 i ) e
2020 2019 2020 2019
SF g T NE | R OBE T
% of ownership interests/ A 2 B RE
voting rights held by Wt BERET I
the Group 41%/41% 41%/41% 47%/47%  47%/47%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW¥EFIE AR¥T T AR¥EFIE AR¥TT
At 31 December wn+_H=+—H
Non-current assets B & 153,338 145,161 - 1,353,400
Current assets T s 3,969,805 4,626,564 = 2,164,290
Non-current liabilities FRE B (1,063,777) (216,348) - (2,034,656)
Current liabilities i B B (2,819,414) (3,831,346) ~  (1,316,442)
Net assets VR 239,952 724,081 — 166,592
Less: NCIs i IF P IR R S (61,324) (183,882) - -
Net assets attributable to WA NI E E
owners 178,628 540,149 = 166,592
Group’s share of net assets A 4E [ 73 {1 & & 73,237 291,461 - 77,632
Goodwill EE=S - - = 9,310
Other adjustments HoAth 5 & (606) (239) - 3
Group’s share of carrying 7 £E By ik HE 25 BE AT (B
amount of interests 72,631 221,222 - 86,945
Year ended 31 December: B E2+_H=+—H
R4 -
Revenue e A 58,879 164,811 = 19,540
Loss for the year AR FE s 4R (369,830) (201,969) (2,591) 15,059
Other comprehensive income HAth 2 [ U %5 8,309 (6,522) - -
Total comprehensive income 4 Tij it % 44 %8 (361,521) (208,491) (2,591) 15,059
Dividends received from £ i B %5 N ) ik B
associates - = - =
% Being disposed of along with the disposal of a subsidiary (note * L[ T B 2 ) e (KR T
39(c)) 39(c))

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. NEHEAFNZHE (F)

associates

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
ying pany p

(CONTINUED)
Name Xinzhongrui VC Chuangqi Enterprise
e & v i A B {4 7 B
2020 2019 2020 2019
% BE CEE R ORE TR
% of ownership interests/ AL R 2 AT R
voting rights held by fEd BRI
the Group 25%/25%  25%/25% 49%/49%  49%/49%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARW¥ Tt ARWTR ARW¥ T
At 31 December R+=ZH=1+—H
Non-current assets B G E 377,778 277,734 1,002 3,182
Current assets )& 12,101 15,103 480,004 493,777
Non-current liabilities I I B £ fik (50,693) (24,955)  (149,130)  (168,830)
Current liabilities W A = - (130,874)  (134,106)
Net assets FEE 339,186 267,882 201,002 194,023
Add: share capital not 0 AR R TEA
injected by other Z A
shareholders = — 4,400 4,400
Net assets attributable A N5 E =
to owners 339,186 267,882 205,402 198,423
Group’s share of net assets A% [H /0 15 5 & & 84,796 66,971 100,647 97,227
Other adjustment A 5 = - (938) 16
Group’s share of carrying 74 [ 43 A6 RE #2 AR I E
amount of interests 84,796 66,971 99,709 97,243
Year ended 31 December: ®E2T+_H=1+—H
WLARJE -
Revenue A - - 42,132 -
(Loss) /Profit for the year ARAETE (51H)/ i (3,885) (3,198) 6,979 (6,050)
Other comprehensive income HAth 4 i 5 75,189 (15,350) = =
Total.comprehensive income 2 [fij U 5 4% 71,304 (18,548) 6,979 (6,050)
Dividends received from 2 W8 2\ R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. NEHEAFNZHE (F)

(CONTINUED)
Name Shanghai Shengjin VC
2 bR S A
2020 2019
e N
% of ownership interests/voting rights REE R 2 WA HE
held by the Group R BERET 45% /45% 45%/45%
RMB’000 RMB’000
YNGR T YN e
At 31 December wt+_H=1+—H
Non-current assets FEI B E E 70,958 107,100
Current assets MEEE 36,656 12,618
Non-current liabilities JE B A (4,882) (7,313)
Current liabilities ) B fE (8,200) (6,600)
Net assets attributable to owners HEA N Ak T 94,532 105,805
Group’s share of net assets AL AT EE 42,539 47,612
Other adjustments A 5 226 -
Group’s share of carrying amount A B2 [ 7314 HE 4 R T (L
of interests 42,765 47,612
Year ended 31 December: 21T _-_H=1+—H
LA
Revenue PN - -
Loss for the year AR B 5 1R (3,902) (2,983)
Other comprehensive income HoAth 2 1 U 55 (7,371) (22,902)
Total comprehensive income AL %S AR A (11,273) (25,885)
Dividends received from associates E i A F R - -
L

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share

of the amounts of all other immaterial associates that are

accounted for using equity method.

23.

R R A F Z R E (4)

RSN R AL B A T A A A
B A A HE 2 12 A MR 2 B8 O R 2 MR o

2020 2019
=
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN T ANRMETIC

At 31 December:

Carrying amounts of interests

Year ended 31 December:

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Rt+ZA=+—H:
HHE 4 AR 1T

BET A=A

AAFJE i 40

A 2 THT Ui 4

2 T W 4 A A

At 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances of
the Group’s associates in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB1,227,384,000 (2019: RMB1,726,434,000).

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to

the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and

Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

Exchange Regulations.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

15,130 16,218
(530) (5,540)
(530) (5,540)

W_EZEEL+A=Z+—H > K%
W N m DN R FHE 2 R PR 2
SRAT S B A 45 R Sy N IR 1,227,384,000
JG (ZF—JUE - AR ¥1,726,434,000
J6) o A N B SR A A (N IR
L [ A BRG] ) B I B e R
ASF VIR A R A ) LR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

B 3 B 5 A B

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REBREZRE
2020 2019
SR OBE RN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETE  ARBTT
Unlisted investments: JEEMHE :
Share of net assets JE AL 5 14,436 72,273

Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 December 2020

are as follows:

Capital contributions/

AEFHEEMNER T FTFE+ A
=t —HZEBmNT

Place of issued and paid up Percentage of
Name incorporation capital ownership interest  Principal activities
g/ CRITR HE 5 ¢ HE
# 1 itk it 37 4 2 R B A MG E I EECRH
SBI & BDJB China Fund,  Cayman Islands USD73,436,598 50%  Investment in unlisted companies
L.P. (“SBI China”) and real estate assets and
companies in the PRC
SBI & BDJB China Fund, F2#5 78,436,598 % 1T BEF LA LR B
L.P. (TSBI Chinal) M R

SBI & BDJB Management
Limited

SBI & BDJB Management
Limited

Cayman Islands

HERE

100,000 ordinary shares
of USD1 each

100,000 & 1% i
15702 98 M

50%  Provision of investment
management and advisory

services

1R 08 B A T A

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REBEEZRE (H)
(CONTINUED)
The following table shows information on the joint venture TRIWHALEETM S BERZ GEM
that is material to the Group. This joint venture is accounted EZER - TEELERNG A MB]E
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity DIME 35 12 AR o T 2 80 B 5 R A T
method. The summarised financial information presented RG22 A s P05 3 5 6 JU) B 75
is based on the HKFRS financial statements of the joint P o
venture.
Name SBI China
Y1 SBI China
2020 2019
e
% of ownership interests/voting rights NAEE A 2 A
held by the Group flEdn /BEHEE oy L 50%/50% 50%/50%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T 75 ANREET T

At 31 December mt+_A=+—8
Non-current assets I & E 32,931 222 618
Current assets i) B A 4,519 8,091
Current liabilities Uit B & fi (186) (935)
Net assets 5 37,264 229,774
Less: NCIs W IR R 2E (8,312) (85,029)
Net assets attributable to owners W N3 & s 28,952 144,745
Group’s share of carrying amount of 7N 45 3 Ak HE 25 B i (B

interests 14,436 72,273
Cash and cash equivalents included in FARBEEZHRE M

current assets HEEBY 4,519 8,091
Current financial liabilities (excluding A E) B & 2 B B

trade and other payables and provisions) AfE (ORNEIEE 5 K HA

included in current liabilities TE A 2 T8 R 4 ) _ -

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding F A JF i 8 & & 2 i

trade and other payables and provisions) M as (AMuiEE 5 &
included in non-current liabilities A JRE AF 2R TE S B4 _ —

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REBREEZRE (H)

(CONTINUED)

Name SBI China

4 SBI China
2020 2019
e e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T 55 NR#T ot

Year ended 31 December: &2+ _-_H=+—H
IEAF B
Revenue A - -
Depreciation and amortisation P8 Ko 6 - -
Interest income B A = -
Interest expense B B 52 - -
Income tax expense JIr #5350 BH 52 - -
Loss for the year AR 5 1R (2,500) (833)
Other comprehensive income HoAth 2 T Uk 5 (185,662) (402,030)
Total comprehensive income 2 T Wi 7 AR (188,162) (402,863)
Dividends received from joint venture B A E RS = -
‘Q:

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

The following table shows the Group’s share of the amounts
of the immaterial joint venture that is accounted for using

the equity method.

24.

REBEEZZE (M)

RSN A S [ A A8 5 S
MR IE AR Z B A3 2 A -

2020 2019
=
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN ANRMETIC

At 31 December: W+ _H=+—H:

Carrying amounts of interests WE 25 BE T E

Year ended 31 December: & 21T _H=1+—H
R4 -

Profit/ (Loss) for the year RAEE R (FEH)

Other comprehensive income HC A 22 T WA £

Total comprehensive income ARk

At 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances of the
Group’s joint ventures in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB378,000 (2019: RMB212,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations.

Note:

The amount of share of unrecognised loss in the immaterial joint
venture during the year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB153,000
(2019: RMB244,000).

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

91 (482)
(91) (167)
- (649)

AT RET T H S+ H o AREE
A 2 AL R FHERT K&
&SR NR#378,00000 (& —JL
0 NRHE212,0000T) © #F A R SR
AN 32 (P RS R (B A T A A
By B &5 ~ 65 30 B AT I 4 3R 2 )
B o

B 5E

MR E T _FFE A= — H IR EE
MEARE AEMCEZ KERERZ &
B ANRW153,00000 (ZF—JUFE « ARH
944,0007C) ©
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B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

25. INVESTMENTS IN FILM PRODUCTIONS 25. MEEHEZBRE
2020 2019
ot Jast 23 S E—JUAE
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN NRET T

Cost BREA
At 1 January and 31 December W—H—HEk+_HA=+—H 11,991 11,991
Written off during the year GRNE € (8,491) -
3,500 11,991
Accumulated amortisation g 35
At 1 January w—HA—H 3,397 1,699
Amortisation charged for the year AN R B A 425 1,698
Written off during the year CNE§E (3,822) -
At 31 December wt+—_HA=+—H = 3,397
Carrying amount R i 4L
At 31 December wmr—H=1+—H 3,500 8,594
Investments in film productions are stated as cost less T T 5 U 2 BB AR RAS B B
accumulated amortisation and impairment. The amount WAB IR o 52K A P B G AR TR
represents investments in co-production of films in China. MZIE o BEZ MBI RBLE > BRI
The investments are governed by the relevant agreements A A REF R T AT B R E 2 T
whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated from the ISR B 5% %6 565 984710 72 A2 2 Pl 4 o
distribution of these films based on the percentage of capital
contributed in the film production projects.
Y

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 26. VLA A EF A il 2 i W 45 2 B
W& E
2020 2019
SRR —E— LA
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN ANRMETIC

Equity securities, at fair value listed A w8 55 $ N EAE
in Hong Kong (note (i) Bl bl (HHEE () 42,045 98,592
Market value of listed securities bRz iE 42,045 23,592
Equity securities, at fair value unlisted A 8 5 > H T HAE
outside Hong Kong (note (ii)) é‘%iﬁ% kLl
(BFFRE (ii)) 75,473 85,351
Equity securities, at fair value unlisted in A E S5 » A F(HE
Hong Kong (note (ii)) BN E T (B3R Gi)) 55,321 -
172,839 108,943
Financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in the following DL P E FEA A A T IR 55 2 W
currencies: JE DL A S R RTE
2020 2019
% BE ok
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN ANRBETIT

RMB UNRY: 75,473 85,351
HK$ s 0 97,366 98,592
172,839 108,943

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(1)

(ii)

(iif)

The fair values of listed equity securities are based on closing

prices.

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities was reference to
the valuation performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited
and Brilliant Appraisal Limited, independent professional
qualified valuers, derived from estimations of the equity value
by using market approach which makes reference to market
multiples of comparable companies in relevant industries and

markets.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had
sold part of its listed shares in Hong Kong with net sale
proceeds of RMB19,272,000 and the Group realised a gain of
RMB7,464,000 which had already been included in OCI. The
gain of RMB11,808,000 had been transferred from financial

assets at FVTOCI reserve to retained profits.

26. PAS PR EE Al 2 i i 5 2
B e ()

MERE :

(i)

(ii)

(iit)

T AR R S TR DA T B 2 Ak
i o

e bl AR T I 2 NP AR TS 275 S
S A (e 0 2 2 P (E A PR B R e A
FEAR AT IR FEAT 2 Al (8 e TT R
1) 1 3 1545 B0 AR (LA Rt o
2B A7 AT 3 T i i 1 AT R
F A T A e

WEE-Z—-NFET+HA=T—HIE
ARRE > ARSEEN T R A U 1 B
TR > B T A BT TR A A N R
#519,272,00070 f 4% 48 [ 58 Bk 45 A
[ #7,464,0000C > B FFA HoAth 2 1 i
% o g A R H11,808,0000C E 1 LA
ONPE FE A E A 2 T 0k 25 2 S
ot A5 MRS 2 00 B Ui )

27. INVENTORIES 27. &

2020 2019
SERE CFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AW T8 NG ST
Finished goods R 5,817 6,845

&

CE AR AERIER T BRI A R A
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. © 5 Ko H: b JE Wi 3k R

2020 2019
e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TE UNENY G
Trade and bills receivables JRE M B2 5 Wk T T4 142,727 33,442
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W R MR (15,814) (83,442)
126,913 -
Advances to staff TE AT B T 3,482 1,477
Deposits % 4 2,610 1,165
Due from associates (note 23 and 42(b)) JRE WA B 7 R RO
(K523 K 42(b)) 27,450 67,160
Due from shareholders (note 32 and 42(b)) JE it A% & ZKIH
(Bt 51325 42(b)) 185 187
Due from a related party JRE ML — 44 i i 7 A
(note 32 and 42(b)) (B 5325 42 (b)) 27 27
Loans and interest receivables JRE Wi A K R B 52,963 1,000
Other receivables At JE i A 214,326 132,395
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W R IR (34,550) (35,921)
266,493 167,490
Advances to suppliers FE Ak JE P R IE 1,945 31,398
Prepayments AT HIE 24,214 22,557
419,565 221,445
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on WAEAE 2 B 5 ek > BR¥i& P Ak

credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is sometimes required. The credit period was generally
3 months, starting from the date on which the goods are
delivered or services are rendered as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise the credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforesaid and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade

receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. 5 B Al Wk (%)
(CONTINUED)
Trade receivables, based on the date on which the goods are JRE AR B e ik 2 TR B LA ey 22 1o B
delivered or services are rendered as this is the point in time s BRI B 2 H > B e G AR R
that the consideration is unconditional, are aged less than 3 SEAG A 1) IR R85 D RS H (—F— L
months (2019: Nil): AF M)
Loans and interest receivables are unsecured, JE B 2k K BB A D~ AR R %
interest-bearing at 1.5% per annum and has no fixed terms 1.5%%EE > HLAG 4% [ 2 5 3 -

of repayment.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are all WZEZFEFT A =+ —H o AL
denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2020. JRE i B 5 R R T A T DL R M R
{E o
29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. HRIAR
2020 2019
O
Contract liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000
H R AR ANR¥ Tt ANRH¥T T
Billings in advance of performance J& #) FAT 2 AT R 3K
obligation
— Sales of goods contracts —HEEMAL 32 37
There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities RG] - G A BG4 RN i O
balances during the reporting period. & o
L

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 29. & A HAE (H)
Movements in contract liabilities: HFHRAMEED
2020 2019
e N
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T e ANR¥®ET T
Balance at 1 January W—H—HZ &k 37 61,153
Increase in contract liabilities as HLEAKREHEEMZ
a result of billing in advance of TR RS A )
installation contract and sales of goods AR 32 37
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of 4 [N UL A EE A 4
recognising revenue during the year =R % (37) (61,153)
Balance at 31 December Wt H=+—HZ4%% 32 37

30.

The amount of billings in advance of performance received

that is expected to be recognised as income after more than

one year is Nil (2019: Nil).

DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

30.

TEU S — 4 AR e R A WS B Wi B
HHTEA RS A T (TF—JUE

E) o

Z5

o kBl KBl % EY

2020 2019

N

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥ETF N R¥F 0

Cash and bank balances 4 M SRAT &5 130,220 157,711
Less: Pledged bank deposits B AR SRAT AE K (12,200) (1,200)
Cash and cash equivalents W4 M 4e%EY 118,020 156,511
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31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and cash

30. fFak K Ble KBl &% HY (4)

AR 2 A7 KA K B R Bl S E Y 2

and cash equivalents are denominated in the following MR T (B ) DA 5 B W
currencies:

2020 2019
e
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN NRET T
RMB NS 123,532 140,965
HK$ # T 4,595 9,639
Usb ESpIv 2,093 7,107
130,220 157,711

The pledged bank deposit of RMB12,200,000 (2019:
RMB1,200,000) to secure a bank loan granted to the Group

are as set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial

B 41 4R 17 77 2k AR #12,200,0007T
(=& —JUF - AR%1,200,00000) BA
IR > DAMAS 352 T A 4R 1] 2 SR AT B

statements. TR A S B S ik R B 5ESS -
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. ® 5 Jo H At A sk IH
2020 2019
e e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARt ANRH#T 0
Trade payables JE AT 52 25 B K 164 226
Contract liabilities (note 29) A7) B (i 5E29) 32 37
Accruals and other payables JRE st ) L At B A OE 34,612 35,394
Salaries and staff welfare payables JRE A Fr 4 I B AR A 14,126 11,390
Due to associates (note 23 and 42(b)) R = /NEIE ¢
(Bt k23 K 42(b)) 1,300 4,000
Due to a shareholder (note 32 and 42(b))  JEAf— 44 B 5 IH
(Bt 5E325242(b)) = 2,576
Due to related parties (note 32 and 42(b)) JEATBH 7 A\ 13K 1A
(PFi5E32542(b)) 6,907 5,779
57,141 59,402
-

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 31. ®& 5 Fe H i JBE £ 5k JE (4])

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of MRAB W B0 2 MEAT B2 5 R SR
receipt of goods, is as follows: AT
2020 2019
e
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B ANRBET I

0 to 90 days 0Z90H 125 222
91 to 180 days 91%180H 39 -
Over 365 days 365 H - 4

164 226

32. DUE FROM/(TO) SHAREHOLDERS,/RELATED 32. WEWL (FF) B3R BN L%

PARTIES H
The amounts due from/(to) shareholders/related parties REW,” (fF) BESR, /BRI 4 3RIE S 4K
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment A G B R AR i 2 R
terms.
33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 33. SRAT B A 8
2020 2019
e
RMB’000 RMB’000
A R¥ T 0 N R¥F 0
Current liabilities ) A
— Secured bank loans — IR AT B 64,790 35,876
— Unsecured other loans — eI 7 Ath 57 3K 58,077 44,832
122,867 80,708
Non-current liabilities JE i B AR
— Secured bank and other loans — G PR AT M H At R K 290,870 151,050
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B 3 B 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 33. SRAT B Bty 83k (4)
The bank and other loans are repayable as follows (note): SRAT R H A SR R I (MFEE) -
2020 2019
SEEE —zo
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTIE ANRMETIC

Within one year A=A 117,570 74,832
Portion of bank loans that are due for TR TE — AR H B
repayment after one year but contain R R R 2 BRAT
a repayment on demand clause B G I B AL
(shown under current liabilities) TAH) 5,297 5,876
Portion of bank and other loans that TR AU AE — AR H A
are due for repayment more than W AF 22 SR-AT B HoAth
one year, but not exceeding two years BB A7 200,870 151,050
Portion of bank and other loans that are N AE HARE AR 2 AT
due for repayment more than five years B FCA 8 5 HR 47y 90,000 -
413,737 231,758
Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates BE S - B SRR S AR S K T T 5 2 T
set out in the respective loan agreements. W MRS -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other Bk DA SESCRHE 2 #E AN R ¥55,297,000 00
loans are denominated in RMB except for an amount of (= F— L4 - AR ¥5,876,00070) %) »
RMB5,297,000 (2019: RMB5,876,000) which is denominated AR 2 GRAT B AR R MR (E A
in USD. RMEFHE
The Group’s bank and other loans of RMB264,797,000 AAE 2 BRAT B H Al B RN R
(2019: RMB186,926,000) are arranged at fixed interest rates 264,797,00000 (—F — JL4F + AR ¥
ranging from Nil to 6.9% (2019: Nil to 7.2%) per annum and 186,926,00070) & /v & F£6.9MH (—
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s F—IJUHE X ET7.2H) 2 [ EF M
bank and other loans of RMB90,000,000 (2019: Nil) are FEE o BB AR SR R 2 T A R
arranged at floating interest rates at 6.37% per annum, thus Fr o A 4R [H] 2 $R AT M HiAh B sk N R
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. 90,000,0007T (—%F — JL4F : &) %£6.37

JE 2 B AE A AR o A AR R
32 B 4 L B I 5 Ja B

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, secured bank and other W E D EER E—JLE+T H

loans were secured by (i) the pledge of the Group’s property, =+ —H o AHEHIRAT B A £ m A

plant and equipment; (ii) the corporate guarantee given by N TEIER (QZ‘:ENE]Z%% * iR B

the Company and a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary; A 2 B (ﬁ)ZFQ}Ej&* ] B g

(iii) pledged bank deposits; and (iv) the equity interest of an IR P A 2 B ) A SE AR R 5 (i)

associate. E R SRAT A7 3K 5 R (iv) it — [T R 28
F 2 FECHE
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33.

34.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, unsecured other loans were

interest free and repayable on demand.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group leases various offices and plant. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used

as security for borrowing purposes.

The present value of future lease payments of the Group’s

leases are analysed as:

33.

34.

SRAT B At Bk (%)
BOECEER CFEREF A
ST B B S B B
e RN -

ME A
AEBMAEZ WML E LRSS - HES
3 A 8 2 IR o B Mk M8 il 2
HERER A A M [ e e ft - A
5 o Sl S AT B2 MEAH R
AT AR SR Z S b o

AR L 2 R A B A R 2 BLE 2>
#r

2020 2019
“EORE —EF—NAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T oo ANR¥T T
Current )| 2,769 3,165
Non-current FE W H) 62,185 64,954
64,954 68,119

Movement of the Group’s leases liabilities is analysed as ALEEHER B BB ITMT

follows:

2020 2019
“ERORE —“E A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T oo ANR¥T I
As at 1 January w—H—H 68,119 70,032
Additions wE = 1,087
Termination Ak (257) -
Interest expenses | ELBH 52 4,062 4,227
Lease payments AR (6,970) (7,227)
As at 31 December = =H=E=H 64,954 68,119
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34. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 34. M B (80
The future lease payments of the Group’s leases (excluding AEBMAE (N HHE) 2 RAH
short-term leases) were scheduled to repay as follows: B2 B R T
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
i K
L A 3% D=3 B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETIE  ARWTIT ARWTIC

As at 31 December 2020 R_F_FHE+_A=1+—H
Not later than one year RN — A 6,667 (3,898) 2,769
Later than one year but not  —4F&H ANV A T4
later than five years 22,257 (14,241) 8,016
Later than five years AR 77,633 (23,464) 54,169
106,557 (41,603) 64,954
As at 31 December 2019 RNoZE—IETH=Z1T—H
Not later than one year KNI — 4 7,227 (4,062) 3,165
Later than one year but not —AERH AR AR
later than five years 23,238 (14,750) 8,488
Later than five years HAER 83,319 (26,853) 56,466
113,784 (45,665) 68,119
‘.\‘3‘
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35. DEFERRED TAX 35. MEIEBLIH
The followings are the deferred tax (assets) and liabilities DA B A2 [ R RR Y AR AE B I (B )
recognised by the Group. e A A

Allowance for

doubtful trade Accelerated Financial
and other  Allowance for tax assets at
receivables inventories depreciation FVTOCI Total
ey DAFAG A
1/ER:P4 mE A
R A TR BBIE B EE it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT  ARWTFX  ARWTT  AR%Tn  AR%TR

At1 January 2019 R-Z—NF—H—H (16,533) (392) 977 825 (15,123)
(Credit) /Charge to profit or loss for the (7FA) /1l FI A i i F 5
year (note 12) B (ff7k12) (4,805) - 3,807 - (1,088)
Charge to other comprehensive income ¢ FAf1 2 i it & #16% 14,609 - (1,948) - 12,661
At 31 December 2019 and ﬁ":;’ jm A=t-A
1 January 2020 SEZRE--H (6,819) (392) 2,836 825 (3,550)
Charge to profit or loss for the year ﬁfZFEE e kil
(note 12) (Hr3k12) 877 - 8,509 - 9,386
At 31 December 2020 REFZBEFCAZA—H (5,942) (392) 11,345 825 5,836
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances AR B W5 R L 3R 2 R SE B TE 4 B (K
(after offset) for consolidated statement of financial position FHAR) hT R
purpose:
2020 2019
e
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN NR#T T

Deferred tax liabilities % 98 Bl TE & 12,170 3,661
Deferred tax assets % 98 Bl VE A (6,334) (7,211)
5,836 (3,550)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused R BAR R > AR 45 [ R ) 2 B
tax losses of RMB66,957,000 (2019: RMB81,922,000) i 18 B N R %66,957,00000 (—F — L
available for offsetting against future profits. No deferred 0 N H81,922,0007T) > 1] A AE HE
tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of B AR AR A o F A R B TE I R AR R
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses R > WO S e AT AT R EBLHE E o
are losses of total RMB66,792,000 (2019: RMB80,873,000) At A K il R BB Ml 1R 2% e R SR R
that will expire within 2025 (2019: 2024). Other tax losses pﬁ§66,792,00071: (ZZF—LF: AR¥
may be carried forward indefinitely. 80 873,0007C) > H AR —F _ﬂiﬁ

== 5 _Y_IEIE Z R EH o
ﬁﬂWﬁEﬁET T 53 1 45 e o

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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B 3 B 5 A B

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. JEAC
Number of shares Amount
4 B
Promoters Promoters
shares H shares Total shares H shares Total
HRARD it it ERARR Hit it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AE®FE  AREFL  AR®Fr  AR®Fr  AREFx  ARETR
Registered, issued and fully paid: ~ E5kff - C#fREALRE :
Shares of RMBO.10. R EA R0
(2019: RMB0.10) each (=8 - ARIR0.10%)
2Rt
At 31 December 2019 and REFZ-E+-A=Z+—HR
31 December 2020 “EREFZH=+-H 700,000 678,720 1,378,720 70,000 67,872 137,872

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the

optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new
shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing

debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
debt-to-equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total debts
less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all
components of equity (i.e. share capital, share premium,

NClIs, retained profits and other reserves).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from the year ended 31
December 2019, was to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio
at the lower end of the range 0.1 to 0.4, in order to secure

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

ASR ) 2 A B R R AR A AR [ R
WA > DL Rzt AL 5 M HE 2
L {51 5 P SRS AR i A (o] i

A g L B B AR A o AR
P LA S S A AR 2 S R 0 5
B K AR B B 2 R T AR o By
HEFS SRR B AAE M > AR e
P SO S BRATORTAR Rl AR A
AR RLEK - TR I BUA G w6
DA AR B -

AL DL A RE AR L R B AR A -
A7 B EL R 1 IR B i R AR A O
R85 T R R DL RS B R e MO
SEEYFA o AURESE 6 P A HE 4 R
(BB AS ~ R v 16~ JF 42 A bl 4 - R
B Vi ) B LA it )

REE-F_FEF _HA=+—HI

MR AEEBELHRE T UE

+ A = — B RARE 2 s - B4

B RE 25 R HL0.1 70,440 8 iy >

M KF - T ok B AR A Pl 5
A

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 36. JBEA (%)
The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as below: BfEfEm bR EW T

2020 2019
e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T 0 ANR¥F I
Bank and other loans SRAT M HoAth £ K 413,737 231,758
Lease liabilities HEAE 64,954 68,119
Total debts 5 105 AU 40 478,691 299,877

Equity attributable to the Company’s AN E AN AL HE £
owners 2,955,694 2,878,221
Total debt to equity ratio A A LR 16% 10%

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Company to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Company receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2020, 49%
(2019: 49%) of the total promoters and H shares were in

public hands.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

A5 ) B e 6 5 7 8T
SO —BEIN DR A B - R
FEA R IRRE S D R 0 2.25% A4
A R P BT A
O R IR R 2 R T R
Wt R A TR A — B 20259 2
FRBE - ROFFET A=
o 20 0 AN 0 BEE 2 40% (=
F U ¢ 40%) HATRIEA -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

()

Statement of financial position of the Company

AR 2 i) 2 W 85 IR D e ik A 5 )

(a) Ao W] Z BB IR DL

2020 2019
I
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T e ANR¥®ET T
Non-current assets I By &
Property, plant and equipment ESN V& A 5,690 6,280
Investments in subsidiaries, net of N NP E S < i
accumulated impairment losses E7 S RN TR 160,912 202,912
Investments in film productions W E R RE 3,500 8,594
Financial assets at FVTOCI DA SFAE 7 A HoA 2 T
Wi i 2 BB 51,360 53,653
Investments in associates RS AT ZRE 453,464 453,488
674,926 724,927
Current assets i B A
Due from shareholders JE WAz B R 3k T 185 187
Due from subsidiaries JRE Vi B JB 2 T R 412,144 248,602
Due from associates JVRE iz Bk 5 ) R - 98
Due from a related company JRE WAL — 5 T i 2 ) K I 27 27
Prepayments, deposits and other FEA FH }*"i&
receivables T Ath B iz 2K 201,165 40,705
Cash and cash equivalents Iﬁééﬁfﬁﬁfffﬁéf | 11,162 95,321
624,683 384,940
Current liabilities U R=R
Trade and other payables B 5 B H At AT 3K IH 23,622 7,790
Bank and other loans SRAT M HA B K 26,382 26,382
Due to a shareholder JRE A — 24 B R R 498 815
Due to related parties JRE A B N 300H 2,550 3,606
Due to subsidiaries JRE A e Jag 2 ) 133,911 134,983
186,963 173,576
Net current assets i B R 437,720 211,364
Non-current liabilities IR B £ 1F
Bank and other loans SRAT S HoAh K 200,000 150,000
NET ASSETS & 912,646 786,291
Share capital e A 137,872 137,872
Reserves (note b) fi e (BFF5ED) 774,774 648,419
EQUITY B 55 912,646 786,291
Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 RoE - =H TN HEESH e
and is signed on its behalf by: THE B i U.T:}\j:ﬁﬁ%% :
2% .
&
NI JINLEI ZHANG WANZHONG
15 4 & RE
Director Director
#=H HF
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. AN Z WK D3R I it s 5 )
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (#)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reserve movements of the Company (b) A w] Z fifi s 52 BY

Financial
assets at
Capital Reserve FVTOCI ~ Retained

reserve funds reserve profits Total

)

RFEA

it 2w

Wi 2 Bt %
WAMEG  MEEE  WEMEG  HEEA L
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETE ARWTE ARWTT ARWTZE ARWTE

At 1 January 2019 RE-F-NE—A—H 562,519 76,766 (5,995) 36,942 670,252
Total comprehensive income AR A I A A
for the year - - (6,852) (14,961) (21,813)
At 31 December 2019 and REZF—NE+ A
1 January 2020 ZH-RERCERE
—~H—H
Total comprehensive income AR I A A

for the year

Transfer i fa¢

At 31 December 2020 RZBRZRE
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38. RESERVES 38. fifi ffi
(a)  Group (a) ALK
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the A 52 ) 2 fak A < S LB B R A
movements therein are presented in the consolidated R E W EI T Y TR ET
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income BEIRES o

and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) flf i 1EE & HI&
(i)  Capital reserve (i) B

The capital reserve of the Company and the AN T B AR BB A 1R

Group represents the aggregate of: NN TH 2 BN

- share premium totalled RMB559,438,000 - BITHREABEAR
arising from issue of new shares; #559,438,0007C 2 M

(Gl

— the waiver of an amount of RMBI1,654,000 - R P B AT 2 e R
recorded as part of issuance expenses for W B > SRR
the listing of the Company’s H shares on AIHMB R —FEFERF L
the GEM of the Stock Exchange in July 2000 JAE B 32 BrGEM E T
(the “Listing”) payable to an unrelated party (F BT 1) W 30 1) AR 2
who had provided services to the Company AR AR B 2 IF B 7
during the Listing pursuant to prevailing JE AT R HE 1,654,000
accounting principles and regulations in the JUER AT S K
PRC; and

- the net gain of RMB1,427,000 resulting - RE BB T2 & s
from debt restructuring of Jade Bird BUPSEFSSTARA & §t 2 /A
Fire, a former subsidiary of the Company, ij P 2 W 75 s T By
transferred in accordance with prevailing HrE A A 2 e A
accounting principles and regulations in the [ 1,427,0007C °
PRC.

Y
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38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Reserve funds

Reserve funds comprise statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve. In accordance
with the laws and regulations in the PRC and
articles of association of the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC (collectively
referred to the “PRC entities”), the PRC entities
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit
after tax, after offsetting any prior years’ losses, to
the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of the
PRC entities’ registered share capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by
issuing new shares to shareholders in proportion
to their existing shareholding or by increasing
the par value of the shares currently held by
them, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory surplus reserve after such issue is not
less than 25% of share capital. The PRC entities
may transfer an amount from their profit after
tax to the discretionary surplus reserve approved
by the shareholders. The discretionary surplus
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses of the PRC entities and to distribute to

shareholders in the form of bonus issue.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4(e) to the consolidated financial

statements.

38. il (#)

(b)

ks 1 R % 38 (1)
(ii) A2

ot 4 5 4 B 456 R B R 0 PR
BREERBARE S o R
A R A RE B DL AR S ]
e Hp B AT 2 B
3] (RATT A [ R B A )
2Ok A P
8 2R+ JU B A5 0 A (HE B9 4T
o] DAFE 4F B2 s 1R 4%) > BRI
10%1F % B R fiti Al o "%k
SE J B fifh Af 2 ) o B
{1 450 % IRE > AT ] 3 — 25
PEBUR B o 00 B AR
0] P B DL AR A B R 4R
(A ) > 75 BT 48 308 4 F R
IRF AR5 e L A90) 1) B SR 9 47 i
S A 8 0 e SR TR
0y 2 T AR B A >
BB AT 45 1 0 B R A B A
KRG DA Z25% o H Bl
TUHY T B B B BLAR U
I 2 A R R ME 2 AT
B o T B ARG
FHAEHG 65 v 0 BT B 2 o 1 47
FE s R - 3 DAL I T =X
IR EE

(iii) FE 3L 1

TEE S fof 445 60 455 B 036 S0 2685
BB 0 3R E 2R Y BT A B S
Boo u% Il M 1% AR A B IR
FM FE4 (e) BT HOE R B E
o
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The financial assets at FVTOCI comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of
financial assets at FVTOCI held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 4(n) to the

consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents the

aggregate of:

- The equity-settled share-based payments of
RMB10,969,000 recognised upon transfer
of equity interests in a subsidiary of the
Company from certain of its original
shareholders to a director and certain
employees of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

- The difference of RMB1,583,000 arose
from the decrease in non-controlling
interest of RMB4,617,000 (being the
proportionate share of the carrying
amount of the net assets of PWC Winery,
LLC) and RMB3,034,000 (equivalent to
approximately USD475,000), which arose
on the acquisition of additional 25% equity
interests in PWC Winery, LLC during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

- The reserve includes RMB4,111,000 (2019:
RMB4,014,000) is the safety production
fund, which is for future enhancement of
safety environment and improvement of

facilities.

38. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 38. fili ffi (#)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b) A HEE LM E (4)
(iv) Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve (iv) DLZSFE A H A2 8
Z B B E

DL S 5 A A 2 1o i 35
2 A A L R A
WK Z LA FEFEA
by 2 T Wi B 2 B T
HRFHEE FAH > DL AR
AR A RS IR R B 54 (n) BT i
2 UK -

HAth faff 7

A H AL T 52 4
5

- UMEHmAHEZ KK
By AT RN RO
10,969,0007C > £ #
e S R £
= —HIEFERAR A
) o A iy H
T B R & AR AR
— R TR B
e o

- AR %1,583,0000C 2
ZERE > TH RN IE PE
HE 25 N R 4,617,000
It (BIPWC Winery,
LLCF & & R 2
Lol AH) > R
$,034,0007C (F & it
#1475,0003 J0) Z #=
B Hv#EE —F—=
E+_H=+—-H1
A B E — 2B I IEPWC
Winery, LLC 25%HE 4
IRp e A o

- e gt ERE
4 N R ¥4,111,0000C
(ZF— U AR¥E
4,014,0007C) > FITER

TRt = BRI R
G o
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38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(c) Profit appropriations

Under the PRC Company Law and the PRC entities’
articles of association, the net profit after tax as
reported in the PRC statutory financial statements,
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
principles and regulations, can only be distributed
as dividends after allowance has been made for the

following:

(i)  Make-up of prior years’ cumulative losses, if any.

(ii) Allocations to the reserve funds as stated in (b)

(i1) above.

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries

(i) In January 2019, the Group acquired a 21%
equity interest in Beijing Zhongke Zhichuang
Electric Appliance Company Limited (“Beijing
Zhongke”) at a consideration of RMB12,326,000,
which comprised of cash consideration of
RMB6,972,000 and capital injection commitment
of RMB5,444,000, from one independent third
party of the Group. Beijing Zhongke was engaged
in production of fire emergency sign lights,
lighting lights, emergency power supply for fire
emergency lighting and related products. Upon
the completion of acquisition, the Company
owned 56% indirect interest in Beijing Zhongke,
and Beijing Zhongke became an indirect

subsidiary of the Company.
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38. fifi ffi (%)
(c) A4 AL
R4 o B 3 R A I E R 2 A
A AR AN R 5 4% AR P e T R A
T KR A B 2 v ) o o S R R
T L B B AR AR 5 AT AE ST
511 - TEAE e A 1 AF 2 JBE B A0 UIR

(1)

(ii)

5 A 8 TE AR ¥ 2 R A 1R
(mfF) -

BEAE 3 (b) (i) i 1o A5 2

4o

39. i Bl i B R W EE

(a)  VBC B BRI 2 )

(i)

W_FE—NE—H K&
] o) A AR T — 44 1 ER =
75 Wi B b 5T o R A0 A E R
ARAR (TdmxHRD M
21% B HE > LE B N R
12,326,0007C (G145 B A AE
AR #56,972,00070 &+ &K
i N R H5,444,00000) - db
o PR A T B S
FERE BB T B AR
HAY F) 8 2 TR VR RRH B EE O o
S8 I T S JELAR - AR DA
b3 o B A 56 % 11 TH] 32 4
g o 17 AL R R A A A
F14 TH] 4 B JB8 22 W o
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

()

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

39. %

o Bl 4 i B R W EE ()

(a) VOB R 2> W] (A

(1)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and

liabilities of Beijing Zhongke acquired as at the

(%)
FR B FT 8 - R
2 AT G R AR AT

date of acquisition were as follows: HIT :
RMB’000
ANR¥T 7T
Net assets acquired: I WS i E
Property, plant and equipment (note 19) Wy ~ R B (FPRE19) 367
Other intangible assets (note 21) Hofth T2 & 2 (B EE21) 4,186
Inventories VeNcs 18,164
Trade and other receivables B2 Gy B F A I O E 22,367
Cash and cash equivalents Bl K Bl EY 11,999
Trade and other payables B o B H A A SROE (39,465)
17,618
NCIs I HE B A (7,752)
Fair value of interests in Zhongke at At 5T R BORE A 4325 i
completion date of the step acquisition S H IR P E (9,035)
Goodwill (note 20) P2 (B E20) 11,495
Total consideration — satisfied by cash BAE — LU & 3 12,326
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition: HC AR 7 A 2 B A AL R
Cash consideration received E B 4l 11,999
Cash consideration paid e B A (12,326)
(327)

The Group previously had interests in Beijing

Zhongke as an associate of RMB14,629,000. Fair
value of such interest amounted to RMB9,035,000
at the completion date of the acquisition. The
difference of RMB5,594,000 represented a loss

arising from step acquisition recognised in profit

or loss in accordance to HKFRS 3.

B e 22U

* ASARE B A R A 2 AL s

FBHHE 25 (fF /4 W8 A Al)
HEANR 14,629,000
JG o A7 BARE £ 7 Wi W o8
BH M2 A E A AR
19,035,0007C ° A %
5,594,0007C < %= Bt &
AR AR A v B 5 < A v 1)
\ngEﬁﬁ B2 4y ik
~%EEZ@@

AR BERF R A R A
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

()
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Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of Beijing
Zhongke is attributable to the anticipated
profitability of the distribution of the Group’s
products in the new markets and the anticipated

future operating synergies from the combination.

During the period from the acquisition date to
31 December 2019, Beijing Zhongke contributed
RMB26,073,000 to the Group’s revenue and net
profit of RMB2,447,000 to the Group’s profit or

loss.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2019, the consolidated revenue and net profit
of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 would have been RMBI1,269,778,000 and
RMB1,499,244,000 respectively. The proforma
financial information was for illustrative purpose
only and did not necessarily reflect the Group’s
revenue and operating results if the acquisition
had been completed 1 January 2019 and could
not serve as a basis for the forecast of future

operation result.

39.

B Bl 4 v R A P ()

()

W N B I 2 W) ()

(i)

(%)

A S A e R R 2 T R
A TA T 5 00 8 A 4
(HNORER GRERADIEiEE UL 3=
DR EE A2 10 R 2 AR A T ] 28

N
o

Bk

BB H &2 T — JL4F
+ZHA=+—HMM > b
hR A AL A TR A
e #526,073,00000 K £ A< 4
B R B K e RN R
2,447,0007TC

s e —F — L —  —
HEEE > AIA AR A s
E—E+-HA=+—H1k
A 2 S A IR T SR 43
Al 2 N R #51,269,778,00000
J N R H51,499,244,0007C °
i 25 5% & RHE A 2 %
W AN ROBAE R
FE—JLFE—H— H B
ULF 7 42 9] 1) Ui g o 56678 2

B B AT A TR R AR R
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. & Bl E U R M EE (A
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) WO R B 2 ) (A
(ii) In October 2019, the Group entered into a sales (i) RAFE—NFETH > &RNEH
and purchase agreement with a shareholder of B AT (M) oAb A
Chuangqi Culture Performance Company Limited RO ([ = 28 ]) (—[H
(“CCP”), a company that was incorporated in the e S AR AY /AT R -
PRC and 49% of its equity interest was held by 49 % JBCHE A 42 B — [H] JF 42
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group as =y NNIE SRR (R R - /N
an associate, to acquire 2% equity interest at a Hl) B — 4 IBOR AT AL HH
consideration of RMB600,001 comprising a cash e AL 2 T ) 2 % PO HE
consideration of RMB1 and capital contribution A B AR 600,001 7T (2
of RMB600,000. Having satisfied all the terms and 5 B4 ACAE N R 00 I E
conditions of the sales and purchase agreement, % A R #600,0007C) © 7EH
the acquisition of CCP was completed and B Hoh ik 140 T A6 R B AR A
thereafter became a non-wholly owned subsidiary AR o A T AR S
of the Group. JOC AT 8 9 2 7 LR

A ) JF 2 W )\ o

The fair value of the identifiable assets and A SO HE B S e i 2
liabilities of CCP acquired as at the date of Z AT O R A
acquisition were as follow: HanF -
RMB’000
ANR¥T 7T
Net assets acquired: I Wi v E
Property, plant and equipment E RN N & ] 32,314
Other payables At 8 A5 3TE 600
32,914
NCI I 12 A (16,128)
Fair value of equity in CCP before o 7 VR RO A 2
the business combination & PF AT 2P E (15,834)
Gain on bargain purchase (note 9) A W 2 ke gs (FfE ) (352)
Satisfied by consideration* ARG S fp= 600
Net cash outflows from the acquisition WS B A 2 B 9 o T
Cash consideration Bl ARAE -
i Unsettled as at 31 December 2019 * ‘:éﬁ’{\ = — JLE BT A

Sk R A

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

()

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

During the period from the acquisition date to
31 December 2019, CCP contributed net loss of
RMB94,000 to the Group’s profit or loss.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2019, the consolidated revenue and net loss
of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 would have been RMBI1,266,678,000 and
RMB1,502,173,000 respectively. The proforma
financial information was for illustrative purpose
only and did not necessarily reflect the Group’s
revenue and operating results if the acquisition
had been completed 1 January 2019 and could
not serve as a basis for the forecast of future

operation result.

39.

B Bl 4 v R A P ()

()

W N B I 2 W) ()

(ii)

(#8)

Hd i A E =& — JL4F
+ZA=+— AWM EE
T 2R 4 AL B 2 B AR BRI
JE5 8N ) #594,00076 -

g i — % — JLAFE— H —
HEeA > RIASE e =
F—NFET+ZA=1+—HI
TR 2 55 A IR B s 1R
439 B N B 1,266,678,000
gt M N R H1,502,173,000
JC o M5 7% BAHS R A 2 %
T3 > AN — 58 WA i I
ZEE—A— H B
17 DL 7 B2 9 1 i 2 % 48 7
ES Y ENCIR (B S s
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

39. &i 4 Bl i B LW EE ()

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Deemed disposal of a subsidiary

(b)

As disclosed in note 18 above, Jade Bird Fire ceased

to be a subsidiary of the Company upon listing in the

Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Net assets of Jade Bird Fire

on the date of disposal were disclosed below:

LA Hh 85 i 2 W)

Al b SR EE 18P BB - H N
By 7E VR I 8 2 BT b T 4R S 7 4 AR
o BB A ] e TR T B

Property plant and equipment

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investments in associates

Deposits for purchase of property
plant and equipment

Deposits for potential investments

Deferred tax assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

Bank loans

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Other reserve

Exchange reserve

Net assets attributable to the Company

as at the date of disposal
NCIs

Gain on deemed disposal of the subsidiaries

(note 18)

Fair value of the equity interest in Jade Bird

Fire as at 9 August 2019

Net cash outflow arising from the deemed disposal #L1E 8 2 £ 2 Bl 4 0k {%‘“@

Al EEFEEENT
RMB’000
ANR¥ET T
W~ s T 296,506
i 31,138
Y & 7,530
NS N A 2 R 924
WEE ) 2 - MR MR 2 d
9,578
BlrEREZ S 8,000
I AL i 14,609
8 323,802
B 5 B HoAth HE e 3K TE 1,312,421
Bl B Bl S E W 438,034
& 5y B Fo A I AT IE (449,114)
RATE R (300,000)
R It T A (11,995)
R S A T A (1,948)
F A i i (70,020)
T 58 fati Al (755)
BN B H 2 AR S A B A
R E 1,608,710
IF ¥ IOHE 45 (829,287)
779,423
LR B B & o A 2 Wi ti
(P 5E18) 1,348,433
H R B IRCRE i — T — U
AHLH Z AT 2,127,856
438,034

— g —

F—F

L

AR AR deR T BT REURM A R A
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 15 May 2020,

sale and purchase agreement (the “SP Agreement”)

the Company entered into the

with an independent third party and Chuangqi
Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. (“Chuanqi Tourism”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in
relation to the disposal of the 60% equity interest
in Chuanqi Tourism held by the Company at a
cash consideration of RMB172,028,880; and for
the guarantee fee arrangement in relation to the
release of the guarantee agreement (the “Guarantee
Agreement”) executed by the Company and the banks
dated 31 January 2013 which secured the obligations
of Changsha Songya Lake Construction Investment
Co., Ltd. (“Songya Lake Construction”), an associate
of the Group which is held as to 46.6% of its registered
capital by Chuanqi Tourism, under a facility agreement.
Chuangqi Tourism, through Songya Lake Construction,
is principally engaged in participation in tourism
development projects and its principal asset is the
investment in Songya Lake Construction. Details were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
15 May 2020 and 26 June 2020 and the circular of
the Company dated 30 June 2020. The approvals of
the shareholders of the Company in respect of the SP
Agreement and the transactions contemplated; and the
continuing provision of the guarantee in accordance
with the Guarantee Agreement after the completion
(the “Completion”) of the sale and purchase of
the 60% equity interest in Chuanqi Tourism, have
been obtained at the special general meeting of the
Company on 21 July 2020. The Completion took place
on 3 September 2020. Upon Completion, Chuanqi
Tourism and Songya Lake Construction ceased to
be a subsidiary and an associate of the Company
respectively. Net assets of Chuanqi Tourism on the date

of disposal are disclosed below:

o Bl 4 i B R W EE ()

A — [ B 2 W

W oFEEERHA+TALH > AR
A B — 4 M 5L 55 = O % A i
WEHRA R (ARl (R
/R Rl 1 [E B o < 9 R/ DA BV
HEH&H(EEHGRD > "IE
Eel I NN B Sl OR L Y
W60% M HE > BlaE A AR
172,028,8807C > 45 B fif Bk A< 2
Al B RS RAT I —F — =4 —H
S —HE T ZE R (TR
Thak ) (7 [ VD WS A ) s 4
ABRA A (THS A s ]) (B A
B 2 W N R > AT R B R
H46.6% 5 M & A<) 95 Rl & 1) 5
ZEALME IR 2 PR Pk
85 T i 205 400 0 AU HfE A R R R AR
FZHREMHSEEE - HE2E
JEE S A AN HE T AR R A o BRI
PR HM A T A
THH K FE EFESNH AN
A A2 "l A > DL E A —
TOERENA =T HBALN R E
B oo ANFER -F _FHELH
T BT R R ROR
AR A > ) B Rl ' W e S

TE R 5 AT 09 52 5 DA RO 58 AR
(M52 B ) BB 4 iR 7% 2.60%
G HEE 755 AR 4% 97 R 1 ok 48 A 2 AL 97
2z HLHE - 52 B Y & ZF AR
JUH Z B % E - o8 A% - A
Jite i B s e R g Rk 0 Al OR A AR
NP ) TN /NI
AT it A B H O 2 U R
mE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

B 3 B 5 A B

39. &i 4 Bl i B LW EE ()

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued)

(c) W —HME AR (8)

RMB’000
ANRBETIT
Net assets disposed of O BT EE
Investment in an associate AR A A BB 85,737
Due from an associate JRE WS 7 2 ) RO 33,400
Prepayments FEAT R IA 13,433
NCIs I 1 I i (53,028)
Net assets disposed of Ol & 79,542
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary R [ R 2 W 2 Wi ds 92,487
Consideration satisfied by cash” DABE 4 5 1 9 £ £ 172,029

Net cash inflow arising from the disposal

WMESFIEE AN B &R AT 30,000

# Out of total cash consideration, RMB30,000,000 was # EB SRR AR

settled during the year ended 31 December 2020.

30,000,0007C 2 A #E —F ZF
FEA A= HIEEELA o

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. %A Bl U R R Wk (80
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (d) BbE W B EL 2 A EBE
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s T R I A AR B R )
liabilities arising from financing activities, including EEZAMZEY  GFBE X
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising HBREEH - MEFHEAZA
from financing activities are those for which cash flows 4 ORI A B C R iRk
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the WEw e AEIES &R
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash R R A B 2 B
flows from financing activities. & e
Bank and Due to Due to Lease
other loans  a shareholder related parties liabilities
BT R et — % A5 ) O
Hof B % Jie 3 At M ff
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TE  ARWTET  AR®TET  AR¥TXT

At 1 January 2019 REF-AF~H—H 225,683 9,129 4,142 70,032
Interest expense HE B 8,986 - - 4,997
Non-cash movements IR 95 - - 1,087
Cash flows BEnew (3,006) 447 1,637 (7,227)
At 81 December 2019 and AZE—UET A
1 January 2020 ZF-HEZERE

—H—H 231,758 2,576 5,779 68,119
Interest expense BB 13,865 - - 4,062
Non-cash movements FHEEH 343 (2,576) 2,576 (257)
Cash flows RanE 167,771 = (1,448) (6,970)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZRHE

+ZA=Z+—H 413,737 = 6,907 64,954

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
ying pany p
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40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

41.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group issued guarantees to
several banks in respect of banking facilities granted to two
(2019: three) associates and a former associate, which was

disposed of during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Group under the guarantee. The maximum liability of
the Group at the end of the reporting period under the
guarantee issued is the facility granted by bank amounted
RMB490,000,000 (2019: RMB490,000,000). At the end of
reporting period, facility drawn down by the associates
amounted RMB290,000,000 (2019: RMB490,000,000). The
Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the financial guarantee as its fair value was considered

insignificant.

40. MBEER

REFFEF A= R AEE
MR (R — U4 =) BE A R
— [ A 7 H A Y TR O R R 11
A7 Rl ) T SRAT R AR o

R MR > 3 I ANER S AR AR T AT e
HEAR RIS PR OB SR o SR
AEBMOBETHEMR T 2 AM ERAE
Tt 2 /il s N R #490,000,0007C (Z
F—JL4E 1 AR #490,000,0007C) ° i
WA > B A IR A 2 AR
#990,000,0007C (- F — JL4F : AR
490,000,0007C) © A< 4 [ 37 J1 gt o 5 4%
PR SRAT AR AR ZE U A > TR 2 N P {E
W F SO JE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41. BAKYE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the A S T A S B TR A5 3 H 2 AR RS
reporting period are as follows: o
2020 2019
SEoBE o
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T ANR¥F ot
Contracted but not provided for: C AT 40 Mk R HE 4 -
Property, plant and equipment W~ WE &%ﬁ{ﬁ 36,425 48,424
Committed capital contribution to ] W N/ A
associates and joint ventures 1 3 2 K RETE %f 91,569 97,579
e
&

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

42, [

(a) In addition to those related party transactions and (a)

balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with its related parties during the year:

AL

B & B B e e L fth 4 B8R 2
ERIEN LR KR A
A5 IO A A B G SR B N -3

TR RS -

2020 2019
e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR BT 78 AR
Sales of electronic fire alarm systems 1] L T R B 4 1 2 — ]
and related products to a related BN W B B T B
company controlled by Peking e R SO B A
University - 516
Management fee income A BB~ R
from associates ST JIPN 6,791 5,761
Lease expenses for office buildings DL 2 07 R Z A =
charged by M AH 15 A
— a shareholder of the Company — AN TF—ZBOR 585 2,116
— a non-controlling interest of — — [H] B~ F 2
a subsidiary I P2 TR 1 - 34
585 2,150
Car rental expense charged by — [T 7 s w2
an associate PR 4 B 5 117 117
Loan interest expense paid to a non- ST — R B 2w 2
controlling interest of a subsidiary IEFE B ME 45 2 B
LB B 32 = -
Purchase of an owner-occupied 1] — [A] I 5 2 W) B 3 R
property from an associate LSRR S 45,370 ~

The directors are of the opinion that the above

transactions with related parties were conducted in the

usual course of business.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BN L5 (4)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Included in the consolidated statement of financial (b) A4 W B IR UL 3 L 45 8L DL T PR
position are the following balances with related parties: N2 &8k :
2020 2019
SEoBE o
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTIE ANRMET T

Due from associates JRE WA B 2 ] R 27,450 67,160
Due from shareholders JE WA B R TR 185 187
Due from a related company JRE W — 5% H b R B il

controlled by Peking University Z B A R RO

included in other receivables Fh A Atk R Wi K I 27 27
Due to associates JE A} B 75 W) 3KIE 1,300 4,000
Due to a shareholder JREAST — 42 B SR K T - 2,576

Due to NCIs of subsidiaries included JRE AT B} Ja&§ 2 ) 2 I FE R
in other payables i CH - FEAHAR
JRE AT 3K IE — 2,149

Due to related companies controlled JREAST H I K B P i 2

by Peking University B# 3 2 W) 3KIA 6,907 5,779
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the (c) AELMEEEHANEMSE :
Group:
2020 2019
e
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN AR¥T T

Short term employee benefits 304 5 A8 1,715 7,368

Post-employment benefits Al A R 109 522
1,824 7,890
@

Further details of directors’ and supervisors’ B e 2 — P R

emoluments are included in note 15 to the AR A B IR M L5 o

consolidated financial statements.

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. F B 2 vl
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 WEEZTREF T =+ —H > AAH
FEWE AR FEE W T

December 2020 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation and

Percentage of

Name kind of legal entity Paid up capital ownership interest  Principal activities
Gy A
o % A S 2
a ERERER PR BA WHHMER L R
Direct  Indirect
HE RE
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Cayman Islands/ 100,000 ordinary shares 100% - - Investment holding
(Gayman) Development the PRC, limited of USD1 each
Company Limited liability company
TkEBRFHH (HE) MEME,/ HH 100,000 i 8 — B
BREARAA AR IR B
Chuanqi Tourism Investment Hunan, the PRC, RMB30,000,000 60% - - Exploration and development of
(Hunan) Co., Ltd. (“Chuangi limited liability travel and leisure business
Tourism (Hunan)”) company
[ kBB (W) A RA A R FRAF ARMES0,000,0007 — Al R KA 2 B B
([ 3 il (W) J)
Beijing Hengsheng Investment Beijing, the PRC, RMB2,000,000 55% - - Provision of investment
Management Company Limited limited liability management and
company advisory services
R B A RA R PRI FRAF ARM2,000,0007 — GRS T R
Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Ningbo, the PRC, RMB60,000,000 - 70% - Investment holding
Capital Investment Co., Ltd. limited liability
company
BUE BARSLRARL A A ARAT ARE60,000,0007 — RN
PWC Winery, LLC The State of Virginia, ~ Members’ contributed - 70% - Production and sales of wine and
the United States, capital of USD4,200,000 related products
limited liability
company
PWC Winery, LLC FEHEREN T #E #4,200,000% 70 -~ HEBRARERZEERHE
ARAT
Xiamen Hanyu Bulk Supply Xiamen, the PRC, RMB50,000,000 - 100% - Sales and purchases of metallic
Chain Management Co., Ltd limited liability products
company
E MR F AR A RA PEEF ARAF ARN50,000,0007 — S AR A

EREIIGB AL KA - EERA
TR B T TR BN WA 2 W) B A

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 43. R E AW (F)

The following tables show information on the subsidiaries IR AL BT BRI R R
that have NCIs material to the Group. The summarised Z WS 2N R o BA B R A 2 R TR K
financial information represents amounts before T ST Y & o

inter-company eliminations.

Chuanqi
Tourism
Name (Hunan)*
{80 9 ik ¢
E i (bR ) #
2020
SR Er 2
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by NCIs IF 1 e RE 55 BT 5 2 A RE
HEas BUEREE S I 40%/40%
RMB’000
ANR# Tt
At 31 December wht+_H=+—H
Non-current assets IE I B & 243,817
Current assets i B A 222,002
Current liabilities PRI N=R (81,873)
Non-current liabilities FE R E A& (64,798)
Net assets R 319,148
Accumulated NCIs BUnt IR P R #5 127,659
Year ended 31 December: BET-H=1+—H
WL 4R BE -
Revenue e A 97,236
Profit ¥l 22,353
Total comprehensive income 2 T A 4 A AE 22,353
Profit allocated to NCIs AT IF HE B HE %5 2 s R 8,941
Dividends paid to NCIs B A I 22 O 15 2 B -
Net cash generated from operating activities FEAE BRSBTS B 2 Bl AR 17,398
Net cash used in investing activities AR EEE 2 FEHE - (50,587)
)
Net cash generated from financing activities FEAE B RS B 2 B T AR 21,092

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

B4 T B4 S 0 0 T (12,097)

A A JORAER TS BRSO A PR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —F “F4E+ - H =+ —H IL4E

43.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The following tables show information on the subsidiaries
that have NCIs material to the Group. The summarised

financial information represents amounts before

inter-company eliminations.

43. ERME 2 ¥ (4)
A 78 A S AT TR I P 2
2 WA T o BATHS RS AR 2 7 1 K
E S B A 010 % -

Chuanqi
Name Tourism*
i {8 e A
2019
SERUE
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by NCIs P IRME 4R T 2
BEAHERE BUORAEE ) T 40%/40%
RMB’000
ANRMETIT
At 31 December B+—_HAH=+—H
Non-current assets I i By & 293,946
Current assets i B & A 261,530
Current liabilities L B £ A (54,112)
Non-current liabilities I i By A R (70,955)
Net assets i 430,409
Accumulated NCIs SRt IR £ B HE A 172,163
Year ended 31 December: BRET-HA=+—HILHFE:
Revenue A 136,960
Profit T A1) 43,697
Total comprehensive income A TH I A AR AE 43,697
Profit allocated to NCIs 3 BE T JF 75 BORE 7 2 vk A 17,478
Dividends paid to NCIs AT IR et i 2 BB =
Net cash generated from operating activities FEAE B RSB IE E) 2 Bl 13,443
Net cash used in investing activities FHA 1% G5 B 2 Bl A (30,498)
Net cash generated from financing activities FE AR B RS B 2 B i AR 14,119
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B4 B B 4 S B ) W0 13 AR (2,936)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % ~F “F4E+ A =+ —H IL4E

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
* Being disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2020

and hence, no respective 2020 financial information was

disclosed.

Being incorporated during the year ended 31 December
2020 and hence, no comparative financial information was

disclosed.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 20 January 2021, the Board of Directors has resolved to
approve the proposed issue of not more than 400,000,000
new H shares (the “Shares”) of the Company pursuant to
a specific mandate (the “Special Mandate”) to be sought
at a special general meeting and the class meetings of the
Company held on 2 March 2021 (the “Meetings”). The
Company intended that the net proceeds from the proposed
issue of the new H Shares will be applied to funding the
business of a subsidiary of the Company and the general
working capital of the Company. The approvals of the
shareholders of the Company in respect of the grant of the
Specific Mandate have been obtained at the Meetings. No
new H Shares have been issued pursuant to the Specific
Mandate as at the date of approval of the consolidated

financial statements.

On 17 March 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place up to 135,744,000
new H Shares at placing price of HK$0.50 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.42) per Share to not less than six but
not exceeding ten placees. The Company intended that the
net proceeds from issue of the new H Shares will be applied
to mergers and acquisitions and/or development of new
business and the general working capital of the Company.
The transaction is not yet completed at the date of approval

of the consolidated financial statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the directors on 26 March 2021.
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Financial Summary

$ 755 4 2

For the year ended 31 December
BWET A=+ —HILEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
SE R ST -E CEF-NE DL DFRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTIE ARWTIT AR¥WTT ARWTIT AR¥WTT

RESULTS E s
Revenue g A 468,414 1,266,678 1,905,727 1,613,075 1,412,542
Profit before tax I 5 il o4 80,244 1,575,955 405,067 417,570 351,493
Income tax expense BT 7584 B 52 (10,351) (73,782) (78,556) (76,080) (68,411)
Profit for the year ZRAF BE Vi | 69,893 1,502,173 326,511 341,490 283,082
Profit attributable to: JRE AL s )
Owners of the Company A2 A #EA A 64,165 1,402,389 147,029 170,668 129,560
Non-controlling interests  JF # B i 5,728 99,784 179,482 170,822 153,522
69,893 1,502,173 326,511 341,490 283,082
As at 31 December
R+=H=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
CEROBE CE-NF FE-NFE F—LIE EFEAF
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARWE T AR®Tx AR¥T I ARWETT ARW¥ETT
ASSETS AND &Rk Al
LIABILITIES
Total assets Mg E 3,662,512 3,470,502 3,468,716 3,180,551 2,676,583
Total liabilities AR (557,676)  (395,131)  (818,301)  (692,303)  (653,772)
Total assets less total A AR A
liabilities 3,104,836 3,075,371 2,650,415 2,448,248 2,022,811
Non-controlling interests I 12 I # 25 (149,142)  (197,150)  (900,180)  (719,907)  (548,174)

Equity attributable to N/NIEIE F SN
owners of the Company  JE 1t i i 2,955,694 2,878,221 1,750,235 1,768,341 1,474,637
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